RESITARAHE
TAI SANG BANK LIMITED

2019 B B =
2019 FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE STATEMENT



B5EH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

B2 BBS | 4-EHH ¥FE MA CHING HANG, PATRICK, BBS, J.P. CHAIRMAN
EEE MA CHING TSUN
EEE SBS, AEin+ MA CHING YUK, SBS, J.P.
R IETE MA CHING KUEN, ALFRED
EEE MA CHING YEUNG, PHILIP
e CSt, Kps- MA CHING NAM, CSJ, J.P.
rac YIU KEI CHUNG, THOMAS
PR FE A TAN LENG CHENG, AARON
e BT CHUNG KONG FEI, STEPHEN
BEE (REES) MA CHING MAN, KATY (Alternate Director)
BESH  (REESR) MA CHING SAU, AMY (Alternate Director)
BFIE (REES) MA CHING CHENG (Alternate Director)
R ADVISOR
RSB MA CHING WAI, WILLIAM
&P ER MANAGEMENT
EENE  SBS, ##ih+ MA CHING YUK, SBS, J.P.
AR REgas MA CHING KUEN, ALFRED, Deputy General Manager
HEYHRR R EE LR CHEUNG YAU SHING, ALEX, Deputy General Manager
flgisE  EstaEss OR YUEN LING, ELAINE, Chief Accountant




EFEORESE

RAEFITARAE O T#1T, ) EFGREASRERSRREREZE2019F12H 31 HILFEZ EEGRES NOFEXGEME
-

EEER
SRATZ TR R PR I rs SR R TR B AR 2 I B AR L R VS B B BB - SRTT Z I A B TR B EBURESR SIS
HARMIEELA -

LS oW
ST R HI B AT (48 THEE L ) BE2019F 12531 HIMFEZ EECHEN S TH 2 578 2 HWGEEN -
HEENERIRERE -

EioE
EEENAEE 2 BE M AR R ENE10,0007T (20184 f) -

NAREERITZ A
PREZE2019F12A 31 HIEFERN > ASRITIAMFITIRA - BRAZFE B MES S B IRENEE 10N -

P S S i
PAEE2019E12 A3 H RSN - ASRTT IR T VAT R SR S 77 -

EE
() RRfrzE=E
REEN R EARGE QY > ARTZAEEESBOT ¢

FEEIRS e BBS APl Y FESERIE (A20195H 15HBHE) EEERE

B SBS K4t A B E

FEER LA oSt KP4t FESETRSE (420195 H 15HBHE) B TINH (B s 2 ()
EEH/NMNEEBHRE RHEES) BB A (BB ey REES) BRRERE SRS (122019429 H 30 HEHE)
EAEES LA (13201945 F 15 HEHE) PraoHr st BHE B S

HEHHIRSEAF (R2019E9 H 30 H HE(T)

T IERTEE

AR TSR I8 > FrA T AERPIERFESER - BRFrA S EEFIEANKESE - WIRERE -

(2) SRTINBAE ZEE

WRFEARARES B BFERE - AL E - BFESRE  BEBRENERRILEERIRTNBAT ZES -
AT Z M A A

BEEMEEERE L ERRS - ZHFRGHT ZERAE

PréF el B RIS 22T B R Z Bk » RN SN - SRITZ B A SIS TS RARE 2 E B MIRT 2 EE
HRENHEBEER T A EAN G EERLS - R4 -

EERIRITEREAE AR AR R E A

RERN - #1417 ~ HIFEAE R AR AEBESE TR - (T 2 EE TR (BEHICE R8T Z720)
FPAASRIT ~ HASIA e s B i SR s o 2 MR B -

EHEY
AEEREPN > SR S B B S B EE B 2 B ST LR e | P A (R 54




EEEREE @)

EBES
(FF) %15 2 5¥am
EE 2 YR BT Z AT A 20184 Z AR L E CH L s T 84 . 802 201 9 Z AN —TZ N+ 25T - NEN > EERH

MR BT ROBARHI B & S M EFM S U AE 28 . 8% 2880 - FFHHEUCA (LETF27.7%) > B EEEWA (LT, 5%) R IREFE
FABUA(_EFF3.2%) IRE AT -

OB HIMHEE20184F » FEHT B LR EFINARTIINN » 72019 SR1 T H N E B TAM 2 3% - (It B T AR
 MIRFRE AT (R B LR R IIEFROR A -

2019 EER S FARE REEEYIZE T L » (L5 [ B REFTF Z RBEVIZENFE N8 . §H 8L 2 H bk -

EPEARRET N 22 1% - MR EEIRAILR 12 . 3% 2 201 95K Z B+ T —T-H7T - EREGKIERD4. 3% > MfFRURAFIK
I3 Ko T R SRATARK TR B AR S N B e S 2 BRI 5 20184 %18, 7% »

FN - EBEETRTAAR AP RME - FEF2019FEFRGERFEBIE0% L ALK K88 7% 2 BN MR LRI i /Y
EERIKEER - R AR 2 EH T8 -

019K - ST RIFEA T Z A T AT I R33IARKAN - EEFE—HREE - -y EREEE 8 TR ZAR0RE - &
B — [ e A B R - IR b s T AR A2 S > Wi B TR EE S 2 2 TAFEAAEIER Z P -

FEEE RS 2T P RWBCR - SEZ BRI MRt 2R 2 IRTRELURRFTAZ P 2R E > HAERMAEE N EREN]
L R R F DO L AR AR E 2 2 PR (A

MR IR S 2 TAFRREE TSI R R R 2 Sk -

(Z) E=EkE

FEERZESEA R - GEEERE - SEERE  REE SRR - TSR AR RS R o e TR GRS
MHBHRRITEIN - FARCEFRHZRE > HMTERY - BZAY - EEAARAZAY - BEXZRE - HFZATY - ZE
Z 8G Ki\lpZe B & CH I DB 2R T FT i 2 2 S o G ) R e 3t 5 | AR P22 RO R a% S e -

(W) EEBHFORA G

PR20204E 5 E 2 B yAR BEE R - EETNGZ R R B2 4498 - WG BEHFHEHMA G L T 5 MR 2 B
b o 2020415 B SR 5 — BASE R P R 2 HE1E -

AT 2 T RRSC
A B E P e B A i o o H A S 380 2 A ST (R R SOE R SR T Z AL IR (N B A FRERITRT AL B A R &
B Z B EE(QHRITETIL) -

FEsiTH (35 ) Al
RIRTEBREEBIRITEMOIZ /TR (5 RAINZHE -

BB
RGO B ERRCHET R EGTAIEBIEY  ZZBAIRE SR - EREEZEEE -

R

il

EEE
Fi > 20204E3H26H




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the 'Bank') submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Bank are commercial banking and related financial services and property investment and management. The
principal activities of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank and its subsidiaries (collectively the 'Group') for the year ended 31 December 2019 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 7.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$10,000 (2018: HKS$Nil).

SHARE ISSUED IN THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank has not issued any new shares. Details of the share capital are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Bank has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.
DIRECTORS

(a) Directors of the Bank
The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report are :

Mr Patrick Ma Ching Hang, BBS, JP Mr William Ma Ching Wai Mr Ma Ching Tsun
(Chairman) (Resigned on 15 May 2019)
Mr Ma Ching Yuk, SBS, JP Mr Alfred Ma Ching Kuen Mr Philip Ma Ching Yeung
Mr Ma Ching Nam, CStJ, JP Mr Ma Ching Lam Ms Katy Ma Ching Man (Alternate director
(Resigned on 15 May 2019) to Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen)
Ms Amy Ma Ching Sau (Alternate director Mr Ma Ching Cheng (Alternate director Mr Martin Lai Kwai Pui*
to Mr. Philip Ma Ching Yeung) to Mr. Ma Ching Nam) (Resigned on 30 September 2019)
Mr Henry Wong Shiu Kwan* Mr Thomas Yiu Kei Chung* Mr Aaron Tan Leng Cheng*

(Resigned on 15 May 2019)

Mr Stephen Chung Kong Fei*
(Appointed on 30 September 2019)

*Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 98 of the Bank's Articles of Association, all ordinary directors retire in each succeeding two years.
Accordingly, all ordinary directors remiain in office.

(b) Directors of the Bank's subsidiaries

During the year and up to the date of this report, Mr. Ma Ching Yuk, Mr. Alfred Ma Ching Kuen, Mr. Patrick Ma Ching Hang, Mr. Philip
Ma Ching Yeung and Mr. Ma Ching Tsun are also directors in subsidiaries of the Bank. There are no other directors of the subsidiaries of
the Bank.

DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS THAT ARE
SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION TO THE GROUP'S BUSINESS

Except for the loans disclosed in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions, arrangements and contracts of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Bank’s subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN THE SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE BANK OR ANY SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING

OF THE BANK

At no time during the year was the Bank, its subsidiaries or its other associated corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the
directors and chief executives of the Bank (including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) to hold any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or its specified undertakings or other associated corporation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Bank were entered
into or existed during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
(a) Review of Business

The Group’s pre-tax operating profit before property revaluation increased by 84.8%, from HK$5.75 million in 2018 to HK$10.62 million in
2019. During the year, the Group has achieved a 28.8% increase in net interest income, benefitting from the upward movements in interest
rates and the ability of the Bank to minimize idle funds. Increases were also noted in net rental income (up 27.7%), rental management fee
income (up 17.5%) and safe deposit box rental income (up 3.2%).

Operating expenses have increased from 2018, predominantly as a result of higher staff costs. The fine-tuning of the Bank’s internal staff
infrastructure continued in 2019 and gave rise to higher staff costs and the requirement of larger leave provisions for the staff employed.

The Group experienced property market downturn during 2019 for the first time in a number of years, resulting in a HK$5.8 million
revaluation deficit on investment properties held by the Group for the year.

Total customer deposits have decreased by 22.1%, while total assets have in turn decreased by 12.3%, with the 2019 end of year position at
HK$1.51 billion. The level of loans and advances decreased by 4.3% while the amounts placed with interbank and with central bank,
including the holding of exchange fund papers, decreased by 18.7% from 2018.

During the year, all relevant laws and regulations were complied with. The Group's conservative management was reflected in its
maintaining a Total Capital Ratio exceeding 90% and Liquidity Maintenance ratio exceeding 87% as at the year end of 2019, which were
substantially above the statutory minimum.

At the end of 2019, the total headcount was 33 and 4 for the Bank and its subsidiaries respectively. The Group operates in a single location
and places a lot of emphasis on effective communications among management and staff. A culture of operational efficiency, risk mitigation
and compliance has been built, and a sensible work-life balance for employees is promoted.

The Group observes a strict customer acceptance policy. While the aim is not to provide full range of banking services to satisty all customer
needs, the Group is committed to deliver products and services with quality and flexibility such that solid customer relationships are
established and maintained.

The Group also supports the culture of environmental protection by promoting an environmental-friendly working environment.
(b) Principal Risks

The Group is exposed to various types of risks including credit risk, operational risk, liquidity risk, market risk, legal risk and strategic risk,
details of which are carried in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Different Board committees, viz. Executive Committee, Credit
Committee, Asset & Liability Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk Committee, are in
place to oversee the various types of risks confronted by the Bank and give direction to management to control and mitigate these risks.

(c) Important Events and Future Development

Efficient asset utilization will continue to be an aim for the Group in 2020. The Group will also benefit from the refined infrastructure and
will continue its prudent management while not assuming undue risks for the sake of earnings.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this Directors' Report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Bank (whether made by the Bank or otherwise) or an associated company (if made by the
Bank).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE BANKING (DISCLOSURE) RULES

The Bank has complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.
AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment.

On behalf of the Board

PATRICK MA CHING HANG
Chairman

HONG KONG, 26 MARCH 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
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Note

ASSETS
CASH AND BALANCES WITH BANKS 10
PLACEMENTS WITH BANKS MATURING
BETWEEN ONE AND TWELVE MONTHS
LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
AND OTHER ACCOUNTS 11
INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT
FVOCI

12
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15
TAX RECOVERABLE
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS 16
OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS 17
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 18
TOTAL LIABILITIES
EQUITY
SHARE CAPITAL 19
RESERVES 20
TOTAL EQUITY

APPROVED AND AUTHORISED FOR ISSUE BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON 26 MARCH 2020.

ALFRED MA CHING KUEN )
DIRECTORS
PHILIP MA CHING YEUNG )

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

31 December

31 December

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS
288,228,130 873,546,686
332,892,861 257,250,956
184,145,999 177,370,649
307,017,381 8,841,833
72,272,044 72,655,228
324,100,000 329,900,000
105,576 115,003

1,508,761,991

1,719,680,355

752,141,745 965,416,654
22,304,146 24,033,881
7,493,314 6,266,435
781,939,205 995,716,970
310,000,000 310,000,000
416,822,786 413,963,385
726,822,786 723,963,385

1,508,761,991

1,719,680,355

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 70 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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INTEREST INCOME

INTEREST EXPENSE

NET INTEREST INCOME

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

NET OPERATING INCOME

OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING PROFIT

REVALUATION (DEFICIT) / SURPLUS ON

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME :

ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT

OR LOSS:

INVESTMENT SECURITIES MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME:

DECREASE IN FAIR VALUE DURING THE YEAR

DEFERRED TAX

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR,

NET OF TAX

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

Bk 2019 2018
Note HKS$ HKS$
5 24,566,491 18,128,660
5 (2,717,135) (1,171,185)

21,849,356 16,957,475
6 14,663,703 12,957,177
36,513,059 29,914,652

AN

(25,895,384)

(24,168,420)

10,617,675 5,746,232
15 (5,800,000) 18,500,000
(2,058) (32,504)

4,815,617 24,213,728
9 (1,222,864) (768,166)
3,592,753 23,445,562

20 (731,661) (1,603,327)
(731,661) (1,603,327)

2,861,092 21,842,235

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 70 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.




BR201912 31 H L2 ERES R B
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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Attributable to equity holders of the Bank

Fs: A HAGEE BB HaEH
Share Other Retained
Note capital reserves earnings Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
A20194E1 A 1 H 2 458k Balance at 1 January 2019 310,000,000 5,866,631 408,096,754 723,963,385
EETER Change in accounting policy - - (1,691) (1,691)
R20194F1 A 1 H 2 &h6R , & Balance at 1 January 2019 (restated)
EELdl! 310,000,000 5,866,631 408,095,063 723,961,694
eI Comprehensive income
R A Profit for the year - - 3,592,753 3,592,753
Hitr2 s Other comprehensive income
DUATE B 5 A ) Change in fair value of investment
o }\Hﬁﬁéﬁé\q&ﬁég&‘é securities measured at FVOCI
s AR L THEE R 20 - (731,661) - (731,661)
2HEZEEEE Total comprehensive income - (731,661) 3,592,753 2,861,092
B K Sy B Transfer and appropriation
B H A2 s G R A Transfer from other properties revaluation
BERRAT reserve to retained earnings 20 - (64,092) 64,092 -
BB NS A Total transfer and appropriation - (64,092) 64,092 -
FR20194E12H31 H 2 &tk Balance at 31 December 2019 310,000,000 5,070,878 411,751,908 726,822,786
20181 H1H 24568 Balance at 1 January 2018 310,000,000 9,858,762 382,262,388 702,121,150
2R Comprehensive income
RAEFE REF Profit for the year - - 23,445,562 23,445,562
Hir2mizs Other comprehensive income
DL EE i B Change in fair value of investment
S H A S Z&L:’% securities measured at FVOCI
w5 Z AP A 20 - (1,603,327) - (1,603,327)
SR L YNEN] Transfer from investment revaluation
lEnes reserve to statement of comprehensive
income 20 - (2,324,712) 2,324,712 -
2HEREEE Total comprehensive income - (3,928,039) 25,770,274 21,842,235
B K ED Transfer and appropriation
B HAM 2 E L fE A Transfer from other properties revaluation
RIER AT reserve to retained earnings 20 - (64,092) 64,092 -
L2 8 Y =ty Total transfer and appropriation - (64,092) 64,092 -
72018512831 H 2 &gk Balance at 31 December 2018 310,000,000 5,866,631 408,096,754 723,963,385

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 70 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS.
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BZE2019F 12831 HILEEEGEEHESRESR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

FiEk 2019 2018
Note HKS$S HKS

QR R FH 437 LS NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES 21(a)  (269,232,825) (13,121,462)
BEEE) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
WL DA S e s E s DIVIDENDS RECEIVED ON EQUITY
Bt A Bz S as > REds INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FVOCI
Eita— P35 6 466,600 432,972
MEEY)2E - HEB K PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT 14 (1,017,349) (1,327,686)
HitEy)sE « HEE R SRR PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF
> EHIE PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 41,200 B}
HE DA EE R 2 H PROCEEDS FROM DISPOSAL OF EQUITY
Bt A i ss s HEk INVESTMENTS MEASURED AT FVOCI
KA R Z #0H - 6,854,700
EEE RS RE IFRA NET CASH (OUTFLOW) / INFLOW FROM
TR INVESTING ACTIVITIES (509,549) 5,959,986
RLEEE) FINANCIING ACTIVITIES
HEal s AeEsy PRINCIPAL ELEMENTS OF LEASE

LIABILITIES (177,277) -
i I e e | NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES (177,277) -
IH 4 By [EIH 408 H 2 ) DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS (269,919,651) (7,161,476)
PE1HZ & RS ER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
S IE H 4ER 1 JANUARY 1,029,759,689 1,036,921,165
W12H31 B2 4 K% E CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
TH 4 TH H 4565 31 DECEMBER 21(b) 759,840,038 1,029,759,689

THE NOTES ON PAGES 10 TO 70 ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

FEEH
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TR ) 2 EEER Rt (IR T R EAHR 2
BIRB YR E B -
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- 2015-201 74 HA 2 A B
R 7 R
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General Information

The principal activities of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) are the provision of banking and related financial
services, and property investment and management.

The Bank is an authorized institution incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office is 130-132 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in units of Hong Kong
dollars (HKS$), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap 622. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and investment properties at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 4.

2.1.1 The adoption of new HKFRS and amendments

The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the
first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019:

- HKFRS 16 Leases
- Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

- Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

The Group also elected to adopt the following amendments early.

- Definition of Material — Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

The Group had to change its accounting policies as a result of adopting
HKFRS 16. The Group elected to adopt the new rules retrospectively but
recognized the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard on
1 January 2019. This is disclosed in note 2.1.2. Most of the other
amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the
current or future periods.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.1.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases on the
Group’s financial statements.

As indicated in note 2.1.1 above, the Group has adopted HKFRS 16 Leases
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but has not restated comparatives for
the 2018 reporting period, as permitted under the specific transition
provisions in the standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening statement
of financial position on 1 January 2019. The new accounting policies are
disclosed in note 2.18.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under
the principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 2%.

Measurement of lease liabilities

2019
HKS
Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 147,960
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application (1,347)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 146,613
Of which are:

Current lease liabilities 146,613

The Group only has one operating lease as lessee which is affected by the
adoption of HKFRS 16. The change in accounting policy affected the
following items in the consolidated statement of financial position on 1
January 2019:

- Right-of-use assets — increase by HK$144,922
- Lease liabilities — increase by HK$146,613

The net impact on retained earnings on 1 January 2019 was a decrease of
HK$1,691.

The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for
assets held as lessor under operating leases as a result of the adoption of
HKFRS 16.

2.1.3 New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published
that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019 reporting period and have not
been early adopted by the Group. These standards and interpretations are
not expected to have a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.2 Consolidation

2.3

12

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all its subsidiaries made up to 31
December.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank's statement of financial position (Note 25), the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses (Note 2.12). The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Bank on the basis of dividend received and
receivable. Dividend income from subsidiaries is recognised in the
income statement when the right to receive payment is established.

There are no restrictions, or other major impediments on the transfer
of funds or regulatory capital between the Group companies.

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for all instruments measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of
allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows
considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment options) but does not consider future credit
losses. The calculation includes all fees paid or received between
parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets have
been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income
is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
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2.5
@

Fee and commission income and expense

Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis
when the service has been provided. Loan commitment fees for
loans that are likely to be drawn down are deferred (together with
related direct costs) and recognised as an adjustment to the effective
interest rate on the loan. Commission and fees arising from
negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a
third party - such as the arrangement of the acquisition of shares or
other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses - are recognised
on completion of the underlying transaction.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets
measurement categories:
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVPL);

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): or

in the following

- Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments are
described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition of a
financial liability from the issuer's perspective, such as loans,
government and corporate bonds and trade receivables purchased
from clients in factoring arrangement without recourse.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments
(a) the Group's business model for managing the asset; and

(b) the cash flow characteristics of the asset.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments into
one of the following three measurement categories:

- Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest (‘SPPI’), and that are not designated at
FVPL, are measured at amortised cost. The carrying amount of
these assets is adjusted by any expected credit loss allowance
recognised and measured as described in note 3.1.4. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest
income’ using the effective interest rate method.

- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the assets, where the assets' cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest, and that are
not designated at FVPL, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the
carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in ‘Net Investment Income’. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
effective interest rate method.

13
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.5 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
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- Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the
criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented in
the profit or loss statement within 'Net trading income' in the
period in which it arises, unless it arises from debt
instruments that were designated at fair value or which are
not held for trading, in which case they are presented
separately in 'Net Investment Income'. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in ‘Interest Income’ using
the effective interest rate method.

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual cash
flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither of
these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of ‘other’
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset's performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed and
managed and how managers are compensated. An example is the
liquidity portfolio of assets, which is held by the Group as part of
liquidity management and is generally classified within the hold to
collect and sell business model. Securities held for trading are
held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term or are
part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking. These securities are classified in the
‘other’ business model and measured at FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
‘SPPI test’). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement, i.e. interest includes only consideration for
the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and
a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending arrangement.
Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or
volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending arrangement,
the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely
payment of principal and interest.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its
business model for managing changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

those assets
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2.5
(M)

(ii)

(iif)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of equity
from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do not contain a
contractual obligation to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the
issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic ordinary
share.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, except where the Group's management has elected,
at initial recognition, to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's policy is to
designate equity investments as FVOCI when those investments are held
for purposes other than to generate investment returns. When this
election is used, fair value gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) are not reported
separately from other changes Dividends, when
representing a return on such investments, continue to be recognised in
profit or loss as other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

in fair value.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in the ‘Net
Trading Income’ line in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses
('ECL') associated with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised
cost and FVOCI and with the exposure arising from loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts. The Group recognises a loss allowance
for such losses at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

- An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by
evaluating a range of possible outcomes;.

- The time value of money; and

- Reasonable and supportable information that is available without

undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past event, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual
cash flows of loans to customers. When this happens, the Group assesses
whether or not the new terms are substantially different of the original
terms. The Group does this by considering, among others, the following
factors:

- If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the modification
merely reduces the contractual cash flows to amounts the borrower is
expected to be able to pay.

- Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as profit
share/equity-based return that substantially affects the risk profile of
the loan.

Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is not in
financial difficult.

- Significant change in the interest rate.
- Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

- Insertion of collateral, other security or credit enhancements that
significantly affect the credit risk associated with the loan.

15
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2.5

Financial assets (Continued)

(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

(iv)
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If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognizes the
original financial asset and recognises a 'new' asset at fair value and
recalculates a new effective interest rate for the asset. The date of
renegotiation is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition of impairment calculation purposes, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk
has occurred. However, the Group also assesses whether the new
financial asset recognised is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial
recognition, especially in circumstances whether the renegotiation
was driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount are also
recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised cash
flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original
effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

The impact of modifications of financial assets on the expected
credit loss calculation is discussed in note 3.1.10.

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognized when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets have
expired, or when they have been transferred and either (i) the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the Group
has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities and transfers
substantially all of the risks and rewards. These transactions are
accounted for as 'pass through' transfers that result in derecognition
if the Group:

(a) has no obligation to make payments unless it collects
equivalent amounts from the assets;

(b) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(c) has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the assets
without material delay.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.6 Financial liabilities

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are classified
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for:

- Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities held for
trading (e.g. short positions in the trading book) and other
financial liabilities designated as such at initial recognition. Gains
or losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss are presented partially in other comprehensive
income (the amount of change in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability, which is determined as the amount that is not
attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise to
market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch, in
which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss;

- Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets
which did not qualify for derecognition or when the continuing
involvement approach applies. When the transfer of financial
asset did not qualify for derecognition, a financial liability is
recognised for the consideration received for the transfer. In
subsequent periods, the Group recognises any expense incurred
on the financial liability; when continuing involvement approach
applies; and

- Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

(i) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognized when they are extinguished (i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of debt
instruments with substantially different terms, as well as substantial
modifications of the terms of existing financial liabilities, are
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability
and the recognition of a new financial liability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at least 10%
different from the discounted present value of the remaining cash
flows of the original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative
factors, such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features attached
to the instrument and change in covenants are also taken into
consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or modification of
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred
are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment. If the
exchange or modification is not accounted for as an extinguishment,
any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liability
and are amortised over the remaining term of the modified liability.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

2.9

Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- The amount of the loss allowance; and

- The premium received on initial recognition less income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of loss allowance (calculated as described in note 3.1.4). The Group
has not provided any commitment to provide loans at a below-market
interest rate, or that can be settled net in cash or by delivering or
issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank's functional currency and
the Group's presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.9
(b)

2.10

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transactions and balances (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign
currency and classified as FVOCI are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities
and other changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation
differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, and other changes in the
carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary items are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment revaluation
reserve in equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Bank premises represent those properties held for own use and are treated
as finance lease since the costs of land and building elements of the
leasehold properties cannot be allocated reliably at the inception of the
lease. Bank premises are stated at valuation made in prior years less
accumulated depreciation charge and impairment losses.

On adoption of HKAS 16 entities that measured property, plant and
equipment based on revaluation performed prior to 30 September 1995
were exempted from the requirement to make regular revaluations
prospectively, provided that these entities did not measure their property,
plant and equipment using the revaluation model subsequent to 1995.

Effective from 30 September 1995, no further revaluations of bank premises
have been carried out. The Group has adopted the transitional provision in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, which provides exemption from the need to
make regular revaluation of bank premises.

The revalued amount made prior to 30 September 1995 became a deemed
cost as the revaluation date for subsequent measurement under HKAS 16.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of
the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Bank premises Bank premises are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Portion of the bank premises value
attributable to the land element is depreciated over
the lease term, while portion attributable to the
building element is depreciated on a straight line

basis over the remaining portion of the useful life.

Leasehold
improvements

Remaining portion of the useful life of the bank
premises.

Furniture, fixtures  Furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost

& equipment less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is calculated at 10%
per annum on a reducing balance basis after an initial
provision of 20% on cost in the year of purchase.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

2.10

2.11

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the consolidated
Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value
assessed by professional valuers on the basis of open market value. If
information of open market value is not available, alternative valuation
methods are used such as recent prices on less active markets or
discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with valuation standards on properties published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The item is stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to generate
economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
under HKAS 16 "Property, Plant and Equipment". However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the
gain is recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously
debited.
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2.12

2.13
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation, but are tested annually for impairment and are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets
other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in equity.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period in the country where the company's subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of
property, plant and equipment, revaluation of bank premises and tax
losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The tax effects of income tax losses available for carry forward are
recognised as an asset when it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which these losses can be utilised.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

Group companies offer defined contribution mandatory provident
funds to all eligible employees of the Group. The funds are provided
through payments to trustee-administered funds.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions to
publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

(c) Long service payments

The Group's eligible employees who have completed a required
number of years of service to the Group are eligible for long service
payments under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance in the event
of the termination of their employment, provided that such termination
meets the circumstances specified in the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future long
service payments expected to be made. The provision is based on the
best estimate of the probable future payments which have been earned
by the employees from their service to the Group to the end of the
reporting period.

Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if that party controls, jointly controls or has significant
influence over the Group; is a member of the same financial reporting
group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; is an associate
or a joint venture of the Group; is a key management personnel of the
Group or parents, or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely than not

that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated.
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2.16

2.17

Provisions (Continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditure
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks
and central bank, placements with banks and exchange fund papers
with original maturities of three months or less, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.18 Leases

23

As explained in note 2.1.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new
policy is described below and the impact of the change in note 2.1.2.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership not being transferred to the Group as
lessee, were classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. For leases of real estate for which the
Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and to treat these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of
the following lease payments:

- Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any
lease incentives receivable

- Variable lease payment that are based on a index or a rate,
initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement
date

- Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual
value guarantees

- The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonable
certain to exercise that option, and

- Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
2.18 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group uses recent third-
party financing received as a starting point, where possible, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since the receipt of third party
financing. Where recent third-party financing does not exist, the Group
uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate adjusted
for credit risk for the leases and makes adjustments for factors specific to
the lease.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received,

- any initial direct costs, and

- restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful
life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonable
certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated
over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases with low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-
value leases comprise computer equipment and small items of office
furniture.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Financial Risk Management

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities
involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of
risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the financial business, and the
operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The Group's
aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these
risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The
Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management policies are approved by the Board of Directors. Financial
risks are identified, evaluated and managed in close co-operation with the
Group's operating units. The Board provides written policies or guidelines
covering areas, such as credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk. In
addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and
other operational risks. Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate and other
price risks.

24



3 WMHEREREHE (8

31

EEERE

FEERZEERRE - TRER G TR REHE
(AR T E SRS (B B R - &K E5¢
PEREREENTE—E P Z I BUEEE -
AT e A — S B R PR
AFAFEZIER - FILEEEE /O
EEERANE - FEAEZERE TR
o MBEEARTRIN B LT > PIaEK
RIETRELEERRE - FEEERE 2 EH A E
ERFTARAREZ B AT RS REH
IEHE s =

EEEREH

EEHE P 2 FEEE R EREEF
HVEH - Ry R EHE AR 50 T S A Rt
BATHE o FE BHAAENRE SR ABERK
NEHA R AT 3R B K 2 B B IR
REMRILEERBIERE - 2% E b U5
FUEAZE - WHYF 8 TR 1352 T FH Sy 2 A
e

EEE bR AYE Z B ) B B R KR
AATMEEERHE A 2 e IEHE
T RN EER EZ FERIRE > S E
BOURYEINAE DAAUSHE A i e A SR Z
B AFEIRITHEH

(FF) &M

SEEE R 2 R R LR 4

51 o BRI Z EEARA an A Ry -

- EEREEYIE IS
- BRI R
- fEE

F PGB AT - Lot > £E
FOEEEIE AR S0 REE R E

W ETE AR G T HOREIMTE -

(4) BEEARIAE

ETRZ FHANEREE AR
B HER - BREFERE
FIIRTS S EIFTE A P A RE ST 5
HRIET B =HR GRS A AT
HReE - HEE R BLBGRAHE - kR
PSS AR R SR B 3 A 8¢ 2 & T PRet
A RES = F R E KRS T | [
FEETHERE SR JERE » HARRHZ

EFRE

HEFA SR At Z A L E R A -

BRI Ry LUK

R 2 WA IR A

PEIREE RSP
AETHEF ZRARIER T - $HIE%
HEREZEEmE - £EZBERK
FREIF AR AYE 2 4888 > 281 I RE 2 IS
REEEOR FRIE Z SEEE RV RS
TMEEARETREREFIRFIEEE

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

31

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty causes a financial loss to the
Group by failing to discharge an obligation. Adverse changes in the
economy, or in the health of a particular customer, could result in losses
that are different from those provided for at the end of reporting period.
Management therefore carefully manages its exposure to credit risk. Credit
exposures arise principally in loans and advances. There is also credit risk
in off-balance sheet financial arrangements such as loan commitments. The
credit risk management and control are performed by all responsible staff
under close supervision by senior management.

Credit risk management

The Group manages concentrations of credit risk wherever they are
identified — in particular, to individual counterparties and groups, and to
industries. The Group structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by
placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in relation to one borrower,
or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Such risks are monitored
on a continuous basis and subject to periodic or ad hoc reviews, when
considered necessary.

Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of
borrowers and potential borrowers to meet interest and capital repayment
obligations and by changing these lending limits where appropriate.
Exposure to credit risk is also managed in part by obtaining collateral and
corporate and personal guarantees from the borrowers.

(a) Collateral

The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific
classes of collateral. The principal collateral types for loans and
advances are :

- Mortgages over residential and commercial properties;
- Charges over equities; and

- Pledges over deposits.

Loans and advances to customers are generally secured. In addition,
the Group will seek additional collateral from the counterparty as
soon as impairment indicators are noticed for the relevant individual
loans and advances.

(b) Credit-related commitments

The primary purpose of these instruments is to ensure that funds are
available to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby letters of
credit - which represent irrevocable assurances that the Group will
make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its
obligations to third parties carry the same credit risk as loans.
Documentary and commercial letters of credit - which are written
undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorising a third
party to draw drafts on the Group up to a stipulated amount under
specific terms and conditions - are secured by the underlying
collaterals provided by the borrowers.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of
authorisations to extend credit in the form of loans, guarantees or
letters of credit. With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend
credit, the Group is potentially exposed to loss in an amount equal to
the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of loss is
less than the total unused commitments, as most commitments to
extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining specific
credit standards.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.2 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit

enhancements

The Group

Maximum exposure

Credit risk exposures relating to on-
balance sheet assets are as follows:
Balances with banks and central bank
Placements with banks
Investment debt securities measured at
FVOCI
Loans and advances to customers :

Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts

- Mortgages

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies

- Small and medium size
enterprises (SMEs)

Credit risk exposures relating to off-
balance sheet items are as follows:
- Financial guarantees
- Loan commitments and other
credit related liabilities

At 31 December

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS
10,898,526 168,975,215
607,169,434 959,097,432
298,877,119 -
4,791,334 2,546,069
282,166 3,559,766
154,333,955 164,577,360
6,999,966 3,286,701
- 4,000,000
1,527,432 4,781,555

1,084,879,932

1,310,824,098

The above table represents a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group at 31 December 2019 and 2018, without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements attached. For on-balance sheet
assets, the exposures set out above are based on net carrying amounts as

reported in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Management is confident in its ability to continue to control and sustain
minimal exposure of credit risk to the Group resulting from its loan and
advances portfolio based on the following :

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is categorised in the top grade
of the internal rating system (2018 : 100%);

- Mortgage loans and properties investment loans, which represent the
majority of the loans and advances portfolio, are backed by collateral;

- 100% of the loans and advances portfolio is considered to be neither past

due nor impaired (2018 : 100%); and

advances.

The Group has a stringent selection process in granting loans and

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements

The Group uses a variety of techniques to reduce the credit risk arising from
its lending activities. Enforceable legal documentation establishes the Group's
direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse to any collateral, security or

other credit enhancements provided.
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credit enhancements (Continued)

Credit risk mitigation, collateral and other credit enhancements
(Continued)

The table below describes the nature of collateral held and their
financial effect by class of financial asset:

Balances and These exposures are generally considered to be
placements with low credit risk due to the nature of the
banks counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought

on these balances.

Balances with These exposures are the outstanding balances at

central bank the Hong Kong exchange fund settlement account
with Hong Kong Monetary Authority, which are
unsecured. They are considered to be of very low
credit risk due to the nature of the counterparty.

Investment debt These exposures comprise solely of investments

securities in exchange fund bills issued by the Hong Kong

measured at government and are considered to be very low

FVOCI credit risk due to the nature of the issuer.
Exchange fund bills are issued on unsecured
basis.

Loans and These exposures are secured, partially secured or

advances unsecured depending on the type of collateral and

type of facilities offered to customers. The major
types of collateral taken include residential
properties, other properties, bank deposits and
shares. Personal guarantees are also obtained by
the Group for credit enhancement. As at 31
December 2019, the collateral coverage of loans
and advances to customers is 100% (2018:

100%).
Contingent The components and nature of contingent
liabilities and liabilities and commitments are disclosed in Note
commitments 24. Regarding the commitments that are

unconditionally cancellable without prior notice,
the Group would withdraw the credit facilities
extended to borrowers in case their credit quality
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do
not expose the Group to significant credit risk. As
at 31 December 2019, the collateral coverage of
contingent liabilities and commitments is 100%
(2018: 98.86%).

While the credit risk of balances with central bank and the investment
debt securities measured at FVOCI are considered to be very low, as
stated in the above analysis, the credit risk, expected credit loss
measurement and loss allowances of loans and advances, contingent
liabilities and commitments and balances and placements with banks
are analysed in detail from note 3.1.3 to note 3.1.8.

27



3 HBERER (&)

31

3.1.3

EEEE(S)

& PR SR T ISR TR
B PGSR T RISES ROt T -

£H The Group

FEHEIHSRE

Neither past due nor impaired

FA20194E K 20184F12 31 H » ST B {E R
TBME 2 BRI R SR T R SRR R 2
FORRR » Fakell & IR I FIRE K
FeSRAT RIS 2 (B B A B R B FTR 2 N
HREPAR ST R -

TR FE P R B0 R RS (B B AR T S U
fATEEE (20184F © f1 - JA20194E12H31HE
B R A EAHEER (20184F ¢ #% ) SUL[EIERE
(20184 : fiE) -

HHAfSHBATRE

MBS ERIEOSRE T —1F B WA
RIS S s A = B B b o PR AR
, BERIT

- WIRTESRIR R S A E FRE Z SR TR A

EIPEEET o HEREN EAS AR TR
Zg% = °

- R B VAT (5 A e b 5% AL B
Wb RUSEELRHER E SRR o E
WAFHAREREEHREZTA -

- R T BB (SRR R
R -

- FIPEE R TR 2 RS R A1 2{E A
ZTREFRE e B R EUN
FEHIE AR P AR 12{E B N ATRE 34 £ 2
BYEEEZH T - BB G S
il T B FHIE R T R R U R TN
{EHER -

- IR E A B R EERE O BHIHE R
BRI ETE S EATIE LA -

- BABUREE R A EHRE . M EETS
FEWTIETESR RIFAE(S FUB(E 2 SR 2 -
B R AR R R U 2 TS
PR (5B 3P ER) -

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

31

3.1.3

3.14

Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances and placements with banks

Loans and advances and placements with banks are summarised as
follows :

2019412H31H 2018F12831H

31 December 2019 31 December 2018

KERGK  $RITRIZEIRIL BRBGK SRITEIZFEHIK
Loans and Loans and

advances to Placements advances to Placements

customers with banks customers with banks

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

166,407,421 607,169,434 173,969,896 959,097,432

There were no loans and advances and placements with banks that
were past due but not impaired nor loans and advances that were
impaired at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The credit quality of the
portfolio of loans and advances and placements with banks that were
neither past due nor impaired was of satisfactory grading by reference
to the internal rating system adopted by the Group.

During the year, the Group did not obtain any assets by taking
possession of collateral held as security (2018 : Nil). The Group has
no rescheduled loans (2018 : Nil) nor repossessed assets (2018 : Nil)
as at 31 December 2019.

Expected credit loss measuremnet

HKFRS 9 outlines a 'three-stage' model for impairment based on
changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarized
below:

- A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in 'Stage 1' and has its credit risk
continuously monitored by the Group.

- If a significant increase in credit risk ('SICR') since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
'Stage 2' but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

- If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to 'Stage 3'.

- Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that
result from default events possible within the next 12 months.
Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured based on
expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

- A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with
HKFRS 9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

- Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit-impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis (Stage 3).
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3.1.4 Expected credit loss measuremnet (Continued)
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The 'three-stage' model for impairment based on changes in credit
quality under HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets) is summarized in the following table:

(initial recognition)
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12-month expected credit losses
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The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in
addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk when one or more of the following
qualitative or backstop criteria have been met:

Qualitative criteria:

For retail mortgages or loans, if the borrower meets one or more of
the following criteria:

- In short-term forbearance
- Direct debit cancellation
- Extension to the terms granted

- Previous arrears within the last 12 months

For corporate lendings and treasury instruments, if the borrower is on
the Watchlist and the lending meets one or more of the following
criteria:

- Significant adverse changes in business, financial and/or
economic conditions in which the borrower operates

- Actual or expected forbearance or restructuring

- Actual or expected significant adverse change in operating
results of the borrower

- Significant change in collateral value which is expected to
increase the risk of default

- Early signs of cashflow/liquidity problems such as delay in
servicing of loans

Backstop

A backstop is applied and the financial instrument considered to
have experienced a significant increase in credit risk if the borrower
is more than 30 days past due on its contractual payments.

The assessment of SICR incorporates forward-looking information
and is performed at annual credit assessment of each loan/lending
and at the end of financial year for all financial instruments held by
the Group. The criteria used to identify SICR are monitored and
reviewed periodically for appropriateness by the Group.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.5 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is fully
aligned with the definition of credit-impaired, when it meets one or more
of the following criteria:

Quantitative criteria

The borrower is more than 90 days past due on its contractual payments.

Qualitative criteria:

The borrower meets unlikeliness to pay criteria, which indicates the
borrower is in significant financial difficulty. These are instances where:

- The borrower is insolvent

- There are cash flow difficulties experienced by the borrower
- The borrower is in breach of loan covenants or conditions

- The borrower is probable to initiate bankruptcy proceedings
- The borrower's competitive position has deteriorated

- The borrower is downgraded below investment grade level

The criteria listed above have been applied to all financial instruments
held by the Group and are consistent with the definition of default used
for internal credit risk management purposes. The default definition has
been applied consistently to model the Probability of Default (PD),
Exposure at Default (EAD) and Loss given Default (LGD) throughout
the Group’s expected loss calculations.

3.1.6 Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process

The Group assesses the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) individually for
each financial asset. The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (12M)
or Lifetime basis depending on whether a significant increase in credit
risk has occurred since initial recognition or whether an asset is
considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit losses are the
discounted product of the Probability of Default (PD), Exposure at
Default (EAD), and Loss Given default (LGD), defined as follows:

- The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on its
financial obligation (as per "Definition of default and credit-
impaired" above), either over the next 12 months (12M PD), or over
the remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (12M EAD) or over the
remaining lifetime (Lifetime PD) of the obligation.

- Loss Given Default (LGD) represents the Group's expectation of the
extent of loss on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of
counterparty, type and seniority of claim and availability of
collateral or other credit support.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for each
future month and for each individual exposure. These three components
are multiplied together and discounted back to the reporting date and
summed. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rate or an approximation thereof.
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Credit risk (Continued)

Measuring ECL - Explanation of assessment process (Continued)

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop
on each exposure from the point of initial recognition throughout the
lifetime of each loan. The maturity profile is based on historical
observed data and is estimated individually based on the Group's
knowledge of each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the
expected payment profile, which varies by each loan.

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These vary according
to each loan exposure.

- For secured products, this is primarily based on collateral type
and projected collateral values, historical discounts to
market/book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and
recovery costs observed.

- For unsecured products, LGD's are typically set at each loan,
which are influenced by collection strategies, including
contracted debt sales and price.

ECL measurement

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit losses for each loan exposure.

As the Group's loan portfolio consists of limited number of borrowers
that are of different nature and background, the economic variables
and their associated impact on the PD, EAD and LGD of each
exposure vary. Judgment on individual loans of such factors has been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables are
made by the Credit Department and approved by the Credit
Committee. Each individual loan exposure is analysed based on the
historical records and future outlooks as influenced by the projected
economic factors, such as house price index, GDP, interest rate trend
and unemployment rate which are applicable to each exposure on a
case by case basis.

As with any economic forecast, the projections and likelihoods of
occurrence are subject to a degree of inherent uncertainty and
therefore the actual outcomes may be significantly different to those
projected. The Group considers these forecasts to represent its best
estimate of the possible outcomes.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

ECL measurement (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk — Financial instruments
subject to impairment

The following tables contain the analysis of the credit risk
exposure of financial instruments for which are subject to ECL
assessment. The gross carrying amount of financial assets below

15 ZN I

also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk on

these assets.

H) BFERGEK (a) Loans and advances to customers
2019
TEHA(S B4 MEE: ECL staging
FIEE: EE2MEEL EIFEER
REAFEY RETENE REFEEHEE BATR4EEH
EREL FAERR EHE% BENSRHEE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
EREHR Credit grade
LB Performing 166,407,421 - - - 166,407,421
FEHIAA%E Gross carrying amount 166,407,421 - - - 166,407,421
THHME F1E%#EM  ECL allowance - - - - _
2018
TRHEAS FRRFEE: ECL staging
EIPEEE EAEEL HIMEE
REATEY BEFENE BREFEPREE BACZRLEEH
IELEEEVS HERHER SRR BENSRHEE HEEt
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
BEHEHR Credit grade
R BT Performing 173,969,896 - - - 173,969,896
HRETHIAEEE Gross carrying amount 173,969,896 - - - 173,969,896
FEHERAERH  ECL allowance - - . . .
(2) #ER - REERKERRE (b) Guarantees, contingent liabilities and loan commitments
2019
TEHA(S B4 MEE: ECL staging
SIFEE F2MEE HFIREE
REAFER REFENE BREFEPHEE BATDZR4EEH
ERER HEHBER EHEL BENSREE YT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BEREHR Credit grade
T B Performing 1,527,432 - - - 1,527,432
HE THI4A 4 Gross carrying amount 1,527,432 - - - 1,527,432
THEAE R #EHF  ECL allowance - - : - ,
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BEREH Credit grade

FIR RAT Performing

IR I 4EEE Gross carrying amount
THEH{E AR #EH  ECL allowance

(R) FRFEERIBEEE

EREH Credit grade
KR Performing

fRTE4REH Gross carrying amount
THAEAiE5HER  ECL allowance
BEREH Credit grade

TR BT Performing

fRTEI4REE Gross carrying amount
THHAGHEJHER ECL allowance
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R - B ATRA 2R 2 B E 1
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.1 Credit risk (Continued)
3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

(b)  Guarantees, contingent liabilities and loan commitments

(Continued)
2018
TEHA(S B4 MEE: ECL staging
SE1FBEL SE2FBEL FIMEE
RERTEY RETENHE BEFENTEN BACRERSH
EREE FEREE EREX BRENSHERE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
8,781,555 - - - 8,781,555
8,781,555 - - . 8,781,555
(c) Balances and placements with banks
2019
THHE(S FBHR&IEEE ECL staging
SE1FEE EE2MEEL EX] 2
REREY BETENE BEFEHEN BACRERGSH
EREEX FAERR EHHEX BENESHEE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
610,256,156 - - - 610,256,156
610,256,156 - - - 610,256,156
2018
TEHA(E FH{BLMBEY ECL staging
FIFEE: E2MEE: EX] 2l
RERTEN REFENE BEFEEREE BACRERESH
EREEX FAfE 1RR EHHEX BENESREE et
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Pruchased credit
12-month ECL Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
961,807,400 - - - 961,807,400
961,807,400 - - - 961,807,400

The Group's policies regarding obtaining collateral have not
significantly changed during the reporting period and there has
been no significant change in the overall quality of the collateral
held by the Group since the prior period.

The Group’s financial assets that are secured have sufficiently low
“loan to value” (LTV) ratios, which result in no loss allowance
being recognised in accordance with the Group’s expected credit
loss model.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.7 ECL measurement (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance for the
Group include the following items:

1) House price index, given the significant impact it has on
mortgage collateral valuations; and

(i1) Stock market index, given the significant impact it has on
listed share collateral valuations.

Set out below are the changes to the ECL as at 31 December 2019 that
would result from reasonably possible changes in these parameters
from the actual assumptions used in the Group's economic variable
assumptions (for example, the impact on ECL of each of upward or
downward movements in house price index and stock market index):

ER{E#I5E  House price index

-20% A& No change +20%
H4 58 Hang Seng index
-10% 4% No change +10%

3.1.8 Loss allowance

34

The loss allowance can be impacted by a variety of factors, including:

- Transfers between ECL stages due to financial instruments
experiencing significant increases or decreases of credit risk
or becoming credit-impaired in the period, and the
consequent step up or step down between 12-month and
Lifetime ECL;

- Additional allowances for new financial instruments
recognised during the period, as well as releases for
financial instruments de-recognised in the period;

- Impact on the measurement of ECL due to changes in PDs,
EADs and LGDs in the period, arising from regular credit
assessments;

- Financial assets derecognized during the period and write-
offs of allowances related to assets that were written off
during the period.

The following tables explain the changes in the loss allowance
between the beginning and the end of the annual period:
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20184E12H31 B 2B %5

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2019
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2019

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2018
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2018

(2) R REREIRERKRE

20191 B 1H Z /K 2EHE

BILEIE B < RS

AR ~ AR LY
W 2 B

TEAHAPN &R 1L HERD 2 Rl e

201912331 B2 iRk &M

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2019

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2019

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers

BIFER

BAER

BIER

BADESE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 1= R ER
DEATEE BECENE BECEEE 2 ShgE
ER%ER  HiEHE%R  HIEHEZX  Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- HEst
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
EIPEER B IR
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 i}%;ﬁ%
REATEEE 2EFENHE BEEEEE ShgE
EHE% HWEABREL  HEAEBX Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- HE=t
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
(b) Guarantees, contingent liabilities and loan commitments
EIFEE MR EL HEIFEEL B A EL34E
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 (& R ER
LEATEY BEFENHE BECEPHE 2 shEE
EHE%L HRERBKX HERAEAX Purchased
12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- et
ECL ECL ECL impaired Total
HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
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20185E12H31 H 2Bk #65

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2018

Transfer between ECL stages
Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2018

W) FRERE NI E SR

20194E1 A1 H 2%k

REAEFIE R 2

BAIR ~ BABRRELY
Wi 12 538
FEATAN SR RS 2 SRl

20194E12H31 B 2 i85 #45

20181 B 1H Z /K AEH

BILEMIE B < S

AR ~ ARSI LY
W B

TEAHAPN &R 1L HERD 2 Rl e

2018412531 B 2Bk #05

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2019
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs
Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2019

Loss allowance as at 1
January 2018
Transfer between ECL stages

Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs

Financial assets derecognised
during the period

Loss allowance as at 31
December 2018

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1 Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.8 Loss allowance (Continued)

(b) Guarantees, contingent liabilities and loan commitments

(Continued)

G SE2REEL IR B AL
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 1= R ER
EATEY BEFEDE BEFEIE ohsE
EHEL BMEHE%L  WEMEX Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- dEst

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$

(c) Balances and placements with banks

FEE PR BB mops
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 = PR ELY
EATEY BEFENE 2ETENE 2 SHEE
fsRiE%  HIERE%  SEME%  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- 4=t

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$
EER  BNER BB o ops
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 S PR ERY
EATEY ZEEEYE RECEE 2 SREE
EHEL BIEMELX  HiEMHA%  Purchased

12-month Lifetime Lifetime credit- gt

ECL ECL ECL impaired Total

HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS HK$
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.1

3.1.10
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Credit risk (Continued)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it
has exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery include: (i) ceasing
enforcement activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method
is foreclosing on collateral and the value of the collateral is such
that there is no reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. However, there were no such assets being
written off during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Modification of financial assets

The Group sometimes modifies the terms of loans provided to
customers due to commercial renegotiations, or for distressed
loans, with a view to maximizing recovery.

Such restructuring activities include extended payment term
arrangements, payment holidays and payment forgiveness.
Restructuring policies and practices are based on indicators or
criteria which, in the judgement of management, indicate that
payment will most likely continue. These policies are kept under
continuous review. Restructuring is most commonly applied to
term loans.

The risk of default of such assets after modification is assessed at
the reporting date and compared with the risk under the original
terms at initial recognition, when the modification is not
substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the original
asset. The Group monitors the subsequent performance of
modified assets. The Group may determine that the credit risk has
significantly improved after restructuring. As at 31 December
2019, the Group does not have any of such assets.

The Group continues to monitor if there is a subsequent
significant increase in credit risk in relation to such assets
through the use of specific models for modified assets.
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The Group

At 31 December 2019

Placements with banks

Investment debt securities
measured at FVOCI

Loans and advances to
customers :

Loans to individuals :
- Overdrafts

- Mortgages

Finan
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3.1.11

@

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies

- SMEs

At 31 December 2018

Placements with banks

Loans and advances to
customers :

Loans to individuals :

- Overdrafts
- Mortgages

Loans to corporate entities :

- Investment companies

- SMEs

cial Risk Management (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

Geographical sectors

The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by geographical
region as of 31 December 2019 and 2018. For this distribution, the
Group has allocated exposures to regions based on the country of
domicile of its counterparties. Credit risk exposure by geographical
sectors is classified according to the location of counterparties after
taking into account the transfer of risk.

oo KlE&
EFAERRI
Asia Pacific
EHH excluding BN sk
Hong Kong Hong Kong Europe Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
70,000,000 537,169,434 - 607,169,434
298,877,119 - - 298,877,119
4,791,334 - - 4,791,334
282,166 - - 282,166
154,333,955 - - 154,333,955
6,999,966 - - 6,999,966
535,284,540 537,169,434 - 1,072,453,974
30,000,000 729,097,432 200,000,000 959,097,432
2,546,069 - - 2,546,069
3,559,766 - - 3,559,766
164,577,360 - - 164,577,360
3,286,701 - - 3,286,701
203,969,896 729,097,432 200,000,000 1,133,067,328
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Credit risk (Continued)

3.1.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(Continued)
(b) Industry sectors
The following table sets out the breakdown of the Group's main credit
exposure at their carrying amounts, as categorised by the industry sectors
of its counterparties.
The Group
K
WAT5t%RE  Whole-sale KEAH]
B Z Financial  and retail Investment EPN 4a%E
Sovereign institutions trade companies Individuals Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
As at 31 December 2019
Placements with
banks - 607,169,434 - - - 607,169,434
Investment debt
securities measured
at FVOCI
298,877,119 - - - - 298,877,119
Loans and advances
to customers :
Loans to individuals
- Overdrafts - - - - 4,791,334 4,791,334
- Mortgages - - - - 282,166 282,166
Loans to corporate
entities :
- Investment
companies - - - 154,333,955 - 154,333,955
- SMEs - - 6,999,966 - - 6,999,966
298,877,119 607,169,434 6,999,966 154,333,955 5,073,500 1,072,453,974
As at 31 December 2018
Placements with
banks - 959,097,432 - - - 959,097,432
Loans and advances
to customers :
Loans to individuals
- Overdrafts - - - - 2,546,069 2,546,069
- Mortgages - - - - 3,559,766 3,559,766
Loans to corporate
entities :
- Investment
companies - - - 164,577,360 - 164,577,360
- SMEs - - 3,286,701 - - 3,286,701
- 959,097,432

3,286,701
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164,577,360

6,105,835

1,133,067,328
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Market risk

The Group takes on minimal exposure to market risks, which is the
risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency
and equity products, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of
market rates or prices such as interest rates, credit spreads, foreign
exchange rates and equity prices.

The Group performs periodic stress tests to monitor its exposures
to market risks. Stress tests provide an indication of the potential
size of losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by the Group are in general risk factor stress
testing, where stress movements are applied to risk category.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by senior management
and by Board Committees. The stress testing is tailored to the
business and typically uses scenario analysis.

Sensitivity analysis for 2019 and 2018

As at 31 December 2019, no significant open positions in foreign
currencies were taken, hence the net interest income for foreign
currencies were not sensitive to interest rate changes. Interest
sensitivity applies mainly to Hong Kong Dollar ("HKD') positions,
whereby if the HKD market interest rates had been 50 basis points
lower with other variables held constant, the Group's profit after
tax for the year and reserves would have been HK$3,692,092
(2018: HK$3,762,462) lower. This arose as a result of lower net
interest income earned on HKD financial instruments.

The Group's equity risk position arises mainly from the holdings of
equity securities all being classified as financial assets measured at
FVOCI, the majority of which being listed in Hong Kong. Such
holdings are held for long term investment purpose. At 31
December 2019, if Hang Seng Index had been 10% lower (2018:
10% lower) with all other variables held constant and the equity
instruments moved according to the historical correlation with the
index, the Group's investment revaluation reserve would be
HK$569,522 lower (2018: HK$767,341 lower). The Group's
equity securities measured at FVOCI would be HK$569,522 lower
(2018: HK$767,341 lower).

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, majority of the Group's financial
assets and liabilities are denominated in HKD or United States
dollars ('USD') and as HKD is pegged to the USD, therefore the
Group is not exposed to significant currency risk.

The method and assumption used on the above sensitivity analysis
on interest rate risk and equity price risk is performed on the same
basis for both 2019 and 2018.
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3.2 THEEE &) 3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 HMEER 3.2.2 Foreign exchange
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The Group takes on exposure to effects of fluctuations in the prevailing
foreign currency exchange rates on its financial position and cash
flows. The table below summarises the Group's exposure to foreign
currency exchange rate risk at 31 December. Included in the table are
the Group's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by
currency.

BEEAEEZARINEE B EREZ O Concentrations of currency risk on-and off-balance sheet items
Py e At HaEH
HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
£H The Group
R20194£12H31H At 31 December 2019
BE Assets
EEEIR 4 B A e 2 Cash and balances with banks 283,470,982 4,362,576 394,572 288,228,130
et G SHEENN! Placements with banks maturing
EVIEIEIAE between one and twelve months 315,000,000 17,892,861 332,892,861
B EGE  EARETE Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 184,093,454 52,488 57 184,145,999
DI EESEHE Investment securities measured at
SEhat AEAER UL FVOCI
KA S 306,964,072 53,309 307,017,381
Y > BB Property, plant and equipment 72,272,044 72,272,044
&Y Investment properties 324,100,000 324,100,000
BEUZ O] > Fik Tax recoverable 105,576 105,576
BEAET Total assets 1,486,006,128 22,361,234 394,629 1,508,761,991
=L Liabilities
ZEE Deposits from customers 730,185,514 21,814,989 141,242 752,141,745
Hith & E & EH Other liabilities and provisions 22,233,643 70,390 113 22,304,146
IEIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 7,493,314 7,493,314
=Ui-e=v-1n Total liabilities 759,912,471 21,885,379 141,355 781,939,205
BEAERNFHE Net on-balance sheet position 726,093,657 475,855 253,274 726,822,786
EERE Credit commitments 1,527,432 1,527,432
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.2  Market risk (Continued)

3.2.2 Foreign exchange (Continued)

iy I HAtr HH%H
HK Dollars US Dollars Others Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

The Group
At 31 December 2018
Assets
Cash and balances with banks 871,207,096 1,887,989 451,601 873,546,686
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 245,000,000 12,250,956 - 257,250,956
Loans and advances to customers
and other accounts 177,328,017 42,574 58 177,370,649
Investment securities measured at
FVOCI

8,783,069 58,764 - 8,841,833
Property, plant and equipment 72,655,228 - - 72,655,228
Investment properties 329,900,000 - - 329,900,000
Tax recoverable 115,003 - - 115,003
Total assets 1,704,988,413 14,240,283 451,659 1,719,680,355
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 951,457,747 13,783,125 175,782 965,416,654
Other liabilities and provisions 23,681,914 59,055 292,912 24,033,881
Deferred tax liabilities 6,266,435 - - 6,266,435
Total liabilities 981,406,096 13,842,180 468,694 995,716,970
Net on-balance sheet position 723,582,317 398,103 (17,035) 723,963,385
Credit commitments 7,793,701 - 987,854 8,781,555
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.2 Market risk (Continued)

3.2.3 Interest rate risk

Interest sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items - repricing
analysis

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value
interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group takes on exposure to the
effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates on both its
fair value and cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such
changes but may reduce or create losses in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board sets limits on the level of mismatch of interest rate repricing that
may be undertaken, which is monitored daily by senior management.

The table below summarises the Group's exposure to interest rate risks. Included
in the table are the Group's assets amd liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised
by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

£H The Group
3Z12 1%E5 feEh ) E|S=V58
HEH LA 1238 H @A e 54 Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest k|
1 month months months years  S.years bearing Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
R20194E£12H8 At 31 December
31H 2019
=73 Assets
BEFEREREF Cash and balances
GBS with banks 274,787,368 - - - - 13,440,762 288,228,130
et e EIES Placements with
N ESIV) banks maturing
& A A EIHA between one and
twelve months - 317,059,327 15,833,534 - - - 332,892,861
2 ERGR R E Loans and advances
L HETH to customers and
other accounts 27,905,806 138,501,615 - - - 17,738,578 184,145,999
AN EE = Investment securities
= HEEEE measured at FVOCI
AHAEREUL
24 ey g
i Z AR 99,966,450 99,586,131 99,324,538 - - 8140262 307,017,381
H&zE Other assets - - - - - 396,477,620 396,477,620
BESE Total assets 402,659,624 555,147,073 115,158,072 - - 435,797,222 1,508,761,991
AaE Liabilities
ZPEER Deposits from
customers 504,262,015 113,894,149 27,837,133 - - 106,148,448 752,141,745
Hith & & Other liabilities 15,467 30,997 140,549 163,533 - 29,446,914 29,797,460
aEast Total liabilities 504,277,482 113,925,146 27,977,682 163,533 - 135,595,362 781,939,205
EaIER S Total interest
et sensitivity gap (101,617,858) 441,221,927 87,180,390  (163,533) -
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

32 WEEE @& 3.2 Market risk (Continued)
3.2.3 FIREE &) 3.2.3 Interest rate risk (Continued)
£H The Group
312 125 e JFEE
HEH LA 123{EH @A 4 S5 Non-
Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over interest 4azE
1 month months months years  Syears bearing ota
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS
R20184£12H At 31 December
31H 2018
B Assets
EFERESEF Cash and balances
IeEE= with banks 702,323,142 - - - 171,223,544 873,546,686
TERRPRRT I Placements with
FKIERY1ZE12{H banks maturing
HNEHA between one and
twelve months - 212,250,956 45,000,000 - - - 257,250,956
ZEE R . Loans and advances
fHRETE to customers and
other accounts 113,709,999 60,259,897 - - - 3,400,753 177,370,649
AN EEET Investment securities
£ HHEEHE  measured at FVOCI
)\/H—ﬁ%? g
Ry - - - - - 8,841,833 8,841,833
At Other assets - - - - - 402,670231 402,670,231
HELS Total assets 816,033,141 272,510,853 45,000,000 ; - 586,136,361  1,719,680,355
aff Liabilities
EEFE Deposits from
customers 765,356,566 62,648,597 51,400,000 - - 86,011,491 965,416,654
Hoft Other liabilities ; - - - - 30,300,316 30,300,316
=U=t=v-i8 Total liabilities 765,356,566 62,648,597 51,400,000 - - 116,311,807 995,716,970
=G EZzZ  Total interest
& sensitivity gap 50,676,575 209,862,256 (6,400,000) - -
33 REESEE 3.3 Liquidity Risk

REEsEEEE N EEAREENEELAR
FrEAZHeREZ RS  Fil LEEA
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Liquidity risk arises from the mismatch in the cash flows arising
from on-balance sheet assets and liabilities, plus the settlement
characteristics of off-balance sheet activities.

IZ);ILED‘EH‘@EEEEF?EEEZ&%EE EiREE
%)%ﬁﬂﬂ:/%ZE(%ﬁ&?a%l TR >
BT LR

- BRPEARACR SRR O O W B S EORRE BN

The Group's liquidity management process, as closely monitored
by senior management in accordance with policies and guidelines
approved by the Board, includes the following tasks :

- day-to-day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to

ensure that requirements can be met;

- MR AEEH L RS DB E S B EE R
PEEHETER £ 8 2 AR TR 2 (R

- maintaining adequate amount of highly marketable assets that
can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
interruption to cash flow;

- HIRNE ROAPIRUE BRI SRR+ &

- monitoring liquidity ratios against internal and regulatory
requirements; and

+

- BHEEERIH SRR R E -

- managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.
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£H The Group

20194 At 31 December
128315 2019

=3 Assets

EfFIi4  Cashand

K f7iE  balances with
S banks

EHAPFL Placements with
[El%50H  banks maturing
FA1ZE12{E  between one and
HNEHE  twelve months

ZFhE Loans and

JHAMHEE  advances to

H customers and
other accounts

DAVANSEAE  Investment
fEEt8H  securities
HgE@EhE  measured at
AH Mg FVOCI
eyl

HEEs

Y3 » 5% Property, plant
RS and equipment

&Y Investment
properties

BEUS [ Tax recoverable

ZHEK

BEAS Total assets

afE Liabilities

% =175 Deposits from
customers

Hitr & f& K, Other liabilities

AEAfE and provisions

FHEAME  Lease liabilities

WRAEFRIE  Deferred tax
BE liabilities

AfEAE Total liabilities

FMEIE  Net liquidity
SEE gap

Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Monitoring and reporting take the form of maturity profile projections
for the next day, week and month respectively, as these are key periods
for liquidity management. Mismatches between medium-term assets and
liabilities together with the level and type of undrawn lending
commitments, overdraft facilities usage and contingent liabilities are also
monitored under the usual conservative strategy of the Group.

3.3.1 Maturity analysis

The table on the following page analyses the Group's assets and liabilities
into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at end of
the reporting period to the contractual maturity date.

RTHA HiEH LAA 123 H 3ZEI12{EAH 1250 A 5

Repayable on Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over HEFIHA H HAKE
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HKS$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$

13,951,557 274,276,573 - - - - - 288,228,130

- - 317,059,327 15,833,534 - - - 332,892,861

40,630,673 1,313,104 2,768,469 20,552,060 88,439,748 29,547,140 894,805 184,145,999

- 99,966,450 99,586,131 99,324,538 - - 8,140,262 307,017,381

R - - - - - 72,272,044 72,272,044

- - - - - - 324,100,000 324,100,000

- 45,832 - 59,744 - - - 105,576

54,582,230 375,601,959 419,413,927 135,769,876 88,439,748 29,547,140 405,407,111 1,508,761,991

500,219,590 110,190,873 113,894,149 27,837,133 - - - 752,141,745

3,829,490 1,746,617 3,296,534 11,777,334 1,303,625 - - 21,953,600

- 15,467 30,997 140,549 163,533 - - 350,546

R - - - - - 7,493,314 7,493,314

504,049,080 111,952,957 117,221,680 39,755,016 1,467,158 - 7,493,314 781,939,205

(449,466,850) 263,649,002 302,192,247 96,014,860 86,972,590 29,547,140 397,913,797 726,822,786
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The Group

At 31 December
2018

Assets

Cash and
balances with
banks

Placements with
banks maturing
between one and
twelve months

Loans and
advances to
customers and
other accounts

Investment
securities
measured at
FVOCI

Property, plant
and equipment

Investment
properties

Tax recoverable

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits from
customers

Other liabilities
and provisions

Deferred tax
liabilities
Total liabilities

Net liquidity
gap

Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.3  Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.3.1 Maturity profile (Continued)
Bigy UEAMA 123873 3%12{8A 1E 54 B S
Repayable on Up to 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over SEFIEA H “EEE
demand 1 month months months years 5 years Indefinite Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
171,700,209 701,346,477 - - - - - 873,546,686
- - 212,250,956 45,000,000 - - - 257,250,956
111,885,310 1,684,212 2,483,322 59,067,703 1,408,637 - 841,465 177,370,649
R - - - - - 8,841,833 8,841,833
- - - - - - 72,655,228 72,655,228
- - - - - - 329,900,000 329,900,000
- - - 115,003 - - - 115,003
283,585,519 703,530,689 214,734,278 104,182,706 1,408,637 - 412,238,526 1,719,680,355
848,704,146 2,663,910 62,648,598 51,400,000 - - - 965,416,654
5,859,097 2,391,420 3,136,188 11,076,469 1,570,707 - - 24,033,881
- - - - - - 6,266,435 6,266,435
854,563,243 5,055,330 65,784,786 62,476,469 1,570,707 - 6,266,435 995,716,970
(570,977,724) 698,475,359 148,949,492 41,706,237 (162,070) - 405,972,091 723,963,385
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

33 mEESEEE) 3.3  Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.3.2 T BAE R FAFEEEREE 3.3.2 Non-derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk
R EE

DU AR S AR R R S &I 2]
Ry IR R ECTAE M B R AR
TR B R EE R & S R E
FEZ BB © INRISNSIRZ 8
HHYEOARMIE RS E - e
I P2 PR AR AR R i A B
HEB RSB SR -

The table below presents the cash flows payable by the Group under non-
derivative financial liabilities and assets held for managing liquidity risk by
remaining contractual maturities as at the end of the reporting period. The
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows,
whereas the Group manages the inherent liquidity risk based on expected
undiscounted cash inflows.

EE The Group
HEH A 123 H 3ZE12{EH febiEpKa
Up to 1-3 3-12 More than Ak
1 month months months year [ota
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
#R2019F£12H31H At 31 December 2019
IETAEBRESRE Non-derivative cash flow
=00 Liabilities
ZFEFER Deposits from customers 610,410,463 113,894,149 27,837,133 - 752,141,745
Hir& & Other liabilities 5,653,869 3,570,415 9,541,735 1,303,624 20,069,643
=Ui=yE Total liabilities
(E&EHIE) (contractual maturity) 616,064,332 117,464,564 37,378,868 1,303,624 772,211,388
FIEEEREESE Assets held for managing
B EEELZIEAH) liquidity risk (contractual
maturity) 601,010,141 318,942,875 15,997,829 - 935,950,845
#20184E12H31H At 31 December 2018
IENTEBHESRE Non-derivative cash flow
=L Liabilities
B E{EE Deposits from customers 851,368,056 62,648,598 51,400,000 - 965,416,654
HAtr & Other liabilities 8,253,714 3,219,410 9,397,478 1,570,707 22,441,309
=Nt Total liabilities
(E&EHIH) (contractual maturity) 859,621,770 65,868,008 60,797,478 1,570,707 987,857,963
FfEEENENE SR Assets held for managing
b BEELEHIH) liquidity risk (contractual
maturity) 874,338,968 213,666,868 45,570,041 - 1,133,575,877

AR AR REAAE
FORIEZ BREATER S - FIFESE
Kt gL RATRE > U 2 5K
TE R AN 5 ZE AR R AR R SRR
o RIEH R EEAR] - —H0E
LB H FB—F A Z & P RGO
W - PR Z i s a
B R 7 EPRTIER 0 HH B AR e B AR 1
et -

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover outstanding loan
commitments include cash, balances with banks and central bank, items in the
course of collection and exchange fund bills; and placements with banks. In the
normal course of business, a proportion of customer loans contractually
repayable within one year will be extended. The portfolio of marketable
securities held provides further reserves to meet unexpected cash outflows.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)
3.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.3.3 Off-balance sheet items

The Group
LA
No later than EFHA H 4R
1 year Indetinite Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
At 31 December 2019
Loan commitments 1,527,432 - 1,527,432
At 31 December 2018
Loan commitments 3,793,701 - 3,793,701
Guarantees, acceptances and other
financial facilities
- Acceptances 696,627 - 696,627
- Guarantees and standby letters
of credit 4,000,000 - 4,000,000
- Documentary and commercial
letters of credit 291,227 - 291,227
Total 8,781,555 - 8,781,555

(a) Loan commitments

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Group's off-balance sheet financial
instruments, that commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities, are
summarised in the above table.

(b)  Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees are also included above based on the conditions existed at the
reporting date as to what contractual payments are required.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

@

(b)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities not presented at
fair value in the Group's statement of financial position are
estimated as follows:

(i) Placements with banks

The fair value of overnight placements to banks is their
carrying amount. Fixed interest-bearing placements are
maturing within one year from the end of the reporting
period and their carrying value approximates fair value.

(i) Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to customers are net of provisions for
impairment and bear interest at a floating rate and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

(iii) Deposits from subsidiaries and other customers

The estimated fair value of deposits with no stated maturity,
which includes non-interest bearing deposits, is the amount
repayable on demand. The fair value of those balances
bearing interest at a floating rate is their carrying value.
Fixed interest-bearing deposits from subsidiaries and other
customers are maturing within one year from the end of the
reporting period and their carrying value approximates fair
value.

Fair value hierarchy

HKFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on
whether the inputs to those valuation techniques are observable or
unobservable. Observable inputs reflect market data obtained
from independent sources; unobservable inputs reflect the Group's
market assumptions. These two types of inputs have created the
following fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as price) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices).

- Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

This hierarchy requires the use of observable market data when
available. The Group considers relevant and observable market
prices in its valuations where possible.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.4 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

(b)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Assets measured at fair value :

The Group

31 December 2019
Recurring fair value
measurement

Equity investments measured
at FVOCI

Debt securities measured at
FVOCI

31 December 2018
Recurring fair value
measurement

Equity investments measured
at FVOCI

1k 2k H3Mk faga

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
8,004,262 - 136,000 8,140,262
298,877,119 - - 298,877,119
306,881,381 - 136,000 307,017,381
8,705,833 - 136,000 8,841,333
8,705,833 - 136,000 8,841,333

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between all levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications. Predominately of the Group’s fair value financial assets are at
level 1 equity investments. Level 3 financial assets refer to unlisted equity investments
of which their cost are considered be an appropriate estimate of their fair value.

(c) Fair value of assets and liabilities not measured at fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at cost or amortized
cost are not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2019 and 31

December 2018.

Accordingly, no disclosure on the fair values and the level of the fair value hierarchy
are disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital, which is a broader concept
than the 'equity' on the face of consolidated statement of financial position,
are :

- to comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital)
Rules of the Banking Ordinance and the authorization criteria of
licensed bank under the Banking Ordinance;

- to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide returns for shareholders;

- to maintain a strong capital base to support the Group's stability and its
business development; and

- to employ capital in an efficient and risk based approach with an aim
to optimize risk adjusted return to the shareholders.

Capital adequacy and the use of regulatory capital are monitored daily by
the Group's management, employing techniques based on the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The required information is filed with the HKMA on a
quarterly basis.

The HKMA requires each bank or banking group to maintain a capital
adequacy ratio (“CAR?”), defined as the ratio of total regulatory capital (as
defined under the Banking (Capital) Rules) to the risk-weighted assets, at
or above the minimum as set out in section 3A of the Banking (Capital)
Rules. The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2019 are computed
on both solo and consolidated basis of the Bank as specified by the HKMA
under section 3C of the Banking (Capital) Rules for its regulatory
purposes, and are in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The Bank's policy on capital adequacy as approved by the Board of
Directors sets out the objectives, policies and process for managing capital
and assessing the adequacy of capital to support its current and future
activities. The Bank reviews its policy on capital adequacy on a regular
basis to ensure all necessary changes are reflected in the policies.

CAR is monitored by the Bank on a daily basis to ensure compliance with
all relevant statutory requirements and regulatory guidelines governing the
banking business.

Other than statutory CAR, an internal trigger CAR is applied for control
purposes. If the actual CAR falls below the trigger ratio, the case would
immediately be reported to the Board and the HKMA, and remedial action
will be taken.

In addition, the Bank will assess the impact on its capital when there are
new products, new investments, or any proposed significant transactions.

Semi-annual stress tests are also performed to assess the potential impact
of extreme business conditions on capital and to develop strategies to
mitigate the adverse effects where necessary.
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Financial Risk Management (Continued)

3.5 Capital management (Continued)

The table below summarises the ratios and the composition of regulatory capital of
the Group as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018. The Bank complied with
all of the externally imposed capital requirements by the HKMA throughout the year.

2019 2018
Common equity tier 1 capital ratio 66.21% 60.26%
Tier 1 capital ratio 66.21% 60.26%
Total capital ratio 90.02% 82.81%
Capital conservation buffer ratio 2.5% 1.875%

The above capital ratios represent the consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. In
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, the Bank has adopted the“basic
approach” for the calculation of the risk weighted assets for credit risk and the“basic
indicator approach” for the calculation of operational risk. The Bank has been
exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for market risk.

The Bank is required to calculate and report its capital ratios on the consolidated
position based on the regulatory scope of consolidated figures in addition to the
Bank's solo position based on its unconsolidated level figures. The basis of
consolidation for accounting purpose differs from the basis of consolidation for
regulatory purposes, under which only Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden
Wisdom Development Limited and Team Gold Investment Limited are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes.

The capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above capital ratios
and reported to the Hong Kong Monetary Authority is analysed as follows :

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000

Common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital

CET1 capital instruments 264,987 264,987
Retained earnings 411,254 407,655
Disclosed reserves 5,071 5,867
681,312 678,509
Less : Cumulative fair value gains arising from
revaluation of land and buildings (274,616) (280,481)
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk (1,800) (1,800)
Total CET1 capital after deductions 404,896 396,228

Additional Tier 1 capital - -

Total Tier 1 capital after deductions 404,896 396,228

Tier 2 capital
Reserve attributable to fair value gains on revaluation

of land and buildings 143,833 146,472
Regulatory reserve for general banking risk 1,800 1,800

145,633 148,272
Less : Tier 2 capital deductions - -
Total Tier 2 capital after deductions 145,633 148,272
Total capital base 550,529 544,500
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting
Policies

(@)

(b)

Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment
property by considering whether the property generates cash flows
largely independent of its other assets. Owner-occupied properties
generate cash flows that are attributable not only to property but also to
other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions can be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property is
accounted for as investment property only if an insignificant portion is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as
investment property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgment.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on the
valuation made by an independent professional valuer on an open
market basis at a valuation date. The fair values are assessed in
accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards on Properties (2012
Edition) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The
contractual rental income and the expected future market rental income
after allowing for outgoings and maintenance requirements are
capitalised at observed market yields. The principal assumptions
underlying the estimation of market value are those related to: the
receipt of contractual rentals; expected future market rentals; rent free
periods; maintenance requirements; and observed market yields.
Changes in the assumptions used in the valuation would affect the fair
value of investment properties.

In addition, the values are also assessed by reference to comparable
sales transactions around the valuation date as reported in the relevant
market at similar locations. Appropriate adjustments have been made
on the values of the subject properties for relevant factors, such as
location difference, building age, time of transaction, shop frontage,
floor levels and pedestrian flow, etc.
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Critical Accounting Estimates, and Judgments in Applying Accounting
Policies (Continued)

(©)

(@)

Long-service payments

The present value of the long service payments depends on a number of
factors that are determined on a number of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the provision for long-service
payments include the discount rate, the rate of staff pay adjustments,
and the probability of staff entitlement for long service payments. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of long-
service payments obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each
reporting period upon referencing the interest rates on government
bonds. This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the
present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required
to settle the long-service payments obligations.

Measurement of the ECL allowance

The measurement of the ECL allowance for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex
models and significant assumptions about future economic conditions
and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and
the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques used in measuring ECL is further detailed in note
3.1.4, which also sets out key sensitivities of the ECL to changes in
these elements.

A number of significant judgements are also required in applying the
accounting requirements for measuring ECL, such as:

- Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk;

- Choosing assumptions for the measurement of ECL;

- Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking
scenarios for each type of product/market and the associated ECL;

- Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of
measuring ECL.

Detailed information about the judgements and estimates made by the
Group in the above areas is set out in note 3.1.4.

Determination of deferred taxation

In determining the deferred tax positions of the Group and of the Bank,
significant judgment is required in determining the tax implications of
the transactions entered by the Group. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that it could be recoverable.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised at full.

Management reviewed all the transactions entered by the Group and by
the Bank, and all deferred tax assets (to the extent recoverable) and
deferred tax liabilities are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements except for the certain tax losses carry forwards that the
realisation of related tax benefit through future taxable profits is not
probable.
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Net Interest Income

Interest income

Cash and balances and placements with banks
Loans and advances to customers

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

Interest expense
Deposits from customers
Lease liabilities

Others

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS
14,081,751 11,210,991
6,687,858 6,917,669

3,796,882 -
24,566,491 18,128,660
2,665,696 1,158,428

2,198 -
49,241 12,757
2,717,135 1,171,185

The interest income and interest expenses are for financial assets and financial

liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss.

Other Operating Income

Fees and commission income
- Credit related fees and commissions

- Other fees
Less : Fees and commission expense

- Other fees and commission paid
Net fees and commission income

Net gain from trading of foreign currency

Gross rental income from investment properties

Less : rental outgoings

Air-conditioning and management fees
Dividend income from:

- listed equity investmetns measured at FVOCI

- unlisted equity investments measured at FVOCI

Safe deposit box rental
Exchange differences
Others

Operating Expenses

Staff costs (Note 8)

Depreciation - property, plant and equipment
Depreciation - right-of-use assets

Auditors' remuneration

Premises and equipment expenses

Computer expenses

Administrative expenses

Professional fees

Other operating expenses
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2019 2018
HKS HKS

3,083 18,730
131,025 108,177
(60,856) (55,443)
73,252 71,464
19,085 38,191
9,463,885 9,000,985
(4,197,493) (4,877,941)
5,266,392 4,123,044
2,371,408 2,018,169
404,040 424812
62,560 8,160
6,113,883 5,923,948
(1,370) (4,966)
354,453 354,355
9,304,974 8,724,478
14,663,703 12,957,177
2019 2018

HKS HKS
17,257,551 15,678,854
1,006,193 1,208,089
181,210 -
870,000 893,000
1,291,082 1,299,359
1,507,851 1,536,279
1,920,350 1,392,175
465,850 571,600
1,395,297 1,589,064
25,895,384 24,168,420
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Staff Costs
2019 2018
HKS$ HK$
Wages and salaries 16,080,090 14,508,669
Accrual for annual leave and long-service payment 525,934 598,112
Pension cost - defined contribution plan (Note) 651,527 572,073
17,257,551 15,678,854

Staff costs include directors' emoluments (Note 22).

Note :

There were no forfeited contributions utilized during the year (2018: Nil) nor available
at the year-end to reduce future contributions.

Contributions totaling HK$106,712 (2018: HK$92,055) were payable to the defined
contribution plan at the year end.

Income Tax Expense

Hong Kong income tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Current income tax credit - Hong Kong profits tax (4,015) (1,200)
Deferred income tax charge (Note 18) 1,226,879 769,366
Income tax expense 1,222,864 768,166

The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows :

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS$
Profit before income tax 4,815,617 24,213,728
Tax calculated at tax rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 794,577 3,995,265
Adjustment on difference tax rate applicable to group
company (16,765) (138,524)
Income not subject to tax (703,475) (3,008,440)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 1,020,002 5,363
Other (11,481) (8,983)
Adjustment in respect of prior years 140,006 (76,515)
Income tax expense 1,222,864 768,166
Cash and Balances with Banks

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS
Cash in hand 3,053,031 2,724,994
Balances with banks and central bank 10,898,526 168,975,215
Placements with banks maturing within one month 274,276,573 701,846,477

288,228,130 873,546,686
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Loans and Advances to Customers and Other Accounts

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Loans and advances to individuals
- Overdrafts 4,791,334 2,546,069
- Mortgages 282,166 3,559,766
Loans and advances to corporate entities
- Investment companies 154,333,955 164,577,360
- SMEs 6,999,966 3,286,701
Loans and advances to customers 166,407,421 173,969,896
Accrued interest 1,586,186 1,657,952
Right-of-use-assets 344,922 -
Amount due for clearing 13,153,903 -
Other accounts 2,653,567 1,742,801
Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 184,145,999 177,370,649

Included in loans and advances to customers are trade bills amounted to HK$Nil
(2018:HK$1,448,977).

There were no impaired loans or non-performing loans at 31 December 2019 (2018:
Nil).

The Group accepted property mortgages and listed securities at fair value of
HK$732,500,000 and HK$20,348,355 respectively (2018: HK$634,000,000 and
HK$15,875,360 respectively) as collateral for loans, which it is permitted to sell or
re-pledge in the event of default by the borrower, of which no properties or securities
(2018: Nil) were re-pledged or lent to third parties.

During the year, the Group acquired HK$376,279 right-of-use assets from the
entering into of a lease.

Investment securities measured at FVOCI

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Debt securities
- exchange fund bills, unlisted, at market value 298,877,119 -
Equity securities
- listed in Hong Kong, at market value 7,950,953 8,647,069
- listed outside Hong Kong, at market value 53,309 58,764
- unlisted, at estimated fair value 136,000 136,000
Total equity securities 8,140,262 8,841,833
307,017,381 8,841,833

Investment securities measured at FVOCI are analysed by categories of issuers as

follows :

- Sovereign 298,877,119 -

- Banks and other financial institutions 6,605,781 7,444,966

- Corporates 111,981 94,367

- Others 1,422,500 1,302,500
307,017,381 8,841,833
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incorporation activities

RAEYZEEH &E YEE
AHIREAE Hong Kong Property
TSB Property management
Management

Limited

il AR &E RERH
/NG| Hong Kong Investment
Success Land holding
Enterprises

Limited

BEBEAR T RERH
NG| Hong Kong Investment
Golden Wisdom holding
Development

Limited

FowhR w8 R
NG| Hong Kong Investment
Team Gold holding
Investment

Limited

Investment securities measured at FVOCI (Continued)

The movement in investment securities measured at FVOCI is summarised as follows :

At 1 January

Loss from changes in fair value (Note 20)
Additions

Redemptions / Disposals

At 31 December

Equity investments measured at FVOCI

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS$

8,841,833 17,299,860
(731,661)  (1,603,327)

1,098,907,209 -
(800,000,000)  (6,854,700)

307,017,381 8,841,833

The Group has designated at FVOCI investments in a portfolio of equity securities that were
acquired for investment purposes. The Group chose this presentation alternative because the
investments were made for their dividend income rather than with a view to profit on a

subsequent sale.

Subsidiaries

Details of the subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and 2018, which are held by the Bank

directly, are as follows :

20194£12H31H
31 December 2019

2018412H31H
31 December 2018

Frff LT

FREEEE R JRE i e HELREH T 2 4 %H
Particulars of issued Interest Total assets ~ Total equity
shares held held

HK$ HKS$

HEELEEH G
Total assets Total equity

HK$ HKS$

10,0003 35 i & 100% 949,114 508,214
R TFI AR &S 17T

10,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each

2 H 3 B H T 100% 2 2
FAR T

2 ordinary shares of
HKS$1 each

22.,900,000F5% % 3% 100% 32,385,780 31,818,525
HRE TR T B T 1

JC

22,900,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each

19,800,000 %3 3/ 100% 28,797,067 28,293,296
HRE T R T B A T 1

JT

19,800,000 ordinary

shares of HK$1

each
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707,977 442,253

32,653,078 32,301,376

28,830,075 28,564,892
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Property, Plant and Equipment

M,
S R
Furniture,
174k fixtures and %R
Bank premises equipment Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Cost or Deemed cost at valuation
At 1 January 2019 117,618,203 14,852,878 132,471,081
Additions - 666,267 666,267
Write-off / disposal - (131,260) (131,260)
At 31 December 2019 117,618,203 15,387,885 133,006,088
At 1 January 2018 117,618,203 13,646,273 131,264,476
Additions - 1,678,769 1,678,769
Write-off / disposal - (472,164) (472,164)
At 31 December 2018 117,618,203 14,852,878 132,471,081
Accumulated depreciation and
impairment
At 1 January 2019 49,316,321 10,499,532 59,815,853
Charge for the year 388,629 617,564 1,006,193
Write-off / disposal - (88,002) (88,002)
At 31 December 2019 49,704,950 11,029,094 60,734,044
At 1 January 2018 48,927,691 10,119,733 59,047,424
Charge for the year 388,630 819,459 1,208,089
Write-off / disposal - (439,660) (439,660)
At 31 December 2018 49,316,321 10,499,532 59,815,853
Net book value
At 31 December 2019 67,913,253 4,358,791 72,272,044
At 31 December 2018 68,301,882 4,353,346 72,655,228

The Group’s bank premises at their net book values are analysed as follows :

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
In Hong Kong, held on :
Leases of over 50 years 67,913,253 68,301,882

Investment Properties

At 31 December 2019 , the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for future
repairs and maintenance (2018: Nil).

In the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, direct operating expenses
include HK$Nil (2018: HK$50,049) relating to investment properties that were unlet.

The Group's interests in investment properties at their net book values are analysed as

follows :
2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
In Hong Kong, held on :
Leases of over 50 years 324,100,000 329,900,000

All investment properties were classified as level 3 asset of fair value hierarchy as of 31
December 2019 and 2018.
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Investment Properties (Continued)

Valuation basis of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018
on the basis of its open market value, which was derived by the following valuation
methodologies by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent

firm of qualified property valuers.

- Sales evidence on the market on comparable properties around the time of

valuation; and

- Capitalization of the income potential using appropriate capitalisation rate, which
was derived from analysis of sale transactions and the valuer’s interpretation of

prevailing investor requirements or expectations.

The following table shows a reconciliation from the beginning balances for fair value
measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for the year ended 31 December

2019:
2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 329,900,000 311,400,000
(Loss)/gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties (5,800,000) 18,500,000
At 31 December 324,100,000 329,900,000
Deposits from Customers
2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Demand deposits and current accounts 107,727,869 88,003,673
Savings deposits 392,491,721 760,700,473
Time, call and notice deposits 251,922,155 116,712,508
752,141,745 965,416,654
Other Liabilities and Provisions
2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Cashier orders 3,806,059 3,661,054
Rental deposits 9,280,280 9,112,280
Rental income received in advance 3,901,073 3,993,144
Accrued interest 435,822 212,757
Accounts and other payables 4,530,366 7,054,646
Lease liabilities 350,546 -
22,304,146 24,033,881

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes

relate to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

2019 2018

Deferred tax assets : HKS$ HKS$
- Deferred tax assets to be recovered after

more than 12 months (4,978,880) (6,223,691)
Deferred tax liabilities :
- Deferred tax liabilities to be incurred after

more than 12 months 12,472,194 12,490,126
Net deferred tax liabilities 7,493,314 6,266,435
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Deferred Income Tax (Continued)

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows :

At 1 January

Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (Note 9)

At 31 December

2019 2018

HKS$ HKS$

6,266,435 5,497,069

1,226,879 769,366

7,493,314 6,266,435

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows :

Deferred tax liabilities

IZRRE IR TES
Accelerated tax A\ EEEKGR k)
depreciation  Fair value gains Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 2018 452,145 12,005,295 12,457,440
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 85,619 (52,933) 32,686
At 31 December 2018 537,764 11,952,362 12,490,126
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 19,581 (37,513) (17,932)
At 31 December 2019 557,345 11,914,849 12,472,194
Deferred tax assets
MiE HAh Had
Tax losses Other Total
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
At 1 January 2018 6,824,951 135,420 6,960,371
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (702,053) (34,627) (736,680)
At 31 December 2018 6,122,898 100,793 6,223,691
Recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (1,226,669) (18,142) (1,244,811)
At 31 December 2019 4,896,229 82,651 4,978,880

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

Share Capital
2019412831 H 2018 F12H31H
31 December 2019 31 December 2018
s i
No. of Shares HKS$ No. of Shares HK$
Ordinary shares
issued and fully paid : 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000 310,000,000
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Reserves

2019

At 1 January 2019

Change in accounting policy

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Loss on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises5

Profit for the year

At 31 December 2019

Representing :

Bank and subsidiaries

FH
Group
HAth ¥ b Lim EE BER
EEGE B et et g e
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation General Regulatory Retained
reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 408,096,754 413,963,385
- - - - (1,691) (1,691)
2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 408,095,063 413,961,694
- (731,661) - - - (731,661)
(64,092) - - - 64,092 -
- - - - 3,592,753 3,592,753
2,111,167 549,454 610,257 1,800,000 411,751,908 416,822,786
2,111,167 549,454 610,257 1,800,000 411,751,908 416,822,786

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior to
30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of investment securities measured at FVOCI

until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

“The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision purpose.
Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the historical cost
of the premises of HK$12,665 (2018 : HK$12,665).
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2018 2018 £
Group
HAth P2 && LiE EE gk
EGGEE  EMEE R Cl T W
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$
H2018%E1H1H At 1 January 2018 2,239,351 5,209,154 610,257 1,800,000 382,262,388 392,121,150

PN EEE = HHess Loss on revaluation of equity
#ifEt A AMSE S UGS 2 investments measured at FVOCI

M E Bt 1E - (1,603,327) - - - (1,603,327)
RfTHHTEE T B EiL Transfer from revaluation
PNl e reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises’ (64,092) - - - 64,092 -
AR TE S F Profit for the year - - - - 23,445,562 23,445,562

HEMNEEEETE Transfer from investment
HESEEET AR MEES revluation reserve to retained
Ugzs > REZS IS BT 5 5 earnings on disposal of equity
B (L A R investments measured at FVOCI

= - (2,324,712) - - 2,324,712 -
#2018F12H31H At 31 December 2018 2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 408,096,754 413,963,385
R - Representing :

SRITHL B\ F] Bank and subsidiaries 2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 408,096,754 413,963,385
VH A B R TR "The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises prior

WgE > BEE N 2 & EtEL to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).
% CFEE2.100) FrfEHEHT

HEFA19954E9 H30H AT B

TS AR Z BRI (E A AT -

L (i AR A *The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at FVOCI
BEEGSHECR (HfEE2.5) until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).
PR LA P EEEE

HeEgpt AHrsralis

HEZE LA A TR SR

ERTZ A HEEZ RetisE

g -

3 YA B 3The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.
FEH A 2 S0 > M Ry mT R
o

SEEEE TR G B *The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
SRTTEGHIN AR RiESE purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

IR - R EEE

AZLEREAT - WA S

FE R R -

TSR B T >This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
P SRR RSB A historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2017: HK$12,665).

Preswy & 2280 < IR IR IS

We12,6657C(201 74 « ¥

12,6657T) °
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Notes To Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash outflow from operating activities

®

~—~

Operating profit

Dividend income from equity investments
measured at FVOCI

Depreciation - property, plant and equipment

Depreciation - right-of-use assets

Increase in accrued interest and other accounts

(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities and
provisions

Decrease / (increase) in loans and advances to
customers

Decrease in deposits from customers

(Increase) / decrease in placements with banks
and exchange fund bills with original maturity
over 3 months

Income tax refund / (paid)

Net cash outflow from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities included:-

- Interest received

- Interest paid

2019 2018
HKS HKS$
10,617,675 5,746,232
(466,600) (432,972)
1,006,193 1,208,089
181,210 -
(13,992,903) (84,134)
(1,729,198) 4,979,727
7,562,475 (11,713,970)

(213,274,909)

(59,150,210)

13,442

(169,534,294)

156,818,710

(108,850)

(269,232,825)

(13,121,462)

24,638,257
2,494,070

Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents

17,867,831
1,128,806

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the
following balances with less than three months' maturity from the date of acquisition.

Cash in hand (Note 10)

Balances with banks and central bank (Note 10)

Placements with banks with original maturity

within 3 months

Exchange fund bills with original maturity within
3 months
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2019 2018

HKS HKS
3,053,031 2,724,994
10,898,526 168,975,215
546,335,900 858,039,480

199,552,581 .
759,840,038  1,029,759,689
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Benefits and Interests of Directors (Disclosures Required by Section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G)

(@

(b)

Directors' emoluments and retirement benefits

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid to
or receivable by directors of the Bank during
the year in respect of their services as directors
were as follows:

Fees

The aggregate amounts of emoluments and
retirement benefits paid to or receivable by
directors of the Bank during the year in respect
of their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Bank or its
subsidiary undertakings were as follows:

Salary

Employer's Contribution to Retirement Scheme

Loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
780,982 384,000
1,634,520 1,567,740
70,752 67,782
1,705,272 1,635,522
2,486,254 2,019,522

Particulars of loans made to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are as

follows:

Aggregate amount of loans outstanding at the
end of the year

Maximum aggregate amount of loans during
the year

2019 2018
HKS HKS$
11,793,244 5,863,824
11,925,399 5,863,824

All loans to directors and controlled body corporates by directors are granted on values not

greater and on term not more favourable than to borrowers of the same financial standing

but unconnected with the Bank.
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Related-Party Transactions

A number of banking transactions were entered into with related parties in the
normal course of business. These include the extension of credit facilities and
deposit taking. For deposits taken and credit facilities extended, the interest
rates charged are under terms and conditions that would normally apply to
customers of comparable standing.

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered
into with key management which include directors, relatives and companies
controlled or significantly influenced by them in addition to those disclosed in
note 22, which were carried out in the normal course of the Group's business :

2019 2018
HKS HKS$

Loans
Average balance during the year 108,398,901 109,843,449
Outstanding as at end of year 107,251,927 113,318,445
Interest income 5,712,636 5,566,620

The loans granted to related parties during the year are collaterised by
properties, shares in listed companies and deposits. The fair value of these
mortgaged properties and shares in listed companies as at 31 December 2019
were HK$540,000,000 and HK$20,348,355 (2018: HK$380,000,000 and
HK$15,875,360) respectively. No provisions have been made in respect of
loans advanced to related parties (2018: Nil).

2019 2018
HKS$S HKS$
Deposits
Average balance during the year 839,053,678 979,553,794
Outstanding as at end of year 681,175,147 926,768,976
Interest expense 2,626,081 1,152,919
Contingent liabilities and commitments
contract amount
Direct credit substitutes - 4,000,000
Trade-related contingencies - 987,854
Other commitments with an original
of under 1 year or which are
cancellable 1,527,432 3,793,701
Property management fee income (note (i)) 689,093 689,093
Property rental income (note (ii)) 4,962,221 5,016,876

Notes :

(i) Property management fee income included fee income charged on the
property managed by the Group on an actual costs incurred basis and
management fee charged on an arm's length basis for premises leased to
companies controlled by directors.

(ii)) Property rental income was charged on an arm's length basis for premises
leased to companies controlled by directors.
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

@

(b)

(©)

(d)

Credit commitments

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
contingent liabilities and commitment, and the aggregate credit risk weighted amount :

2019 2018
HKS$ HKS$
Contract amount
Direct credit substitutes - 4,000,000
Trade-related contingencies - 987,854
Other commitments with an original maturity
of under 1 year or which are unconditionally
cancellable 1,527,432 3,793,701
1,527,432 8,781,555
Credit risk weighted amount - 4,197,571

Operating lease commitments - the Group as lessor

The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

2019 2018
HKS HKS

Land and buildings
- not later than one year 6,281,887 6,417,548
- later than one year but not later than five years 3,825,581 2,368,907
10,107,468 8,786,455

The Group leases out investment properties (Note 15) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of
the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing market conditions. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

Capital commitments

The Group does not have any capital expenditure contracted for but not recognized as
liabilities as at 31 December 2019 (2018: HK$Nil).

Repairs and maintenance: investment properties

The Group does not have any contractual obligation for future repairs and
maintenance of the investment properties not recognized as a liability as at 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$Nil).
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Statement of Financial Position of the Bank as at 31 December 2019

25 $RT20194E12A31HEH

ZRABIRAE
iz 20194£12H31H 2018412H31H
Note 31 December 2019 31 December 2018
HK$ HKS$
B Assets
IR S M E 2 0E Cash and balances with banks 288,228,130 873,546,686
EHIFR EZEEIEN I E 12 Placements with banks maturing between one
ERE and twelve months 332,892,861 257,250,956
2 R K Ho A BETE Loans and advances to customers and other
accounts 184,078,451 177,299,274
DU EER & B s d#E] Investment securities measured at FVOCI
AHA &R E W 2 E S 5 307,017,381 8,841,833
FEfEAT &S SE Investment securities in subsidiaries 13 42,710,002 42,710,002
YsE > BB R Property, plant and equipment 72,272,044 72,655,228
gy Investment properties 268,300,000 273,000,000
LS Total Assets 1,495,498,869 1,705,303,979
§=Li-d Liabilities
pe¢ Deposits from
S| - Subsidiaries 6,158,838 5,104,752
-HpnzF - Other customers 752,141,745 965,416,654
HAh & (& B e Other liabilities and provisions 20,792,221 23,161,272
PRAEFTE G A Deferred tax liabilities 7,493,314 6,266,435
=li=g=r1 Total Liabilities 786,586,118 999,949,113
s Equity
S Share capital 310,000,000 310,000,000
LS Reserves 26 398,912,751 395,354,866
R aE Total Equity 708,912,751 705,354,866

FEEHN0208E3H260H %4 Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 March 2020.

R e -
FEERE MA CHING KUEN, ALFRED )
HE )  Directors
FEES MA CHING YEUNG, PHILIP )
ERRAaEES Total Equity and Liabilities 1,495,498,869 1,705,303,979
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Reserves of the Bank

2019

At 1 January 2019
Change in accounting policy

At 1 January 2019 (restated)

Loss on revaluation of
investment securities measured
at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises’

Profit for the year

At 31 December 2019

1T
Bank
ERIRYES & i EE Ferlic
EEGE  EGEE O BE H R R
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 389,488,235 395,354,866
- - - - (1,691) (1,691)
2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 389,486,544 395,353,175
- (731,661) - - - (731,661)
(64,092) - - - 64,092 -
- - - - 4,291,237 4,291,237
2,111,167 549,454 610,257 1,800,000 393,841,873 398,912,751

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of investment securities measured at
FVOCT until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision

purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2018 : HK$12,665).
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Reserves of the Bank (Continued)

2018

At 1 January 2018

Loss on revaluatio of equity
investments measured at FVOCI

Transfer from revaluation
reserve to retained earnings on

depreciation of bank premises5

Profit for the year

Transfer from investment
revalution reserve to retained
earnings on disposal of equity
investments measured at FVOCI

At 31 December 2018

AT
Bank
HAth 2 && =yl ETE BER
EGEE B et et Hea
Other
properties  Investment
revaluation revaluation  General Regulatory Retained
reserve' reserve’  reserve’ reserve’ earnings Total
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HKS$
2,239,351 5,209,154 610,257 1,800,000 366,768,938 376,627,700
- (1,603,327) - - - (1,603,327)
(64,092) - - - 64,092 -
- - - - 20,330,493 20,330,493
- (2,324,712) - - 2,324,712 -
2,175,259 1,281,115 610,257 1,800,000 389,488,235 395,354,866

"The other properties revaluation reserve represents the increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of bank premises
prior to 30 September 1995 as stated in the accounting policy for property, plant and equipment (Note 2.10).

*The investment revaluation reserve represents the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity investments measured at
FVOCT until such financial assets are derecognised or impaired as stated in the accounting policy for financial assets (Note 2.5).

The general reserve comprises previous years' transfer from retained earnings and is distributable.

*The regulatory reserve is maintained to satisfy the provisions of the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance for prudential supervision
purpose. Movements in the reserve are made directly through retained earnings and in consultation with the HKMA.

>This is net of deferred taxation on the difference between the actual depreciation on premises and depreciation based on the
historical cost of the premises of HK$12,665 (2017: HK$12,665).
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The following information is disclosed as part of the accompanying information to the financial

statements and does not form part of the financial statements.

Non-Bank Mainland Exposures

The Group did not have any non-bank Mainland exposures as at 31 December 2019 (2018 : Nil).

Currency Concentrations

The US dollar net position, the RMB net position and the EUR net position, each constitutes more
than 10% of the total net position in all foreign currencies respectively, are reported as follows :

US Dollar Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long position

RMB Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long position

EUR Position:

Equivalent in Hong Kong dollars
Spot assets

Spot liabilities

Net long / (short) position
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Bank
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HK$’000
22,361 14,240
(21,885) (13,842)
476 398
R1T
Bank
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$°000
363 419
(141) (176)
222 243
PRAT
Bank
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
32 33
- (293)
32 (260)
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Loans and Advances to Customers

Gross advances to customers by loan usage

2019 2018
HEHR/ Z=kiseLil
HAt R HAth 4O
2B Z B
Amount Amount
EEHE covered by B EHE covered by
Gross collateral/ Gross collateral/
advances other security advances other security
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and financial
-property investment 58,873,329 58,873,329 57,091,685 57,091,685
Stockbrokers 2,913,220 2,913,220 2,949,751 2,949,751
Wholesale and retail trade 6,999,966 6,999,966 1,837,724 1,837,724
Individuals
-loans for the purchase of
properties other than flats in
the Home Ownership
Private Sector Participation
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 282,166 282,166 3,559,766 3,559,766
-others 4,791,334 4,791,334 2,546,069 2,546,069
Trade finance - - 1,448,977 1,448,977
Investment companies 92,547,406 92,547,406 104,535,924 104,535,924
166,407,421 166,407,421 173,969,896 173,969,896

Segmental Information

(1) Business activities

The Group operates predominantly in Hong Kong and in two classes of business -
commercial banking and property investment. The commercial banking business
includes, inter alia, acceptance of deposit from customers and the provision of lending,
trade financing, foreign exchange, and other credit facilities to customers. Property
investment represents interests in various commercial properties held for rental

purposes.

At 31 December 2019, commercial banking and property investment accounted for
HK$1,184,661,991 and HK$324,100,000 of the Group's operating assets respectively
(2018: HK$1,389,780,355 and HK$329,900,000). For the year ended 31 December
2019, contributions to the Group's operating income from commercial banking and
property investment, were HK$28,525,363 and HK$7,987,696 respectively (2018:
HK$23,423,543 and HK$6,491,109 respectively).

(i)

Overdue and impaired loans by geographical area

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no overdue or impaired loans (2018: Nil).
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Segmental Information (Continued)

(iii) International claims

The information as at 31 December on international claims discloses
exposures to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and is
derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk.

2019 2018

RATIEIZE k) HRATIEIZE 4asE
Banks Total Banks Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$’000
537,169 537,169 729,097 729,097

- - 200,000 200,000

537,169 537,169 929,097 929,097

Corporate Governance

In monitoring the operations and the financial soundness of the Group, the
Board has established seven specialised committees for handling matters which
require detailed review or in-depth consideration, namely, the Executive
Committee, Credit Committee, Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”), Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Committee. The Audit Committee is made up of directors who are independent
non-executive directors. Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
Risk Committee are chaired by independent non-executive directors and
comprised of a majority of members being independent non-executive directors.
Other committees are comprised of Director & General Manager and other
directors and senior executives of the Bank as appointed by the Board.

The Executive Committee handles major matters arising from business and
operational activities. It relieves the full Board from the needs to carry out
detailed review of information and operational activities and also co-ordinates
the work of other Board committees. The Credit Committee, in addition to its
usual role in evaluating credit applications and making credit decisions, also
serves the vital role of monitoring the loan portfolio quality of the Group. The
ALCO oversees the Group's operations relating to interest rate risk, exchange
rate risk and liquidity risk. In particular, ALCO ensures that the Group has
adequate funds to meet its obligations. The Audit Committee assists the Board
in providing independent review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process and internal control systems of the Group by working closely with the
Group's internal and external auditors. The Remuneration Committee establishes
policies on the Group's remuneration paid to senior management and key
personnel and monitors their proper implementation. Nomination Committee is
responsible for the review of suitable candidates for directors and senior
management posts. The Risk Committee oversees the overall risk of the Group
and ensures the proper function of the Group's risk monitoring framework.

The Group has complied with the requirements set out in the Supervisory Policy
Manual entitled "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Authorized
Institutions" issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority in all material
aspects.
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The key prudential ratios of the regulatory consolidated group as
at 31 December 2019 with the previous four quarter ends as

MI{ITF - comparatives are disclosed in Template KM1 as below.
EREKM1: F B EER(EBSEEESER) Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis)
(@) (b) © @) (e
20194 20194 20194F 20194F 20184F
12H31H 9H30H 6H30H 3H31H 12H31H
31/12/2019 | 30/09/2019 | 30/06/2019 | 31/03/2019 | 31/12/2018
BEEE BN (BEE)GE%5'000) Regulatory capital (amount) (HKS$'000)
| |wsmpetE—4%(CETI)  Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) 404,896 403,747 | 401,133 | 398,955 | 396,228
2 | —4 Tier 1 404,896 403,747 401,133 398,955 396,228
3 |BEEAR Total capital 550,529 553,414 550,800 547,227 544,500
SRR R B (R GB 15 '000) RWA (amount) (HKS'000)
4 |JE\g it BaEAEAE Total RWA 611,569 625,124 630,411 696,264 657,534
BB AR E R AL
(@8N 2 e =] Risk-based regulatory capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
STHFR)
5 |CET1EE® (%) CET1 ratio (%) 66.21% 64.59% 63.63% 57.30% 60.26%
6 | —4REEE (%) Tier 1 ratio (%) 66.21% 64.59% 63.63% 57.30% 60.26%
7 |HEEAREER (%) Total capital ratio (%) 90.02% 88.53% 87.37% 78.59% 82.81%
HIICETIEHER (ML
FESEIERMEN T >3  Additional CET1 buffer requirements (as a percentage of RWA)
FEm)
S SR K (9 Capital tion buff
g |PIREHEETEAEIK (%) Capital conservation buffer 2.500% 2500% | 2500% | 2500% | 1.875%
requirement (%)
i R HA 42 7S K Count lical ital buff
o [ERIHEEFAZK ountereye 1 capttal butier 2.000% 2500% | 2500% | 2500% | 1.875%
(%) requirement (%)
RS TERE JJ55K Higher loss absorbency requirements
10 (%) ( RiEHRG- (%) (applicable only to G-SIBs or D- N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
SIB=kD-SIB ) SIBs)
SO HRERS EAV4ECET  Total Al-specific CET1 buffer , , ) ) .
11 VEEESE (%) requirements (%) 4.50% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 3.75%
Framl RN R E . .
e CET1 available after meeting the AI’s o o o o 0
12 | A EE A FHYCETI minimum capital requirements (%) 57.21% 55.09% 54.13% 47.80% 52.01.%
(%) (%)
(EEBHE=) BIELLZ Basel ITI leverage ratio
SEFEAREE R A &K IESt  Total leverage ratio (LR) exposure
13 B (G 000) measure (HK$'000) 1,192,368 1,317,798 1,313,490 1,451,223 1,403,082
14 [FEFEEEZR(LR) (%) LR (%) 33.96% 30.64% 30.54% 27.49% 28.24%
TREh GRS EZR(LCR) / T, . Lo . :
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) / Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (LMR)
TRED MR EER(LMR)
HURE FH A SR LA - Applicable to category 1 institution only:
s BEREEEHQLA) Total high quality liquid assets N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
o] (HQLA)
16 [ FH &R 4a%E Total net cash outflows N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
17 |LCR (%) LCR (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
70 FH A SE 2 kAR - Applicable to category 2 institution only:
17a [LMR (%) LMR (%) 93.50% 92.49% 93.33% 79.95% 70.08%
%ﬁﬁlﬁ:ﬁ BELR(NSF Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) / Core Funding Ratio (CFR)
R) / Z.OLEEEZE(CFR)
LR P A B LRE R - Applicable to category 1 institution only:
18 |l g EE & 44%E Total available stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
19 |preEfE =& S 4a%E Total required stable funding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
20 INSFR (%) NSER (%) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
R F A EE2 AJERE ¢ Applicable to category 2A institution only:
20a [CFR (%) CFR (%) [ NA N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory Basis) (Continued)

Template KM1: Key Prudential Ratios (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

Note:

N/A: Not applicable

The common equity tier 1 (CET1) capital and tier 1 capital as at 31
December 2019 have increased from those as at 30 September 2019
as a result of the booking of current quarter's operating profits, which
have also led to increases noted in CET1 ratio and Tier 1 ratio. On
the other hand, the taking up of revaluation deficit of the Group's
investment properties as at 31 December 2019 has led to the slight
decrease in total capital for the current quarter. Yet, with the lower
level of risk weighted assets (RWA) at the end of the current quarter,
the total capital ratio showed an increase from 30 September 2019.
The decrease in RWA as at 31 December 2019 when compared to 30
September 2019 was mainly due to the decrease in the size of the
consolidated balance sheet.

The capital conservation buffer ratio for the Bank for 2019 is 2.5%
(2018: 1.875%) as stipulated by the Banking (Capital) Rules. While
the Bank only operates and has private sector credit exposures in
Hong Kong for the purpose of the calculation of its countercyclical
capital buffer ratio, the applicable countercyclical capital buffer ratio
for the Bank equals to that of Hong Kong as at 31 December 2019,
which amounts to 2% (2018: 1.875%).

The increase of leverage ratio as at 31 December 2019 from that of
30 September 2019 was predominantly due to the lower level of
exposure measure, which was resulted from the reduced consolidated
statement of financial position following a decrease in the level of
customers' deposits.

The Bank, as a category 2 institution for the purpose of the Banking
(Liquidity) Rules, is only required to maintain and report liquidity
maintenance ratio (LMR) on a solo basis. As such, the Bank is not
required to report Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR), Net Stable
Funding Ratio (NSFR) and Core Funding Ratio (CFR). The above
LMR are the quarterly average LMR calculated as the the simple
average of each calendar month's average liquidity maintenance ratio
of the Bank's solo position within the reporting quarters.

There are no material differences in the level of average LMRs of the
Bank between the current quarter ended 31 December 2019 and last
reporting quarter ended 30 September 2019.

The Bank is not designated as a domestic systematically important
authorised institution and as such is not subject to the Higher Loss
Absorbency (HLA) requirements under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
HLA ratio is not required to be reported by the Bank.

75



7 EEE R ERIIEBERME ((RBEESS
EHE)

JEGE R DA Z ROVATIIIR © 1420194125
31H KFR2019F9 H30H Z Be B4 G < S E R
b ISR Y IR RERROV I F IR -

(i) FOVA: A EHigE (M)

Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis)

The overview of risk management and the RWA of the regulatory
consolidated group as at 31 December 2019 and 30 September 2019 are
disclosed in Table OVA and Template OV1 as below.

Table OVA: Overview of Risk Management

EEER R EHEWEIREAR
ZEERZEEGZEN  EEFREAGE
B E SRR TR e R
£ - ZEZRGEEERZAG(ELHE
BER) - AEMAFRZAGEHEAT
Je ~ FRENE S - TS R R
Z B G (B 5 HoA ) -

HEF IR TEE W S 5E KRR
T2 RERENR > HIELRT 2SR
il 2/ VBERTTRES ~ % R AE B
JtiA T < I 2 R - AHEA RSB
BEREE SCHNEERGRE TR
TEHERME BB Z FRThAR N
o AFNERIL R ARSI > kLA
RITRESOR - EEHE RN EE
ST R ITARRE TIRrER  maE (F
IZsRAE - FrABER REFE A 12
HTRIEEEZSS -

IRITATER A Z EE B RS A EHE
KRR B TR (3 R B AR iR R
TEE btz 2 F - N2 B TR i 2
AT S BURIRH17H BT J0F Z RS
ik E s R 2 B 2 EE -
T ) 3 AT BRI S AT R HoAL AT T2
BIFEHOERAF - Wieft T EHEE FR
TE FH LR B - (B B AR PR A
fls /K et 1 By mT SR BEI i T8
HZFE EF 2 421 -

EEBATAE R EEIIRE FUREI 2 ]
EHIEHRE  HEAEREEXES
B (RS E S AR EREK
BIETEZARIERT - BLELER: > HED
RBHHE S EFGTE TR Z A g H
BURAR - WA T EE T TAE R
MEME B G &R LS AR
117 B 1T [ BT F2 5 A T B TR

BT RSVE R AR T > DU E
T - ELFEFESEIRIER - B E K
Ak RYIEEE TR [ ZEEATR
JE\bg R RSB E BT S (o <y
SRAT 5 (U PRAE ) AR A 23 ek e
o BRIV HETT I R B SIS Rk
FITEEHERTTE (R PR AR ) HATA A
[EIffR 2 REEE A5 -

While management of major risk areas is delegated to the relevant
Board Committees, the full Board assumes the ultimate responsibility
of overseeing and monitoring the Bank's overall risks. These
Committees include Credit Committee (for credit risk), Asset &
Liability Committee (for capital adequacy, liquidity, market and
interest rate risk) and Risk Committee (for operational and other
risks).

Both the Board and bank management fully acknowledge the Bank's
row risk appetite, hence the Bank's activities are confined to a few
areas which the Bank is able to identify, assess and exercise full
control over the risks. Control limits on different activities are set out
in the relevant policies which Board members were provided with
updated copies at meetings. A risk-averse culture has been built
throughout the organization, reinforced by active communications
with staff, weekly management meetings and annual staff briefings on
the code of conduct. All policies and operating procedures are
available for handy reference by staff.

The management information system applied by the Bank permits
timely and accurate position reporting for regular reviews by
management and relevant staff. Positions, or anticipated positions
arising from taking certain activities with resultant pressure to meet
the policy Limits, will be brought to management attention promptly.
Impact analysis and sensitivity analysis will be performed, and viable
alternatives posted, for management decisions to mitigate the risks.
For the important control limits, trigger levels below such limits are
set serving as cushions allowing time for management to take actions
to rectify.

Important functions and activities, as determined by the Board, are
subject to periodic compliance checks. The findings are posted to
senior management for information, and to the relevant functions
who are required to respond with remedial plans. At the same time,
Internal Audi formulates 3-year audit plans for review and acceptance
by Audit Committee, and conducts audit works according to plan
with results presented at Audit Committee meetings where
management would respond with action time-table.

Stress tests are performed semi-annually to examine the key issues
including the risk of delinquent interbank placements, deposit run-
off, risk of capital adequacy from falling property values, risk in
meeting the various sections of the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules
due to escalating values of property. Reverse stress tests are
performed annually to examine the sufficiency of buffers in meeting
the different sections under the Banking (Exposure Limits) Rules.
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HUREESFaARE) (F) (Continued)
(ii) HERROV1 : B EEamE (ii) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2019 (Unaudited - on
20194FE12H31 H (iR E &GS Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
ZBE)
(a) (b) (c)
B AR
i 2 e Mini
RWA mum
capital
requirements
20194F 20194F 20194F
12H31H 9H30H 12H31H
31/12/2019 | 30/09/2019 | 31/12/2019
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
1 VFEEE A28 B e dE (5 R g Credit risk for non-securitization exposures 732,291 752,313 58,583
2 H P STCEHE A Of which STC approach - - -
2a H A BSCE &4 Of which BSC approach 732,291 752,313 58,583
3 Hrp EEEIRBE S Of which foundation IRB approach - - -
4 o BE A Sy AR R DR Of which supervisory slotting criteria approach - - -
5 H oS IRBET &L Of which advanced IRB approach - - -
w \ \ Counterparty default risk and default fund
g = 7 = e A fre - - -
6 |HFI7EE KRR S RE contributions
7 HSA-CCR Of which SA-CCR N/A N/A N/A
7a H A ER T RIS TT 5 Of which CEM - - _
8 H P IMM(CCR)EFEL L Of which IMM(CCR) approach - - -
9 Fop A Of which others - - -
10 JCVAJE CVA risk - - -
1 5 BE i RE B8R 53 E B N ERAEE S 9A Ty JEquity positions in banking book under the simple
SRATINR A B FE R 5 risk-weighted method and internal models method B B .
ll M H h " I " _
12 \epmr st eapais LTA ngectlve investment scheme ("CIS") exposures N/A N/A N/A
13 RS E T E R e R E—MBA CIS exposures — MBA N/A N/A N/A
14 VRS & TS E RS —FBA CIS exposures — FBA N/A N/A N/A
14a |EERE 1 i A e SEE# AR JCIS exposures - combination of approaches N/A N/A N/A
15 132U Settlement risk - _ )
16 \SRATIRAHYEE 3 LR R b R 4 Securitization exposures in banking book - - -
17 H.dr SEC-IRBA Of which SEC-IRBA - - -
18 H.dr SEC-ERBA Of which SEC-ERBA - - -
19 H b SEC-SA Of which SEC-SA
19a H.dr SEC-FBA Of which SEC-FBA - - -
20 |riis5)E b Market risk - _ )
21 HRSTMEFRE Of which STM approach - - -
22 HHIMMETFLZE Of which IMM approach - - -
5 RELER TR 2 RS P #any Bl & 3%y |Capital charge for switch between exposures in
23 | EARTER (KT EGHEZRERGA]  ftrading book and banking book (not applicable before N/A N/A N/A
RiEH) the revised market risk framework takes effect)
24 EEFRSREE Operational risk 55,075 53,538 4,406
24a \E 77 EHa e o s Sovereign concentration risk - - -
55 (AR PR e (JEE1E250%)E % |Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject
TEE) to 250% RW) } - -
26 [EAR T RFH%EE Capital floor adjustment _ B} N
26a |\ A EOEE LR Deduction to RWA - R _
HP R EREE R ERNN—E Of which portion of regulatory reserve for
26b SRTIETS [\l Ba s (g R EE A general banking risks and collective provisions - - -
FEnE 5y which is not included in Tier 2 Capital
I Of which portion of cumulative fair value gains
HP RIS L arising froIr)n the revaluation of land and ¢
26¢ FOESYRE B R EEN R . L . o 175,797 180,727 14,064
= St buildings which is not included in Tier 2
HOA P E AR AT B Y Cani
apital
27 J4EET Total 611,569 625,124 48,925
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7 EEE R R BERE (AR
ESEELR) ()

(i) ERROV1 : bR IIFEREEREEE
2019412 H31 H (FRIBEEESR
GER) (#)

BFsE -

1) NA:FREH

(2) LU E2HADIBSCEHE A E IR
S5 BB A R R 2 (5 R
BV R EFTRE RS K
S ERE o FEHEARRE
YR S I AT -

Overview of Risk Management and Risk RWA (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template OV1: Overview of RWA as at 31 December 2019 (Unaudited - on Regulatory
Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

Note:
(1) N/A: Not applicable

(2) The decrease noted in the credit risk for non-securitization exposures calculated on BSC
approach between the above two periods was mainly the result of an overall lower level of assets
maintained by the Group, mainly in the form of a decrease of investments in exchange fund bills
as at the end of the current period.

8 P Bk R R R Z B

Gt E SR R 2 2 2 R R
B L L B R b S ] B
FUTRIRTERRLIL - 1 e K SR BEH
BB R MR IHIE 2 22 R
AR LU ERRLI2N51IR © FRLIARIfE
SUR20195:12 31 H s Bl B R
b AR R R 2 221 -

() BIRRLI : FeteEE S aRE @@
Z T 2 R R e SR B

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

The differences between accounting and regulatory scopes of consolidation and mapping of financial
statement categories with regulatory risk categories are disclosed in Template LI 1, while the main
sources of differences between regulatory exposure amounts and the carrying values in the financial
statements are given in Template LI 2 below. Table LI A provides explanations of differences between
accounting and regulatory exposure amounts as at 31 December 2019.

Template LI1: Differences between Accounting and Regulatory Scopes of Consolidation
and Mapping of Financial Statement Categories with Regulatory Risk Categories

& BB A Z B
(@ (b) © | @ | @ | ® | ©
IEEHRIRME{E Carrying values of items:
ES8mNY | EEESGS ZHFIIE FRESH
BHRFER | FE TR | RERER | HERRES | 225 UE | RTBER | EFRRRA
AR E{E THifE FEZRARIR R EAR | ERSR [REAIR
Carrying Carrying subject to subject to |subject to the| subjectto |notsubject to
values as | values under | credit risk | counterparty |securitization| market risk capital
reported in scope of framework | creditrisk | framework | framework |requirements
published regulatory framework or subject to
financial |consolidation deduction
statements from capital
7220198128 31H As at 31 December 2019
BE Assets HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Ei;gﬁfﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬁ% Cash and balances with banks 288,228 288,228 288,228 - - - -
Placements with banks
TE BB EIZE T .
V2 12{E H Py maturing between one and 332,893 332,893 332,893 - - - -
twelve months
Loans and advances to
1?/# E T - - -
B BGRRAARA customers and other accounts 184,146 184,145 170,991 13,154
DA EES R HE .
g I t t t d
EEE A ol nvestment securities measure 307,017 307,017 307.017 i i i i
D2 g e at FVOCI
i L EE
IEW%Q}EZ&L% |Investment in subsidiaries | _| 1()| 1()| _| _| _| _I
|%¥ > SEE R B |Property, plant and equipment | 72,272| 72,272| 72,272| -| -| -| -|
|z |investment properties | 324,100| 324,100 324,100| ¥ ¥ ¥ 8
|§gqy@2ﬁ,§$ﬁ( |Tax recoverable | 106| 105| 105| -| -| -| -|
|zast | Total assets | 1508762]  1,508,770]  1,495,616] . | . 13,154|
[ | | | I | I | | |
| | Liabitities | | | | | | | |
Ig;ﬁﬁz%’( |Dep0sits from customers | 752,142| 753,090| —| —| —| —| 753,090'
|/E\:{ﬂ1§\{ﬁ)§li§§{% |Other liabilities and provisions 22,304| 21 ,863| —| —| —| —| 21 ,863|
| e s | Deferred tax liabilities | 7,493 7,493 g g g g 7,493
| | Total liabilities | 781,939 782,446| g - g -
L 1 1 ] ] ] ] ] ]

782,446|
|
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8 SRR E R AR 2 B ()

(Continued)

() ERRLI2 : BB R EBREM BERT 2

Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures

(ii) Template LI2: Main Sources of Differences Between Regulatory

WREE =82 TERIE Exposure Amounts and Carrying Values in Financial Statements
&) (b) | © ] &) | ©
ZPITEZFHF ZIEE Items subject to:
wt | mEEmEE | ety |51 O0RR ) THERE
TEZE ES
Credit risk Securitization Count.erp.arty Market risk
Total credit risk
framework framework framework
framework
2019512 H31H As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR Al T Asset carrying value amount
hiTA =S N VHE
| |miEm s g [ scope of regulatory 1,495,616 1,495,616 :
L) consolidation (as per template
LIl
IR e A E T & Liabilities carrying value
) {Eﬂ;j;%}ggﬁ%ﬁ (ke H}i amount under regulatory scope
L’T ] ; X A of consolidation (as per ) ) )
template LI1)
Total net amount under
[ N S|
3 Efﬁ%“m CEE T regulatory scope of 1,495,616 1,495,616 -
mI 73R consolidation
| 4 |%§E%F§%§9[\§Q%ﬁ Off-balance sheet amounts 1,527 1,527 -
ESENENpEE-EE bl Differences due to different
5 |FTSIEYERE (EFIA netting rules, other than those 4,874 4,874 -
F2THIEZARRIN ) already included in row 2
BT EENETERE Exposure amounts considered
6 By R SR A B ZE for regulatory purposes 1,502,017 1,502,017 )
(iii) FELIA : BN20194F12H 31 H &t EEEE g & (iii) Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and

R 2 2R

FARRRRLT LA (2) 51 2 Bis )5 HL 5 7T e FL AR
LA B AFEE2019F12H31H 2 47635
SR B RUR Frdm BT B Z S S A R
ZARRIT Z I B A B BV PR SR E I B ek
WYEE13A o SEENG T A 5 e S SR
B BERA -

Ll R et iR 4r e AR B A EEE A
R GFERBEAFIAE > (FRERRZ &GS
SEE R EREENEAT - mEAEARS
g~ #HERARAFRASRERRAH
- fERESTE IR Z 4R B IR {E T/ ERETEBRRL
112 (b)FIA o

FARERRLITA (a) F11ER (b) 51 2 Bedg - HoE 5L
REKX -

G TS S 2% 2 R T (L A T B R s AR
EFIRIMERRLI2A © 532019F12H31H » /W
HE T L o

Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2019

The amounts in column (a) in Template LI1 are taken from the consolidated
financial statements which have been prepared based on the consolidated
results and financial data of the Bank and its four wholly owned subsidiaries
made up to 31 December 2019. The four subsidiaries of the Bank are listed
in Note 13 of the consolidated financial statements. There are no
subsidiaries which have not been included in the consolidated financial
statements.

The above basis of consolidation for accounting purposes differs from the
basis of consolidation for regulatory purposes, under which only three of the
subsidiaries, namely, Success Land Enterprises Limited, Golden Wisdom
Development Limited and Team Gold Investment Limited, are included as
subsidiaries in the consolidated Group for regulatory purposes. The
consolidated carrying values under the scope of regulatory consolidation are
included under column (b) in Template LI1.

Differences between the amounts in columns (a) and (b) in Template LI1 are
not material.

The carrying values in the consolidated financial statements and the
regulatory exposure amounts are listed in Template LI2. There is no
difference between these two as at 31 December 2019.
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8 B ik BB s AR e 2 R E () Linkages between Financial Statements and Regulatory Exposures
(Continued)

(iii) FELIA : 32019412 31 H @5 B (iii) Table LIA: Explanations of Differences Between Accounting and
JES RSB Y W2 SRR (&) Regulatory Exposure Amounts as at 31 December 2019 (Continued)
BN T — R E B Z &R The Group does not engage in business that subject itself to counterparty
X G TS B R e ZE 68 K iS5 2Rk - credit risk framework and securitization framework. In addition, the Group
4k EEEFEESREE S HERT has received exemption granted by HKMA for calculating market risk.

FT R TS R -

EEBHMAESEAGBREANRINTEH The Group adopts prudent valuation estimates for all its on and off-balance
B (5E - EEAEHE G ET sheet items. The valuation techniques and methodology adopted by the
MG & 7 A E A RN i & A P SR 22 b Group has been detailed in Note 3.4 of the consolidated financial
3.4 o statements.

(iv) F2019F12H31H » RIBEEsFEHER (iv) The Template PV1 of the regulatory consolidated group as at 31
Z EEEEGE R RFMERRPVL December 2019 on prudent valuation adjustments is disclosed below.
U
APV - 2019412 H 31 H B EALE Template PV1 : Prudent Valuation Adjustments as at 31 December
Bl 2019
CREBER - RIBBRESESER) (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(a) (b) (©) (d (e ()] (g ()
ﬁEP : E .
o Her:
a RGMREER or ey
A nterest| . Commo-| Of which: In
Equity FX] Credit| . Total In the .
rates| dities] . the banking
trading bookl
booK]
FHE®2'000 HKS '000
1 & IR HEEN: Close-out uncertainty,
Hr of which: | i i i | i i i
2 R (E Mid-market value] - - . - i ; i .
3 IR Close-out costs| - - - i i i ) )
4 A Concentration - - - _ _ _ i )
5 BRFIZIE Early termination N , - | | | 1 )
6 VE b Model risk - - - e e - - -
7 BEESREEERE Operational risk - - - e e - - -
b T e A Investing and funding
e T ; - -
8 & NEBRA costs
9 RBEEERFZ= Unearned credit spreads - - -
10 |eerrrs A }:(L)lilsre administrative i i i 1 1 ] | i
11 | H A E: Other adjustments - - - i i ; 1 )
12 |HEeLEss Total adjustments - - N _ _ i ) )
Fif s Note:

TR N BRI (AR B
AATRIE AT A {E R -

The Bank is not required to make andy valuation adjustments for the
purpose of Banking (Capital) Rules section 4A.
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BEAGHE LR BN (IRBEEGREE
)

20194E12 431 H &20194E6 H30H 2 &
A7 R EER TR E 201441 5 1 HBH4A
R RTECER)HAGTER » WFR
TRIBSRT T (EA) HRIE3 (D IRFRETE
HERIT 2 47 &L -

DUF 5174 20194E12 5 31 H 522019
FOoH30H ZBAEEAR (BERRCCT) 20
194E12 731 H }2019F6 H30H LLdrs
LA M BB ST 2 B AT (
FERRCC2) °

(DIERRCCT : R20194E 1231 HEEE

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The calculation of the capital ratios as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019 is based on
the Banking (Capital) Rules (“BCR”) effective from 1 January 2014. The capital ratios
represent consolidated ratios of the Bank computed in accordance with section 3(1) of the

BCR.

The tables below present the composition of the regulatory capital as at 31 December 2019
and 30 June 2019 (Template CC 1) and the balance sheets based on the accounting scope
of consolidation and the regulatory reporting scope respectively as at 31 December 2019

and 30 June 2019 (Template CC 2).

(i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019

K7 4HRR (RERE - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
RBEEGOER)
RFEEESAHE TE
EAERNSEREBMR
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
B(%H| sheet under the regulatory
CGEE'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
YBRRE—4R(CET)E A : BB R At CET]1 capital: instruments and reserves
1 ERRS TS ERCETIEAZE R INE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital 264.987 .
{aHE BRI AT 177 v 1 instruments plus any related share premium ’ )
CREF A Retained earnings 411,254 (7)
E B Disclosed reserves 5,071 B)HA)H5)H6)
., IR N L Directly issued capital subject to phase-out . .
. |FrecEn BeR s s oot (o Tt i A
& (RABRIEAALNT) arrangements from CETT (only applicable to Not applicable Not applicable
o v non-joint stock companies)
N e et e s pe b g Minority interests arising from CET1 capital
EAR Er R TH B A EI 8T S = 7 e o e bk
i it R, instruments issued by consolidated ban
s |[FAmeEnEsmmELn wmR e oo e t
WS (TTEF A 2 MBI CET 1 A 1) subsidiaries and held by third parties (amoun -
o BIANREAR N allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation
EEED)
group)
6 |ESEERE Y FINCETI S A CET]1 capital before regulatory adjustments 681,312
CET1E& 4 : BEBHIR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
7 ME{EFEEE Valuation adjustments -
N N Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax
8 M (CAIRRAHBAYIRENIHE ) o ( -
liabilities)
9 Hitnfmr & E (CHIBREBAYRE LR Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred )
THER) tax liabilities)
IRIEMIEE E (OB A B iR Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
10 - . -
THEH) liabilities)
B BT oo Dl v 7 Cash flow hedge reserve -
12 1EIRBETEUA TELARZH B H A B 1S4 Excess of total EL amount over total eligible
S 8 provisions under the IRB approach )
H 8 5 b8 5 A A RETHE AR Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-|
13 [ B8 ~ B K CETI & Ay HcA on-sale and other increase in the CET1 capital -
N EEE arising from securitization transactions
14 N EEGENEERASNE Gains and losses due to changes in own credit
J\ i S e Py A Y4B risk on fair valued liabilities -
15 FUEMIZSHVBIR S EE S5 & (B4 Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of
FrAR IR IR REATIH & ) associated deferred tax liabilities) )
FMERER BIVCET I EARZEIENIREE ( Investments in own CET1 capital instruments (if
16 |E RSN EEABEEPRE not already netted off paid-in capital on reported -
SEEAPHIER ) balance sheet)
. B Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital
25 / oo -
17 |FLAA U ICET | B A S N
e e A N Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
E@ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁéﬁﬂﬂ’?l\ﬂ@ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ% instl%’uments issued by financial sector entit?es that
18 [EF1THICET I S A =AY RLACK -

& (BUH10%F I %0

are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

(amount above 10% threshold)
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9 BEREBEREER(RBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
() BEARCCL : A20194E12H31 HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BARZ HRL (R E - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RBEEEGEER) (§)
REUEESCHET
BEEBERNSERE
Rxis
Source based on
reference numbers of the
balance sheet under the
B5E regulatory scope of]
CGE¥'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount consolidation
- P o At Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
A B A 42 \ 4B i
19 g;ﬁ%;ﬁii%#g;giﬁiiﬁza instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
’Eg H\jl 0 quﬁé ZE;R) ; R outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount )
= o above 10% threshold)
20 R MEEHRE (EIURARRR Y IE 2E Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A5 R A
MIHE ) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
2 FHETH M 72 B e AR Y IR IR TE B e Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences VS| VS|
(BB ERRTE & (E ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 B H1 5% > # Amount exceeding the 15% threshold 3 F Not applicable 3 F Not applicable
23 Hr A SRR LY EALHYE A |of which: significant investments in the ordinary share of S ESEL
BE financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
24 |FHo o iR L EE TE of which: mortgage servicing rights K3 Fi Not applicable K3 Fi Not applicable
55 Ho o RS EE A YR ER T |of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary AN AN
HE differences Not applicable Not applicable
WA CETI BRI EA S S ES | National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 |jees . 276,416
ek capital
S R EEEEY) (B ERIEERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation
26a ETEEEGETESNERZAFGEME  |of land and buildings (own-use and investment 274,616 (3)+(8)
Uzs properties)
26b | — %R TS R\ BE i (5 Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 (6)
2% ERVE B B4 THVR A TR Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by
Cl ot — -
FRA RS K S the MA
26d RtRERF A 1Y 3 B @SS e Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from
ENEAEEINEEN EfgEia the institution's holdings of land and buildings .
26e | ZHEIRSRITIT @ A FIE AR R Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
T B R E A Y\ T FiyE  |Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f | A E (U RS AT 1S commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
'y /) institution's capital base)
RGHE T EATIE AR K —HERLL Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due to
27 |HEHIBR T ZE(ECET I E A IRRAYEEZH] |insufficient AT capital and Tier 2 capital to cover -
ik deductions
28 |BICET1 & ARy B & IR AEEE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 276,416
29 |CET1I A CET1 capital 404,896
ATIEA : =g AT1 capital: instruments
30 GEEAT I E AR NN {al FH e B 5 Qualifying AT capital instruments plus any related share
s premium .
31 H o R A S ERT B ASE  |of which: classified as equity under applicable
il accounting standards B
1 Ho o MRS RS B EEE of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
| accounting standards )
B , v Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
SR T BT R B - - -
33 | FEATI E LT TN TE R 55 | rom AT capital
R4S IRTHE AR T RE= AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
34 |FFEMATIEAZRE (Mt AGESE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
ERATIE AR AVEER) AT1 capital of the consolidation group)
35 Hifr LN A F A E e |of which: AT capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
LI RATAT] & K 22 subject to phase-out arrangements B
36 |BEEHIRZ HIRVATIE A& AT1 capital before regulatory deductions -
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conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)

9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
(i) BERRCCL * A2019412 831 HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BARZ R (REE- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RREESROER) (&)
KEUEEGEHETE
EAERNSZ R
-
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
EZH| sheet under the regulatory
B 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
ATIEAR © BEEHI AT1 capital: regulatory deductions
37 | SHIATI E AR E Investments in own AT1 capital instruments B,
38 | HHEAC NIFAHATI EAREE Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT capital instruments -
e - Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
A B A e \ ] o iy 2 i it
39 Z;'Jj::?}Eflfkmgiﬁiég;?ﬁiﬁsiifi instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
’Eg ﬁl()”/i] ?I‘E':g g ) XA outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount )
= o above 10% threshold)
. N Significant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments
A B A 4 IS T [ A i 2 e it
40 g};ﬁg}} E ‘iTk’:;E ;%ﬁg;&%iﬁ% iﬁg issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
T HARIR A scope of regulatory consolidation
4l HHPATI EARR G A E S e National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1 i
(S capital
42 RGH e e 1) —EA LA TIRRI 28 Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to ]
TEAT I E AR EE & R insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 |BATI EAR BB AREH Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital -
44 AT1EAR AT1 capital .
45 ;ﬁggg (—8FA = CEIIRA + 4y, capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1) 404,896
TEEAR  ERREES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
46 GBS e A BE R Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related i
g share premium
s . e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
/; 7k — gt R Y St 1T 25 7 -
47 | A R E T T & R from Tier 2 capital
4 EHRTNE AT T ITHE=T Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 IFEN_HERERE (it ALGEESE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
B 4R E AR EEE ) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
49 Hifr (il B LN B T Z AR |of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries i
G R & K 2 subject to phase-out arrangements
50 GBI A R ERNEREEG SR Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general 1.800 ©)
— SR TS b LS (S g banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital ’
51 |BEEHIRZRI _—REAR Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
TEHEA - BREHIR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
52 |NEREAR B 1) R EAREBR IR E Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments -
53 | AR XFFAN) —E AR Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
- e et s Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N AT B AL g A A T [y AN o
g};ﬁ% E Zg if;;ggjg%gfﬁ;? instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
54 :i{gﬁé\io;%ﬁ;;( S 5% FXEJ outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount -
;; N §Z) o = 0 above 10% threshold and, where applicable, 5%
= threshold)
e e A T T o Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
MEREE LR AR DA MY SR S o . iy .
gg?;i;LX; ; ;E.Eﬁéztﬁliljéii% liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
Zﬁﬁ;\ﬁb & %Eﬁéq R R );2\23: scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly
I, 0 AR = .
S54a H o designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the -
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EEEE) ()
(@) BEARCCL © JR20194E12H31 HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
B R (BT - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
IRBEE SR EEE) (&)
REMEESGCHRE TE
EABERNSTHREBMK
B
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
B%H| sheet under the regulatory
B 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
o I Significant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N B A g A V| GG 4 iy e
55 g};ﬁg}} %[/gii‘;igggifiii fﬁ instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
Xg h —;\i i %;; ) A outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of )
(BB &R eligible short positions)
- - Significant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
A B A e \ 7 Lo iy 2 i it
55 QEE;ié%?jg’]@gﬁEigiﬂ%iﬁ liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
a K {]Ei:,ﬂ % %_;éi ; XA scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short )
PRERIEAER positions)
N B B A S National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2
56 |jes . (143,833)
LS capital
bl 1 s Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
P e 2R A A k
7][1’[% o Ejﬁd‘}\#%;\\ﬁﬁ’]%fﬁ& revaluation of land and buildings (own-use and [2)+(3)*+(8)]
S6a [V (B RISHAIR) EITEE investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 (143,833) *45%
; S A 3%
(T2 0 B A TR canital
13 (& 55 o) E&FH
<t ?’ij E ;(i K*ﬁ?ﬂ??ﬁ ﬁ%;[(”j;ggi %fj Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
Ejﬁé’uﬁ AAE—FCTMLPRITELE . e required deductions falling within $48(1)(g) of BCR .
/)
57 | B AR E IR AR Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (143,833)
58 | Z4KEAS Tier 2 capital (T2) 145,633
s % N
59 %Eigﬁfﬁ (BAA = —@FF Total regulatory capital (TC =T1 + T2) 550,529
60 |EBEIESREE Total RWA 611,569
BALR(EEEIEEENE ) Capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
61 |CET1 &EARLERR CET1 capital ratio 66.21%
62 | —&EAREER Tier 1 capital ratio 66.21%
63 |#EEAREER Total capital ratio 90.02%
MRS EREEATR ([ESEEHE Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 |AREEZE N FEEIEETEARLEE conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 9.00%
S S TRAE T EER ) buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 | H1fr : B E SR LR of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.500%
A1 SRTE R GR E E A L% |of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer o
66 . . 2.000%
ES e requirement
67 | E i - B E IR T HEEE T BB of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
68 FEFEREEAHER T HERL CET! (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting 5721%
CET1 (AL g AEm &= 4L ) minimum capital requirements :
B3k A i s 1 O FEE B
gé%;ﬁgzggiééﬁ” (B2 National minima (if different from Basel 3 minimum)
=) mEEKARE
. . . S N3
A CET R L N 1 CETI _ !
69 | AR EHEECETLR &L ational C minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
B} . . . . A AN ]
SEAS R T — AR S A =
70 |EAEEE — R E AR RKEEE National Tier 1 minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
3 . L . A3 AN
B EMEE R R RIS . .
71 |EEEEEEE R EEEER National Total capital minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BEHRCCI © FA2019FE 1231 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BARZ R (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
MR E SR 21 ()
REMEEGEBETE
EARRNSERE AR
B
Source based on reference
BUEE numbers of the balance
(GE¥E'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount| sheet under the regulatory
. . Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before
N S o
BRI IEYRA CBBRIIRERT) visk welghting)
NEEEAE S HE DM SR T e T Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2
72 |HCETIE AR - ATIEARZEE K —HE capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that -
EEAVIEE RLACIEE are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
” o I _ Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital instruments
A B AL 4 A \ 7 o iy S i i 55
7 gggﬁiw;jﬁgi\ﬂ?ﬁ&% RS issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
: SRS A scope of regulatory consolidation
74 P HEE M (EIRRMERRAY IR IEFR IE Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax A5 PSR
&) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
75 AT M= B AR IRERIEE E (B30 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences RE St
EAERR A IR AR ITE & (R ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
S 5 5 ) Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier
kst A 4% Sp SN
BET A AR AVE LR 2 capital
oAl 1 e st Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
Ak N ar =17]
76 ;"Z:EQS}}(;&;;?};@?EEQE}EEA SEC-SA exposures subject to the BSC approach, or the STC 1.800
;igéC/FBAT\E E’;:é % ( JTE_ LR AT )_ approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior ’
- ) VRS LS PRl to application of cap)
TEBSCEHELABISTCEFE A K SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA ~ SEC-SA Kz SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 9,154
FBA T il3H A~ SR A& IR SA and SEC-FBA
oAl 1 e st NN Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
P e - TPRELES S
78 ;Ili ?ﬁ]i}?ﬂjjﬁﬁ{zfﬂ?fi?ﬁ%ti&& exposures subject to the IRB approach and SEC-IRBA -
) TR (K <R (prior to application of cap)
79 TEIRBEHE A K, SEC- Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB .
IRBA F H] &+ A 4R EAFAVEF S FIR approach and SEC-IRBA
] NN - Capital instruments subject to phase-out
Z Jf}%‘ § ? .
iﬁiﬁgéfgﬁi%%?%ﬁ %%?—:20 arrangements(only applicable between 1 Jan 2018 and
= 1 Jan 2022)
%0 FIFL W L RETCET ] R Z 51775 Current cap on CETI capital instruments subject to ST A3 A
77 LR |phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
31 HIFE BN LRI ST ACETIIESE (TE5T Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over cap A3 3
RSB o] R FHTARIR 6 &8 IR = %6 after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
8 TV LA RATAT] B K0 H Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase- )
77 LR out arrangements
83 BRE W FIRIT A AATIE AR 77848 ( Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess )
FEEF RAE o] R ZIHIEIRE & H IR = %) over cap after redemptions and maturities)
%4 FIFHENE i LA RET R R T H Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to )
77 LR [phase-out arrangements
85 R E IR FTA 4R EE R HTEAE ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess i
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BEHRCCI © FA2019FE 1231 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BAZHB (FEEZ-TRIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EERE) (&)
TR - Notes to the Template:
BBERE (EZ=EHE=)
TE|RE Description Hong Kong Foom
basis Basel 111 basis
0 HEirmeEE (B AEBrVRIEREER®) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred i i
tax liabilities)
fiEfE Explanation
FAIEERZE RN (BEBHE=) X As set out in paragraph 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
AR (20104121 ) E8TEXFRAIE, » fzigitaies mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be
MR FCETIEANT LA RE M. (WK excluded from deduction from CET! capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
T ECET1 E AR P ER kR - HLAFS Pt required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
BIR) - EFE oM ESIEa gt the AI's financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to
R o BRI EE T RE D] B e A R be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
AT 2N SR04y > WRCETIE reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.e.
T B TR (LSS TR - R FE5597T the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
B A PHIRAEZE T e = (EZEER deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
EZ) HEAEITRITESE - AN T (B threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
EBES) HEME | H BRIy Kk CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities
HIESEOTAE A (BIE T Hofe | or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
T NERAVEERD) o SRR AR TR
Fizeiofiegaili 4 (¢ g VNI I Y =F o o
(BZERBE=) Tl iaUE R EN
10%F 1 R iz e (B T - d s A 52
P A2 Y AR AERSL P 3 7 B < R S G SR TIY
CETIEAZEENEARE (FTuEEHAEE
INEIRYEK ~ Rlm B A (S R R E i &
) FERY 1 SHEERGF I R IR -
10 REMIEEE (BEHIREHGREREE®) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax i i
liabilities)
fiEre Explanation

IEANEIEMZ S ST (EERBE=)
A (2010512 ) 5569 R 8TELFRF®E - 17T
1T LAESRAVIR AR IH B A /0 TR - 1T ALY
e 2 A [l Y AR TS T o E Y FTAECET 1 & A
NP LUAIRERERY (AR P {ECET I E A AT
IR o HIFREFIE IR ) - fEEE

i A B ENAR - SR HECETI AR
h & BETRAT A EERR A E - EIE - 7510
TIPSR AT HIRAVEE T RE & e (E2EM
e =) FUEAHIRAIEER - AP T (
CEER e =) B4k ) T T HEHRAVEE HAGH
FEAVTE S 1 07 T ATRE SRV S R AR B E S5 10
TTPrEEERAVEEE (AITE " JBAREE | TH TR
0L S€ SRR k- Piprvres i€ =E{lVE LAY G G
AFARARVIE RIS A A T DU T - A2
FEE (CEEE=) Tt ERe
FE AR AV IR AE R T B E I AE A 1 O%F I Rk 8

(ECEEE ~ R M2 B AT 2R WY AR FE R TH
HESN ERIE TR THICETI B A RISV E
RICE (MEFEBEAEEAFAER - flid
BCH At (E AR BRI ) FrE iy EERS 15%

Pt R -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary|
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET]1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the
column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under|
Basel 1L
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
E8E) (&)
(i) BERRCCT : 7201912831 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BERZHBR (R B -RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EE) (&)
BRI R - (4 Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEZAEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel 111 basis
REEEGAHE DI SRETERTTHN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETI EAEBNIEE RLACKE (BH10%9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 |f&-81)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BT E N SR TR TINCETI E A IBMIE For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
HALACKSE444E » S0 n s E R it T instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
HAT{0] B 4 R S B B 1 A )\ S T 5 EE facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
YL ~ Rlo@slE (S B R s R IEN & ET48%E connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
» ERANEZ SRR ~ BB s S A R R were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
M E A C MBS AR AREEZS financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
PSS S AT Y M A R AR loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
o RS T B 2 S5 B G (5 E (S A0S A RS A E ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may
S TOBRE e BT A% e~ T be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
SR e R (T 0] 3% % H (S R e R in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
Bk o HIE 0 15551 81 THTHE /8 T HIJR 0y SE basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
SN (BEEEES) HEEHRE Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
9 FEARGIIE T (BEMES) B E
T SR A SRR 7 55 18T T DRI
# (BIAE TEAARE | HNEERAOVEED M
FHEETT A BRI B R Y U7 A N AR
YR PT T RE A E A BT ERR  RlE s At
15 R\ B R HE R S T4 -
RESEEESHE DI SHETERTH Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETI EAEBIE ARLACKE (FEH10% 9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19 |[Z80O are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation _ _

(amount above 10% threshold)

e

RETER ERIEH AR R TRICETI A AR B E
RLACR A SR S it R T H

A < 2 B Y A O R O Y
SR~ Rl s A (S R R SRy ST AREE

SLAIRZ S EERK ~ Rl A (3 P b AR o
A E A R A S E R T A R
SEEBIAREE I MR £
RETRE B S S I ( HE A T R R AL A
SER R PE AT S ERR - RS
R B0 [EE A T 3% T LA P P B A U B
Sb - Rt - FESF 19T FHE R TR B ]
g (CEMRE=) FUESITRAEE
CAEARKEAN T (EIEMBE=) 54 HT
DR S Y BB AR Ry S S RE Y AE 56 1 97T P DR S Y BB
CBIFE T BB | I AR ) o T
BT FE R B BRI A JTE T A TR
SRR R A SRR - BB AE
PR\ AR S Y & 5 T4 -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may
be greater than that required under Basel III. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
E8E) (&)
(i) BERRCCT : 7201912831 HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 31 December 2019
BERZHBR (R B -RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EE) (&)
H & 4 Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEZAEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel 111 basis
NEEEGZATREIINISRZE BTN Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIEAEBNIEE RLACKE (EH10%FT& instruments issued by financial sector entities that
39 |78 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BN EEAREBIT B T EEREE The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
BEEA B\ E AV EER ~ RluE s E A (S E G financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
EIERBCETIEAZERE (R EXARBERE18 made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
{THIMTEE ) (EHHIRRAVSE SR » B4 NE headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
ATIEARE N EAArIEE ALACKY S E AH IR insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
HER G P 2 R R BE A BT AE /N - TRIE » 425839 be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
FTRTESE THI R EE T e =i (R reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.e.
WE=) HEEHIROTEEE - AN T ( the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
EEERES) B | IE Tl EEE &R loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
A3 TR MRS EEE (BfE T Bika deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
o HNERVEE) o MEHEIAERRER
FEER N 7705 T /A AR 3 O S S gt
NEIRYE ~ Bl B At (E R R ey EEt
HHHH -
REREESHEYMISHETESTH Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
CHREREBAIEE RLACEE (GEH10%M instruments issued by financial sector entities that
54 BE (CAEA) SeFiE 80 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

e

R et EEA TS 2 R 0t T E R
YA SRR ~ RS F
HRIEGRCETIEA SR (R ESCH BRI 18

TTAYMSEE ) A AR &R - RSB

T AR A A ZEE A H A B RLACR AT B A

HURETER R P I 2= I T RE & A A/ - RIIE

TEEE SATTFTHE A TRV EER T SE g =T (
EZEM AL =) M AHURAVEER - AN
0" (EZEREED) A% T T ERIEEE
Fo SRR S SATTRTPE IV BUAH (BIE T &

AERE | T T IERAVEER) - HRIAER

BRAEZ AR 0705 T A TR IR i A
A NTEIN SRR - Rl s A R R i
M ET4EE -

Explanation

The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.e.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

i
ESTHR R | ORI SHP M AR (A
BIl) W2 AP SR 5887 HICET L A
ERANE TS - | RECEAEE
G (CEARES) XK (2010612
) SBSBELFTIL » BT BRI LA -

Remarks:

The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on the
amount of CET1 capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR|
Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
() FERRCCL * 201956 A30H B (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
B GHRR (R E - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
IRBEESGREEE)
REUEESCBEETE
EABERNSFRERMK
7
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
BZg| sheet under the regulatory
CGEE'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
zﬁﬁﬁg—gﬁ(cml)gz(: P R R CET]1 capital: instruments and reserves
| BTN EERCETIEAREE T Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital instruments plus 264987 .
rTAR BRI RS {7 i any related share premium ’ Q)
2 R Retained earnings 415,640 (@)
3 |CHEEEGEE Disclosed reserves 5,886 B)HHHS5)+(6)
- , P Directly issued ital subject to phase-out . N
) EACETI AT AR E 58 A irec yzssute ‘cangE;L]« _/ecl op ;seb(;u[ . i ST
& (RIS ) arrangements from (only applicable to non-join Not applicable Not applicable
A YR stock companies)
A4S IRTTH B A T8/ HE =77  |Minority interests arising from CET1 capital instruments
5 FAERCETI S A A/ VEIL S |issued by consolidated bank subsidiaries and held by
s (3 ASFSEERCETIE AR third parties (amount allowed in CET1 capital of the )
HEE) consolidation group)
6 |EEETEE Y BIMYCETIE AR CET]1 capital before regulatory adjustments 686,513
CETIE&EA : BEBHIR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
7 [ E Valuation adjustments -
8 | (BB IEERIEARE) Goodwill (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) -
9 HitmPEE (CHIBRMAERTELR Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred tax
THAFD) liabilities) -
10 RIERIEE E (O EREY B AR Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax
HE) liabilities) -
11 B B Ea Cash flow hedge reserve -
12 1EIRBAHEEA FELAEHB N & B %1 Excess of total EL amount over total eligible provisions
FE 4R B under the IRB approach -
HEE B2 5 AR HE FH R 47 Credit-enhancing interest-only strip, and any gain-on-sale
13 |BE{5%E -~ HEUrss RCETI & AR HAth and other increase in the CET1 capital arising from -
Mg securitization transactions
14 AN EEGAENEBERASHERH Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair
JE\l B P A R valued liabilities -
15 SEFIZSHVE RS E 4 FEE (B4 |Defined benefit pension fund net assets (net of associated
FrAR A R IH A () deferred tax liabilities) -
IERER B HICETI EAREEAVIRE ( Investments in own CET1 capital instruments (if not
16 | B RAETHENEEAERETRE already netted off paid-in capital on reported balance -
BeEA PR ) sheet)
17 | AR XA ICETI E A Reciprocal cross-holdings in CET1 capital instruments -
St s A s e v Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
R B R M R | o e e crer entitis that
18 |57 e9CET1 B A e 3 A LACHS instruments issued by financial sector entities that are )
:i 0% F% ffﬁ’fz ) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
R o above 10% threshold)
o I Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
N B 85 42 O 7 ] [ £y o iy 202 i ity
19 gifj::g; ;ﬁijg#g;giiiiﬁjg instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
églw %EEE\Z%S = A ( outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount )
= Pt above 10% threshold)
20 IR E TR (EFOERAER IR T Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax e ST
fRIEEE) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
21 PTG M 2 L A IR B TE B 7 ( Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences ESEE A3
E ISR AR IR e F TE & (E ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
22 |#BH15%M 1% > 8L Amount exceeding the 15% threshold AR FH Not applicable A3 F Not applicable
Hr o AR E A A E R of which: significant investments in the ordinary share of i A A3
23 - . .. . .
& financial sector entities Not applicable Not applicable
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
() BEARCCL : 201946 H30H B (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BARZ R (REE- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RBEEGEER) (§)
REUEEGEHET
HEARRNSEHREY
R
Source based on
reference numbers of the
#48| balance sheet under the
B 000) (Presented in HKS$'000) Amount regulatory scope of]
24 |Hrh o B At EE R of which: mortgage servicing rights %3 I Not applicable i FINot applicable
Horf o fER S B AEIEFRTE  |of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary A ESEL
25 |2 . . .
=3 differences Not applicable Not applicable
AP CETI EARN G A HE S i National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1
26 | . 285,380
Rk capital
R+t R 2252y (B RISERR) Cumulative fair value gains arising from the revaluation
26a |MEfTEEEMNMZEANZERAFEEE  [of land and buildings (own-use and investment 283,580 (3)+(8)
Was properties)
26b | —fER 1T RS SR BE i (5 Regulatory reserve for general banking risks 1,800 (6)
2% SREHE S48 TS HNES Securitization exposures specified in a notice given by
I g -
Bl t’ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁxz R the MA
26d RN AT 1 1 R SRR EX8T |Cumulative losses below depreciated cost arising from
BN A EE M E AN BfEEE the institution's holdings of land and buildings )
26e | ZHEIERITIH B A\ SN E AR K Capital shortfall of regulated non-bank subsidiaries -
AT ERG TRy % N5 FfJ%&  |Capital investment in a connected company which is a
26f | AFEE (HEHY R AR AR R BEY 15 commercial entity (amount above 15% of the reporting -
% 8y institution's capital base)
RS H T EMIATIEAR f — 4R E AR DL Regulatory deductions applied to CET1 capital due to
27 |EEHIRTIZEAECETIE AHIRAYESS4]  |insufficient AT capital and Tier 2 capital to cover -
i deductions
28 |BICET1 & AR BB AR EE Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital 285,380
29 [CET1 &Z CET1 capital 401,133
Aﬂﬁz{: C B AT]1 capital: instruments
30 BEREAT 1 E A ELIE N fa A BE R Qualifying AT capital instruments plus any related share
/ﬁn1 = premium B
31 o MR A S ERT B ASE  |of which: classified as equity under applicable
il accounting standards i
32 Horp o fgE A et LRI S R A of which: classified as liabilities under applicable
;E‘JIJ accounting standards i
, e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
; S 1= ; . -
33 | RUEATI R A B BT ATHE |from ATI capital
4 S SRTIHT B A B &7 HE 73 AT1 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
34 |FFEMATIEAZR: (A3t A4ie s subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
EVATI E AR EZE ) AT1 capital of the consolidation group)
35 Hifr LY T F A YE R |of which: AT capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
GHFRIRATAT] &K 225 subject to phase-out arrangements }
36 |BEEHIRZAIMATIE A AT1 capital before regulatory deductions -
37 ISR BIIATI E AR ZEBNREE Investments in own AT1 capital instruments -
38 | EAHAE YAF A MIATI E AN EE 1 Reciprocal cross-holdings in AT1 capital instruments -
il v Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
PEREGERELMERReng [ by financial sector entiies hat ar
39 é'%(TE’]ATIkZIK e K LACKYE struments issued by financial sector entities that are )
CHBH0%F TEF/ZT%Z) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
o above 10% threshold)
o Significant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments
R L SR L
40 ggt HIATI f‘;&rj%éfjglﬁféfg L issued by financial sector entities that are outside the -
T AR A scope of regulatory consolidation
4l BRPATIE RN EEEE R R National specific regulatory adjustments applied to AT1
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EEE) (H)
(i) BERRCCL © 120196 H30H EE & (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
B HRR (R - (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
IRBEESGREERE) (&)
REUEESCHEETE
EABERNSFREBMK
7
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
BZE| sheet under the regulatory
CGEE'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
ATIER © BEEH R AT]1 capital: regulatory deductions
42 KRG H e B 1 4R E AR DR 28 Regulatory deductions applied to AT1 capital due to i
TEATIE AR EE & IR insufficient Tier 2 capital to cover deductions
43 | AT E AR B HIRGEZE Total regulatory deductions to AT1 capital -
44 AT1EAR AT1 capital .
—REA (—BEh - EILEA ¢ |
45 o Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1 401,133
ATIZEA) pital ( )
HREA  EEEEES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
46 BB R E AR NI o] A B R Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments plus any related )
(g share premium
s . e Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements
TEE R E TN &R, . : )
4T |\FlE =R TL R AR firom Tier 2 capital
4 SRTN B AT ST IHRE=T Tier 2 capital instruments issued by consolidated bank
48 | A EARZEE ([ ALGEEE subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in -
By R EARATEEE ) Tier 2 capital of the consolidation group)
49 i1 ;B LS B TIEZ A WE R |of which: capital instruments issued by subsidiaries
LRI &N subject to phase-out arrangements
50 BB A GE RIS R Collective provisions and regulatory reserve for general 1.800 6
— SR TS b L (S g banking risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital ’ ©)
51 |BEEHIRZ AT —_REA Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,800
TEEA  BSEHIR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions
52 |iNMEREAR B 4 E R BN E Investments in own Tier 2 capital instruments -
53 | MR XFFAER) R E AR Reciprocal cross-holdings in Tier 2 capital instruments -
St s At s Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
WEREGARENI SR |8 \ o
ot gk e instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
54 |BTHI A A TR IEELACK & . - -
0% > ) outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (amount
(L 10% T above 10% threshold)
IS GG EHE LM RIZEER  |Insignificant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
HIIEEARLACAERYIEE KLACIEE ( liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
54 2RI E BB ShP I E B R R scope of regulatory consolidation (amount formerly|
a HAFEMIEGREZ ) (HEAHNNME designated for the 5% threshold but no longer meets the )
(ERIA]) WFTRAFEL(DE THE conditions) (for institutions defined as “section 2
b TGRS | F) institution” under §2(1) of Schedule 4F to BCR only)
o S Significant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
N B A 4 A T [ £y o iy 02 i
55 gifj::g; %%ii#@giﬁiiﬁjﬁ instruments issued by financial sector entities that are
?giulfgifg;g ) A outside the scope of regulatory consolidation (net of )
ARE R eligible short positions)
o . Significant LAC investments in non-capital LAC
N B A 4 A T [ £y o iy 02 i
55 g/\;f/z%igﬁ:{f{g gﬁ{igﬁfﬁ%;fﬁ liabilities of financial sector entities that are outside the
a K i*;}g?\ﬁﬁ) A scope of regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short )
ARE R positions)
56 W A ARRY B A S National specific regulatory adjustments applied to Tier 2 (147.867)
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9 EFERETEBERRBEESE Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EA) (H)
() BERRCCT © R2019FE6 H30HEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BARZ R (REE- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
RBEEGEER) (§)
REUEESCBEETE
EABRERNSERE AR
7
Source based on reference
numbers of the balance
BZg| sheet under the regulatory
CGEE'000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount scope of consolidation
it ol 1 g Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising from the
POIBLE B A~ SR EARMIP LH Be o o T i (0 . NP
s6a |Esay) (B FARIGERR) EFEE revaluation of lan an) 1ulblln%s (owrll-use an e (147.867) [2)+(3)*+(8)]
. N o investment properties) eligible for inclusion in Tier ’ *45%,
o 11 28 4 1 B A PR e apral T ¢
el s I ere A7
se %}Eﬁ iﬁ*ﬁ?j >>_ ?;fﬁ%;é?;g’gﬁfz Regulatory deductions applied to Tier 2 capital to cover
po jﬁt’b“m ARSI AHPRITECR e required deductions falling within §48(1)(g) of BCR i
57 |B R E AR E HIRAEZE Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital (147,867)
58 | ZEREA Tier 2 capital (T2) 149,667
59 %’%‘éjﬁéﬁgﬁ (A = —GRA Total regulatory capital (TC = T1 + T2) 550,800
+ ZHREAR)
60 |EBEIMEEEE Total RWA 630,411
BARLR(EEEIEEENT 7t Capital ratios (as a percentage of RWA)
61 |CET1 &AEER CET1 capital ratio 63.63%
62 | —ghEAREER Tier 1 capital ratio 63.63%
63 |4EE AR Total capital ratio 87.37%
Mets s e ErE AREER ([h#45E L |Institution-specific buffer requirement (capital
64 |AEEZR N EEASE EEAEER 1 conservation buffer plus countercyclical capital 9.50%
= I S R RE TEEZR) buffer plus higher loss absorbency requirements)
65 | A - B S KRR of which: capital conservation buffer requirement 2.500%
Hoifr : SRT A R R i A AL |of which: bank specific countercyclical capital buffer
66 . . 2.500%
ZEK requirement
67 | A - BE R IR PR TR of which: higher loss absorbency requirement 0.00%
68 FHIERFER(EERNR E% v {LERAY CET] (as a percentage of RWA) available after meeting 54.13%
CET1 ({8 nnREsEEny = ks ) minimum capital requirements 270
A EEREEER 58 (EEH . S -
T i National minima (if different from Basel 3 minimum
E=) REERRRE) ( )
69 |EAEEEECET fKEER National CET1 minimum ratio Kﬁfﬁ I@_ﬁﬁ
Not applicable Not applicable
s e . . . . S N3
=1); ﬁ%inu*% =N = Nat 1T 1 t . |
70 |EEEEE — N ERE{KEER ational Tier I minimum ratio Not applicable Not applicable
71 |EAE RS E RN R EE=R National Total capital minimum ratio I@‘fﬂ K@fﬁ
Not applicable Not applicable
- n . Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before
SRR (R [LO0 B
MEEEE S SRR DM SRl E e Insignificant LAC investments in CET1, AT1 and Tier 2
72 |ZE{THYCETI EAZESE - ATIEAZE capital instruments issued by financial sector entities that -
B A E AR E AV IEE RLACI & are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
. e N Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
N B 4 A K Ao B 2 e
73 ;ﬁ;&ﬂif&;g’;giffiﬁjg instruments issued by financial sector entities that are -
RATH: AR A outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
74 IR E TR (EAOERER A IR T Mortgage servicing rights (net of associated deferred tax RE A3t A
fRIEEE) liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EBE) (8)
(i) BEHRCCL : [R20194E6 H30HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BERZHBR (R EX-RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
EER) (H)
KEUEEGEBETE
ERERNSERBAHK
B
Source based on reference
g ] numbers of the balance
(' 000) (Presented in HK$'000) Amount| sheet under the regulatory
75 FHET I M 22 B A VIR eI & . (240 Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences i i
FrAR IR AR TE B ) (net of associated deferred tax liabilities) Not applicable Not applicable
snon § —pme . s Applicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier
BaT A G S LR 2 capitl
byl 4 = Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
Ak A NS
o iﬁﬁj}\j“ﬂfﬁmﬁgawc exposures subject to the BSC approach, or the STC
76 |STEIESSTCAHEE 2 SEC-ERBA ~ SEC-SA . 1,800
% SEC-FRAFHJEMS 4 (FEM LIRAT) approach and SEC-ERBA, SEC-SA and SEC-FBA (prior
) s e Al to application of cap)
TEBSCEH L ATSTCE A K. SEC- Cap on inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the BSC
77 |ERBA ~ SEC-SA Kz SEC- approach, or the STC approach, and SEC-ERBA, SEC- 9,502
FBA N A5+ A SR EARRYAEH & EIR SA and SEC-FBA
- N e NN Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of
P AVEZS S > N
78 |- E*§D+A_t&EZKEqﬁE§IRBDt§/£& exposures subject to the IRB approach and SEC-IRBA -
SEC- IRBA MY & (JEFH LIRAT)
) VR LS <Al (prior to application of cap)
79 EIRBETHLE K. SEC- Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under the IRB i
IRBA T A5+ A — 4R E AP AyEE# 4 IR approach and SEC-IRBA
1_~ ST - Capital instruments subject to phase-out
A~ }F— i S B
iﬁrﬁﬁiggfgﬁigfzg%ﬁ %%?—:20 arrangements (only applicable between 1 Jan 2018
A and 1 Jan 2022)
%0 FIFH N LR ICET ] &K ZfE 5 Current cap on CETI capital instruments subject to A5 A5
7T.LR phase-out arrangements Not applicable Not applicable
31 HIF BN LRI ST ACETIRIEAE (TE5T Amount excluded from CETI due to cap (excess over cap A3 3
RSB o] R FHTARIR 6 &8 IR = %6 after redemptions and maturities) Not applicable Not applicable
8 TV LA RATAT] B K Z 0 H Current cap on ATI capital instruments subject to phase- 0
77 LR out arrangements
%3 I E T FIRT G AATIE L7087 ( Amount excluded from ATI capital due to cap (excess 0
FEEF RAE o] R FHIEIRE# H IR = %) over cap after redemptions and maturities)
%4 FFAEYE LA RIRET 4R BN B Current cap on Tier 2 capital instruments subject to 0
77 /R phase-out arrangements
g5 HR B LRI E A R E AT EAE ( Amount excluded from Tier 2 capital due to cap (excess 0
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
E8E) (&)
(i) BHHRCCL : 120196 H30HESE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BARZ R (REEZ-TRBESEES (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
AR (8
TERR Notes to the Template:
B (BEZAEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel 111 basis
9 HitmpEE (BHIIREBARTEREEE) Other intangible assets (net of associated deferred i )
tax liabilities)
R Explanation
FAIEEBEZETREN (BEEBHE=) X As set out in paragraph 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December 2010),
7 (20104123 ) ZEQTESFRYIE » gt mortgage servicing rights (“MSRs”) may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be
HRETECETIEAANFLUAREMSY (AR excluded from deduction from CET1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is
W] ECET1 E AR P EakR - {E AT Pt required to follow the accounting treatment of including MSRs as part of intangible assets reported in
BIR) o (EFE > M ENIEE RS the Al's financial statements and to deduct MSRs in full from CET]1 capital. Therefore, the amount to
IR o R S RS R I R R be deducted as reported in row 9 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
FATE I EEN 345y - WHCETIEA reported under the column "Basel I basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 9 (i.e.
TR SR S S TR - I > EF9TT the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of MSRs to be
BB A PR S fe e a7 (B2, deducted to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for MSRs and the aggregate 15%
T HHTEEHIRAEEE - EARAMN T (B threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary differences and significant investments in
SEFGES) Hot | TE R R A B A e R CET]1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities (excluding those that are loans, facilities
HIE SO TRR SN RsE (BI(E T B | or other credit exposures to connected companies) under Basel III.
T HURIEE) TR A R
Pa R E R A T LU R - DU E
(BESEWE=) Toia it EEERTEN
10%F I izt (o e R ~ 2 52
FTIE 2L H MR A P o 7 A7 e RS BT R 3 T Y
CETIEARTBNEARE B A EE
ONEIRVERK ~ Bl s A (E R R BRI E
) FTEHY1 STHEEAS IR R -
10 BIERIBEEE (EFIREHNEREREBEER) Deferred tax assets (net of associated deferred tax i i
liabilities)
fiEfE Explanation

IFANEIEREZEGH N (BEEBE=) X
A (201052127 ) BEO9 R BTELFRFIH: - TR
TP UEBARIER I & 0 T > T
R M7 SO R A IR AE R T & A I W] AECET 1
WP VA IRERERS (R L P HECET 1 B AR
R - ELFREFERIR) - fEFHE
TamA R EERIAON - SR IECETI B A
R BHURATA R RIH A E - RIE > 25510
TTFHEHA TRV T RE S i (E2EH
WE=) FEAHTRATEEE - FTEARAN T
CIERHE=) A4 ) I T AR R ECH
FEIAESE 1017 AT s BB s S REAYLESS 10
TTRTESRA R (HE B ) T M
FVEEE) o T MEE T AR R B I 1
RS RARIR IR E B B T LUT - 2
Frdie (CIERBE=) TRt iE R
FE 25 A A AERSE T A 7 T AE Y 1 O%F THEE B il 4 4%
CUCEELRE ~ FHIR M 22 SR AR A IR AE RS T
HERN AR TIICET EAFBNE
RIEE (FEEBEAHENFENER - Bl
BCHA(S F R AR ISR &) P Y REAR 1 5%
Pt Rl -

As set out in paragraphs 69 and 87 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel Committee (December|
2010), DTAs of the bank to be realized are to be deducted, whereas DTAs which relate to temporary|
differences may be given limited recognition in CET1 capital (and hence be excluded from deduction
from CET]1 capital up to the specified threshold). In Hong Kong, an Al is required to deduct all DTAs
in full, irrespective of their origin, from CET1 capital. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as
reported in row 10 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the
column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 10 (i.e. the amount reported
under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by reducing the amount of DTAs to be deducted which relate
to temporary differences to the extent not in excess of the 10% threshold set for DTAs arising from
temporary differences and the aggregate 15% threshold set for MSRs, DTAs arising from temporary
differences and significant investments in CET1 capital instruments issued by financial sector entities
(excluding those that are loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies) under|
Basel IIL

94




9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
E8E) (&)
(i) RERRCC © 2019486 530 HESE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BERZHBR (R EX-RIBEESE (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
aE) (8)
H & 4 Notes to the Template: (Continued)
B (BEEFEHE=)
TE|IRAE Description Hong Kong FoxE
basis Basel 111 basis
NEEEGZATREIINISRZE BTN Insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETI EAEBNIEE RLACKE (BH10%9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
18 |f&-81)) are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation - -
(amount above 10% threshold)
R Explanation
BT E Y SR TR TINCETI E AR IE For the purpose of determining the total amount of insignificant LAC investments in CET1 capital
HRLACIK & 44%E » Sl n MR /a7 instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
HAT{0] B 4 b S B B 1 A )\ S T 5 EE facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
Y EEL ~ Rlo@sl E (S B R R IR & ET48%E connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
» ERANEZ SRR ~ BB s S A R R were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
M E A - BB AR AREEZS financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
TS B REA S AT Y S A R AR loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
S RS T B 2 S5 B G (5 E (S A0S A RS A E ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 18 may
HSETOBRE e BT A% e~ R be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
St e R (L 0] 3% 5 H S R e R in this box represents the amount reported in row 18 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
Boh o I 0 15551 81 THTHE E/E T HIJR 0y SE basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
SN (BEEEES) HEEHRE Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
B AR T (EEME=) B TH
T B R A S Ry A S B R R 5 1 87T T SR AV 8L
# (BIAE "B | HNEmOVEED o
FEETT A BRI B R Y 7 N H T AR
HISY I R N FRY S~ Rl B A
15 FHJR g R HE Ry & 5 T 4EAH -
RS ESHE MM SHETERTH Significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
CETI EAEBIE ARLACKE (FEH10%9 instruments issued by financial sector entities that
19 |[Z80O are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation _ _

(amount above 10% threshold)

i

R ER ERIEH AR R TRICETI A AR B E
RLACR A SR s it R T H

A <z 2 B Y A O R O A Y
SR~ Rl s A (S R R SRy ST AREE

SLAIRZ S EERK ~ Rl A (S b K o
A E A R A S E R R
SEEBIAREE I MR
RETRE B S S BN (i H S A T R R AL A
SEVBRE PF AT S ER - RS
R B0 [EE A T 3% T LA P P B A U B
Sb - Rt - FES 19T FHE R TR B ]
g (CEMRE=) FUESITTRAEE
CAEARKEAN T (EIEMBE=) 54, HT
DR SR Y BB AL Ry S S RE A 565 1 99T P DR Y BB
CBIFE T EBAEAE | I TR ) o T
BT FE R B B IR A A JTE T A TR
SRR A SRR - RS
PR AR S Y & 5 T4 -

Explanation

For the purpose of determining the total amount of significant LAC investments in CET1 capital
instruments issued by financial sector entities, an Al is required to aggregate any amount of loans,
facilities or other credit exposures provided by it to any of its connected companies, where the
connected company is a financial sector entity, as if such loans, facilities or other credit exposures
were direct holdings, indirect holdings or synthetic holdings of the Al in the capital instruments of the
financial sector entity, except where the Al demonstrates to the satisfaction of the MA that any such
loan was made, any such facility was granted, or any such other credit exposure was incurred, in the
ordinary course of the Al's business. Therefore, the amount to be deducted as reported in row 19 may
be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount reported under the column "Basel III basis"
in this box represents the amount reported in row 19 (i.e. the amount reported under the "Hong Kong|
basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the
Al's connected companies which were subject to deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
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9 EBREEETAEBEN(RBEREESS Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
E8E) (&)
(i) fERRCCI : 7A20194E6 B 30HEEE (i) Template CC1: Composition of Regulatory Capital as at 30 June 2019
BAZ R (REE- (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)
R E B SRS EEE) ()
I E o (4E Notes to the Template: (Continued)
BBERE (EEEHE=)
TH|AE Description Hong Kong Foom
basis Basel 111 basis
RNEEEEASHEIMISHETERTH Insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital
ATIEABERIEE KLACKE (FBH10%F59# instruments issued by financial sector entities that
39 (280D are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation R _
(amount above 10% threshold)
g Explanation
BN ETEE RS S E Mt T E Rl EE The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
PO N\ T AV E L~ BloREE (S RS financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
KIEH BCETIEAZEE (R CHRBIBRELR made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
THIMTEE) fEEHIRMAE R » B2 EINE headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
AT1E A B A H A I B R LACKY BRI E AR insignificant LAC investments in AT1 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
FVER TP ZE R RTRE A P ds /)N - IR » 75839 be deducted as reported in row 39 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
THETE S A THIR A S e e (E2ER reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 39 (i.e.
T =) BB EHIRAVEER - FEARAE T the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
EEBERES) B | IE TR B loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
YT 301 TR MRS EE (B T B Ese deduction under the Hong Kong approach.
o HTEEREBED o MSEEEIERRRES
FEER Y J70E TR THIRAY S T S
ONTEIRER ~ Rl e E A (S R R BT &5
HaEd
REREESHE M SR ETESTH Insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital
ZHREAREBRIIEEALACEE (EH10%M instruments issued by financial sector entities that
54 B (AER) SeFas 8 are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation

(amount above 10% threshold and, where
applicable, 5% threshold)

e

Rl et E A AT Z SRR 0t T E R
AR SRR ~ RS F
HRIEGRCETIE A SR (R ESCARBIRRREE 18

TTAYMSEE ) A AR &R - RSB

T AR A A S B H A B RLACR AT B A

HURETER R P I 2= I T RE A A/ - PRI

TEEE SATTFTHE A TRV BRI SE g = (
EEEM AL =) M AHURAVEER - AN
0" (EZEREED) A% T T ERIEEE
Fo SR SRR S SATTRTBE SV B (BIE T &

ABERE | T T RSV - RIAER

PRAEE SR A 07774 T THIRATRE FT i
A NTEIN SRR - Rl s A R R i
M EETaEE -

Explanation

The effect of treating loans, facilities or other credit exposures to connected companies which are
financial sector entities as CET1 capital instruments for the purpose of considering deductions to be
made in calculating the capital base (see note re row 18 to the template above) will mean the
headroom within the threshold available for the exemption from capital deduction of other
insignificant LAC investments in Tier 2 capital instruments may be smaller. Therefore, the amount to
be deducted as reported in row 54 may be greater than that required under Basel IIl. The amount
reported under the column "Basel III basis" in this box represents the amount reported in row 54 (i.e.
the amount reported under the "Hong Kong basis") adjusted by excluding the aggregate amount of]
loans, facilities or other credit exposures to the Al's connected companies which were subject to
deduction under the Hong Kong approach.

i
ESTHR R | ORI SHP M AR (A
BIl) W2 AP LT 5887 HICET L A
ERANE TS - | RECEAER
G (CEMARES) XA (2010612
) SB8BELFTAL » BTSSRI LA -

Remarks:

The amount of the 10% threshold and 5% threshold mentioned above is calculated based on the
amount of CET1 capital determined in accordance with the deduction methods set out in BCR|
Schedule 4F. The 15% threshold is referring to paragraph 88 of the Basel III text issued by the Basel
Committee (December 2010) and has no effect to the Hong Kong regime.

96



BAGEHE AR EL(TBEES
EELE) (&)

(i) BEARCC2 : #A20194E12H31H
EEEAHEEAERHECE
&% -RIBE TG OER)

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial

Position as at 31 December 2019 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

HhR B R A .
A BT Z&EE A
ZGEMBIRAE| L | SpECC1 >
. <= )
Consolidated R
. . Under regulatory
Statement of Financial . Cross-
. .| scope of consolidation
Position as in \ referenced to
. . Group's Statement of]|
published financial Fi al Positi Template
disclosure statement tnanciat Fosition CC1
20194£12531H 201912 H31H
As at 31 December As at 31 December
2019 2019
HK$’000 HK$°000
B Assets
[EFEI 4 B AFR R 2E00E Cash and balances with banks 288,228 288,228
_ - Placements with banks maturing between one
== R A1 ZS I
SERR SRR E 12 A [ 332,893 332,893
% ERCE R IR TE Loans and advances to customers and other 184.146 184,145
accounts
DIANEEE R = H g Ehst AHf4:  |Investment securities at fair value tthrough other

S N . 307,017 307,017
G 2 LS comprehensive income
RIEEEE LTS HEEN T E AT 2#  |Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated for 0
=3 regulatory purposes )

Y > SEE R Property, plant and equipment 72,272 72,272
EYHE Investment properties 324,100 324,100
BEU B FREK Tax recoverable 106 105
HEA Total assets 1,508,762 1,508,770
b=Ti- Liabilities
2R Deposits from customers 752,142 753,089
HAth & (& L A Other liabilities and provisions 22,304 21,863
IR IEFR ST Deferred tax liabilities 7,493 7,493
Sl Total liabilities 781,939 782,445
R AE Shareholders' Equity
FELGEZN Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
Hfig : BHUGRESEE TS |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and
YSEE G AEE EE AR capitalized from realized revaluation 264,987 [0))
7 REA gains of properties
fﬁéﬂiﬁé’é?ﬁz%ﬁi{éiﬁé share capital capitalized from
FBE R A 2 e A unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 ?2)
properties
HAnY = E L EE A Other properties revaluation resreve 2,111 2,111 A3)
DL E AR B E e AR AMSE .

G o - Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 550 550 4
e @
LR General reserve 610 610 Q)
AR Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
BERETT Retained earnings 411,752 411,254 )
Hrpa FE YR E L |of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of

5 investment properties 272,505 ®
HAh B8 B FE Kt A other retained earnings and profits 138,749
[AE Tetaas Total shareholders' equity 726,823 726,325
AERERERSESET Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,508,762 1,508,770
B&E - Note:

HEE2019426 H30H » 20194128 31H
NEEE B A R AR A SRR 2 B
R R EE A -

There are no material changes in the reconciliation between the composition of the regulatory capital
and the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019 when compared to that of

30 June 2019.
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9 BAGHEARELMBEES
EELE) (&)

(i) fERRCC2 : FA201986H30H
EEEAHEEAMER HR
(REFZ-RBEEEGTEERE)

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template CC2: Reconciliation of Regulatory Capital to Statement of Financial
Position as at 30 June 2019 (Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

HEZ M BHBEA| BEETZHEE| BHERCC
ZEEMBRRE| SEZMBRLR ZHHR
Consolidated Statement Under regulatory Cross-
of Financial Position as| scope of consolidation| referenced to
in published financial| - Group's Statement Template
disclosure statement| of Financial Position CcC1
20194£6 530H R20195E£6 5300
As at 30 June 2019 As at 30 June 2019
HK$°000 HK$°000
B Assets
[EETEIR & R T B Sk TE Cash and balances with banks 566,811 566,811
; Placements with banks maturing between one
5 BESCEIA ]
FEFBIFESERCRR L2 12 B NEIE | 4 welve months 190,348 190,348
2 S T Loans and advances to customers and other 163.792 163.789
accounts
DIANEE T B Hgsdhst A K rss Investment securities at fair value tthrough other 308.039 308.039
SR &S5 comprehensive income > >
R LT AN B AT 2  |Investments in subsidiaries not consolidated for 10
=4 regulatory purposes )
Vst HEE R Property, plant and equipment 72,509 72,509
EYIE Investment properties 333,000 333,000
FEUX A Z Rk Tax recoverable 16 12
BEST Total assets 1,634,515 1,634,518
=0 Liabilities
2 F{EER Deposits from customers 874,054 874,775
HAh & (& LA Other liabilities and provisions 21,096 20,871
AIAFEEE Current tax liabilities 11 11
B IERTERR Deferred tax liabilities 7,335 7,335
=0 -t=v18 Total liabilities 902,496 902,992
R AE Shareholders' Equity
FELGEZN Paid-in share capital 310,000 310,000
HebaRs © FUORESSETHE > |of which:  share capital paid up in cash and
YrsEE A A capitalized from realized 264,987 )
7 REA revaluation gains of properties
fﬁéﬂiﬁé’é?ﬁZ%ﬁ%{éiﬁé share capital capitalized from
M Ry AR 2 e unrealized revaluation gains of 45,013 Q@)
properties
HAsEE (L Other properties revaluation resreve 2,175 2,175 3)
DI PR R B A S s .

o o o - Investments at FVOCI revaluation reserve 1,301 1,301 4
Sl REETE (5 B @
A General reserve 610 610 o)
AR Regulatory reserve 1,800 1,800 (6)
BERETT Retained earnings 416,133 415,640 )
Hrpa FHE LB YSeE L [of which:  unrealized revaluation gains of

e R . . 281,405 @®)

5 investment properties

HA B 8RR R Al other retained earnings and profits 134,235
RS &S Total shareholders' equity 732,019 731,526
aErERERSSE Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 1,634,515 1,634,518
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(iii) 22019412 H31 H K% 20194:6 H30H B

FCCA : 2019412 H31H K 201946H30H

EEAREE Z LRSI Z
ZCCA -

RERITHRAE

EERARR TENR

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(Continued)

(iii) The main features of the regulatory capital instruments (Table CCA) as at
31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019 are disclosed below:

Tai Sang Bank Limited

Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at 31

December 2019 and 30 June 2019

- RAEFUTAIRAE]
I
L [#TA ssuet Tai Sang Bank Limited
JE 7 s AR (40CUSIP ~ ISINZYBloomberg¥f Unique identifier (eg CUSIP, ISIN or Bloomberg identifier| . .
2 N, . K3 Not applicable
FLNBCE R A1) for private placement)
3 | EBAYETREE Governing law(s) of the instrument R
Laws of Hong Kong
R Regulatory treatment
4 (BEERES) B Transitional Basel I1I rules” 3] Not applicable
5 AE= P itional Basel IIT rules” CETIF4
(EEFHES) BIBERHAT ost-transitional Basel III rules Common Equity Tier 1
B fE R 4
6 T EF A B/ SR /2 R B LR Eligible at solo*/group/group & solo Solgﬁfdgé?;
N . Instrument type (types to be specified by each 3
E R XA =2 =H PR i
7 SRR (B&MEBETTIEH) jurisdiction) Ordinary shares
) TEEERS LA g’jﬁ?i SHUER - Ar'n(')unt recognised in regula}ory capital (Currency in HKS$265( & f5)(Mn)
(IEREBEEST » Py H R HEA) million, as of most recent reporting date)
9 |=wemiE Par value of instrument HKS1
L 554
10 |&EEtsrH Accounting classification Hy‘%j%.m
Shareholders' equity
11 |&wEiTHE Original date of issuance 1954, 1969, 1990, 2001, 2010
12 |k A% E HAPR Perpetual or dated ARATE
Perpetual
N - . fmEIH
HIE
13 JEETZRIEAH Original maturity date No maturity
14 |VEIEESE & S B Aot AR 31T A B o RE Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval ;ﬂt
0
n[EEE N H ~ sCA T EELH 0 DA Optional call date, contingent call dates and N .
15 &l EE e redemption amount R Not applicable
16 %A AT HE R H (a0 H) Subsequent call dates, if applicable AN FH Not applicable
=E A Coupons/dividends
17 EEE e [ = Fixed or floating dividend/coupon PR,
JE KT o o & P Floating dividend
18 =R KA A BETE 8 Coupon rate and any related index i F Not applicable
19 BiE RS B Ayt Existence of a dividend stopper I\j?;
. Fully discretaionary, partially discretionary or 2 EEIE
20 WAL | LTAMEEE S o I
EEEIFE ~ WorEIE - SR mandatory Fully discretaionary
21 AT E R E A E RN Existence of step up or other incentive to redeem ;ﬂz
— ) . JERaT
22 JEE B E AT Noncumulative or cumulative Non-cumulative
23 | ETdEA s R AR Convertible or non-convertiable Z\‘Ej%@
Non-convertible
24 O > RSt If convertible, conversion trigger(s) ‘N Not applicable
75 ST SRSy If convertible, fully or partially /i i Not applicable
26 FER M EEREER If convertible, conversion rate 4 P Not applicable
o NN If convertible, mandatory or optional . .
27 F5 O] o R T R R MR conversion Y orop “R i FH Not applicable
FEaleEia » PSR R I EE RN If convertible, sepcify instrument type . .
28 E_J-ﬁd' j:EI ﬂﬁ‘f’féﬂq‘r‘ Zﬁﬁﬁ - 3 p fy yp Z:}E}Eﬁ Not apphcable
| convertible into
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(iii) FCCA : 20194E12 431 H }%20194E6 H30H
BEEASE Y T ()

Capital Structure and Adequacy (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

(Continued)

(ii1) Table CCA: Main Features of Regulatory Capital Instruments as at

31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019 (Continued)

29 AT SRR R SEE

If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it

i FH Not applicable

33 ERE > R A SERREE

If write-down, permanent or temporary

L E N converts into
30| R E 52, Write-down feature :}/T;
31 R 0 B AR S EE If write-down, write-down trigger(s) R FH Not applicable
32 EAE o ey If write-down, full or partial R FH Not applicable
R

F Not applicable

BN RE - sREEBE If temporary write-down, description of write-up .
34 e mechanism i Not applicable
S TR LR R 1 (s T Positi.on i'n subordination hierarchy in 1iqu'idati0n ‘ .
35 L S ) (specify instrument type immediately senior to i Not applicable
ks IR instrument)
36| BB AT AR S EH A Bh Non-compliant transitioned features :}ﬁ
0
37E R RN AR B If yes, specify non-compliant features “Ri# 3 Not applicable
=F Footnote:
# B R BB AL TR T ISR IR ERTT A A) BRI # Regulatory treatment of capital instuments subject to transitional arrangements
BT SR AR Tk O 982 22 B provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules
+ BRI LA PR Ty A AR B GRITE (E AR + Regulatory treatment of capital instuments not subject to transitional arrangements
[J»Eﬁ%%H):ﬁ%}gB’j g HE provided for in Schedule 4H of the Banking (Capital) Rules
o IEEESEA R * Include solo-consolidated

Tz —

ZHBUE N ER o

PR A E A TR Z M AR AR E A RTT

FR20194E 12531 H K 201946 H 30 H #7744k

[ ZNFRS

SSHIBECIIRIY FAIERCCYB 1A -

AR CCyB1 : 20194E12 531 H 2 AN EEAGEEE

ZA(CCyB)HYE il B AR ST IR 3 A7

Full terms and conditions of the Bank's CET1 capital instruments are disclosed in the

website of the Bank.

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The details of the Bank's countercyclical capital buffer ratios as at 31
December 2019 and 30 June 2019 are disclosed in Template CCyB 1 below:

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in
Countercyclical Capital Buffer (""CCyB") as at 31 December 2019

F¥20194E£12H31H
At 31 December 2019 (a) (c) (d) (e)
ST SR T HMINICCyB
. B HAEBHIHEFICCYB A G g
sty | hwam Cormit tikiini
Geographical breakdown by . . . Y CCyBH#
. Applicable JCCyB ratio RWA used in Al-specific CCyB
Jurisdiction . . . CCyB amount
in effect computation of CCyB ratio
ratio
J) % HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 % Hong Kong SAR 2.000% 166,267
4EET Total 166,267 2.000% 3,325
R20195E6 H30H
At 30 June 2019 @ ©) (d ©
=T EER I HEHICCyB
. EHERAHEFICCYB FOH g
Geographical breakdown by . 5 T Y CCyBRH
. Applicable JCCyB ratio RWA used in Al-specific CCyB
Jurisdiction . . . CCyB amount
in effect computation of CCyB ratio
ratio
J) Y% HKS '000 % HKS '000
1 74 Hong Kong SAR 2.500% 160,352
451 Total 160,352 2.500% 4,009
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PEKEEA LR RBEESSER) ()

BERRCCyBI © 20196E12 31 H 2 FIR AR EE
Z(CCyB)HYE F LB AR RT3 77 (48)

FFsE -

DL b7 FAEBURIA20194E£12 531 H K 20194£6 H30H
TR IRI T4 S BB AT S 2 BRI EE AL E -
A RIT RIEEAS EAE L AT AR E SR
ARIEREAE T EREE AL > /1772019
F12H31H 2 3 AR E LR B E A I > LE %A
[E > BIE2% o AP ERSIARM - $R1T(E FESR
P P o (= EANG

TRIRELR 7 S8 (IR B O ERE)

DUNFRAEFIRR 2019512 A 31 H Z I Bk NS R
G EEEMRFER R R B B 2 b

(fHEARLR1 ) KeFY20195E12 H31H 52201949 H30H
ZIRAREER R (ERRLR2) - 6 LB T R B AL
Bl

(i) ERLRI : 20194E12 531 B2 3P RE R

Countercyclical Capital Buffer Ratio (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
(Continued)

Template CCyB1: Geographical Distribution of Credit Exposures Used in
Countercyclical Capital Buffer ("CCyB'") as at 31 December 2019
(Continued)

Note:

The above templates show the CCyB ratios of the Bank computed on the
consolidated basis as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019. As the Bank
only operates and has private sector credit exposures in Hong Kong, the
overall countercyclical capital buffer ratio was the same as the jurisdiction
countercyclical capital buffer ratio of Hong Kong, that is. 2% as at 31
December 2019. There have been no material changes in the geographical
breakdown of the credit exposures of the Bank during the current semi-annual
reporting period.

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

The tables below represent the summary comparison table for reconciling the
total consolidated assets of the Bank as stated in the financial statements as at
31 December 2019 to the leverage ratio exposure used in the computation of
the leverage ratio (Template LR 1) and the leverage ratio template (Template
LR 2) as at 31 December 2019 and 30 September 2019, presented in
HK$’000.

(i) Template LR1 : Summary Comparison of Accounting Assets

EE=R e & IS B AV EL sk 3 CRRER Against Leverage Ratio ("LR") as at 31 December 2019 (Unaudited -
RBEEEE S EHE) on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)
€))
ERRERELE THE
Value under the LR
framework
Item N
H 00085
HKS$'000 equivalent
. . Total consolidated assets as per published
5 e R W
| (E S B iR ATy IS4 & & A S financial statements 1,508,762
Wl o , T P Adjustment for investments in banking, financial,
SR BNARG G E  BEREs | ) o e
> |ammEsr T - R - EESEEE insurance or commercial entities at are 10
s T EE A - _ RPN = consolidated for accounting purposes but outside
M ST R PRI A IR 2 the scope of regulatory consolidation
MRy AR T EZE N B E A (& Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the
d] ry g
3 FNHERY - BN BIEF AR LR E R i balance sheet pursuant to the operative ]
=HEE AN Z(E EE M ZAEaIHE H accounting framework but excluded from the
s leverage ratio exposure measure
4 KPR e A M =N O Adjustments for derivative contracts -
BRI SR T A j
5 ERESRER ST (BIERER S M Adjustment for SFTs (i.e. repos and similar ]
HAEO R AHRIMES) secured lending)
— N o Adjustment for off-balance sheet ("OBS") items
6 ﬁgﬁi%i?igi?ﬁg% é;g?%)éﬁ (i.eJ. conversion to credit equivalefn amOl)mts of] -
F MBI RS 255 : OBS exposures)
y NI . Adjustment for specific and collective provisions
AR LA AN RN 1 it 3 PN -:|:
6a ifg%%ﬁigiiéﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ{%ﬁ&## that are allowed to be excluded from exposure -
ARSI SEHY AR measure
7 | EAth R Other adjustments 4,872
BEEREGRETE Leverage ratio exposure measure 1,513,644
BFeE: Note:

AR Z s > SR LR AIRTT
IR HM IR R 2 B E A AR EE B A
AT BRI EE R 2 Jo e e ] 2 R H M e e
KRR -

There are no material changes in the summary comparison reconciling items
of the Bank's balance sheet assets as stated in the statement of financial
position with the exposure measure for the calculation of leverage ratio for the
current semi-annual reporting period.

101



11 FRARERZ B (IR E SO ER) (8

(ii) BEARLR?2 : 20186£124 31 H ZAiRELSR
RIS - RA TGO E)

Leverage Ratio Dislcosures (on Regulatory Consolidated Basis) (Continued)

(ii) Template LR2

: Leverage Ratio ("LR'") as at 31

(Unaudited - on Regulatory Consolidated Basis)

December 2019

(a) (b)
TEARELRER TR LR
Leverage ratio Leverage ratio
EH Item framework framework
#4000 8000
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
20194£12H31H 20194£9H30H
31/12/2019 30/09/2019
& A EFR A E R AIE On-balance sheet exposures
HEABRNERRE CRUREHTTE On-balance sheet exposures (excluding those arising
1 | TEAELEEEHER S (SFT)EARY from derivative contracts and SFTs, but including 1,513,644 1,644,013
E s RIE - T S) collateral)
) IR © B — R AN PR AT A FE L Les§: Asset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 (321429 (330,393)
%E capital
3 EEAERARBRESESE CNEEDT Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivative 1192215 1 313.620
£ T EALRSFT) contracts and SFTs) 2174, 23
APTAE T B &4 E A1 JE G & Exposures arising from derivative contracts
FrEBNTA T EENARITERKRA ( Replacement cost associated with all derivatives
4 | FHRES - RS ERIRS SRS transactions (where applicable net of eligible cash - -
£k | BREEEIFEASEE) variation margin and/or bilateral netting)
5 B A 1074 T B 4A RIRY 7B AE AR K Add-on amounts for PFE associated with all
Crzzei il apiiE vetl derivatives contracts - -
BIRRIE ST mAREEE s Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided where
6 |fEZrEEAaGERPHIEMLTE T B deducted from the balance sheet assets pursuant to the - R
P SRy BE applicable accounting framework
7 UK BLETAE T H S LU ARV & 868 Less: Deductions of receivables assets for cash
REE S FEWER 7 variation margin provided under derivatives contracts B .
g FILNRK © AR B3 TR R T B Less: Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade
FEERAT S AR EER AT exposures
9 e O EEHITAE T EE4I0A Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit
WL FEH derivative contracts - -
10 IR - e EEHTE T ESYEY Less: Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on
B R SEE 2 i =Pd Pl EEEOEINE deductions for written credit derivatives contracts . )
11 |674 T EE&4E A R e K IE4E %8 Total exposures arising from derivative contracts - -
FH SFTE 4= iy i@ & 4 Exposures arising from SFTs
12 K ETHR D% (ENTHEFEE Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting), after
HET) E’]SFT & LA adjusting for sales accounting transactions ) i
13 T[[ Ji 0 SFTE ELEET I FE (IR £ BfEIL Less: Netted amounts of cash payables and cash
fﬁifﬁﬁ{émﬂagﬁ receivables of gross SFT assets - -
14 |SFTEENVEF 775 FH Bl &I CCR exposure for SFT assets - -
15 REEAZ 5 R R i Agent transaction exposures - -
16 | FSFTEE 4= 1Y JE\ [ K i 4a % Total exposures arising from SFTs - -
HAth & e A fEFRINEERIE Other off-balance sheet exposures
17 | EE A ERINERRIE LB B Off-balance sheet exposure at gross notional amount 1,527 5,778
IR - PR B (S S EEE R Less: Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent
18 [ (1,374) (1,600)
amounts
19 | EEAERINEH Off-balance sheet items 153 4,178
BB i g R HE4EEE Capital and total exposures
20 | —4E A Tier 1 capital 404,896 403,747
208 %#¢EE{%1&$E“E{%11’EEHDE Hi Total f:xposure.sA before adjustments for specific and 1,192,368 1.317.798
H B AR HE A collective provisions
20b %ﬁﬁ&{%ﬁ&;’%ﬁ%i&%ﬁ{’ﬁtﬂﬂ@éﬁ%& Adjustments for specific and collective provisions - -
91 o T N RS R S E R R Total exposures after adjustments for specific and LiEhsE S
P g AR A 4R collective provisions 217Es Dy
FEAEEESR Leverage ratio
22 |ﬁﬁtb$ ILeverage ratio 33.96% 30.64%
FfsE - #8EE20194E9 H30H » 7A20194£12H 31 Note: The increase of leverage ratio as at 31 December 2019 from that of 30 September 2019

HZ atRtERA R ET - 15 £ AR
& FEKR TS | 24 G BRI R
oA - i AR tE R R i s T &
B EHRARACF -

was predominantly due to the lower level of leverage ratio exposure measure, which
was resulted from the reduced consolidated statement of financial position following a

decrease in the level of customers' deposits.
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Liquidity Disclosures

U]

Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management

Governance of Liquidity Risk Management

The Bank has a low liquidity risk tolerance and ensures that funds
are always available to meet obligations fully as they come due,
particularly for customers’ deposits which should be fully covered
by highly liquid treasury funds.

The Board of Directors assumes the ultimate authority in the
approving the liquidity management policy of the Bank. Day-to-day
management of the Bank's liquidity position is delegated to senior
management, whose operation is closely monitored by ALCO.
Internal liquidity position reporting is prepared by the Bank's
accounting department and reported to senior management on a
daily basis and to ALCO at every ALCO meeting. Internal trigger
limits are set for the effective monitoring of the liquidity position.
Upon review by ALCO of the liquidity positions, it assesses in light
of prevailing market condition, if the Bank's liquidity management
strategy or guidelines are required to be amended.

The Liquidity Risk Management Policy of the Bank as approved by
the Board and liquidity management strategy as determined by
ALCO from time to time are communicated to relevant operational
departments within the Bank during periodic meetings held among
the departments and senior management.

Funding Strategy

While efforts have been made to promote depositors' loyalty to
maintain funding stability from customers' deposits, bank
management constantly reviews market situation and explores
suitable funding sources such as term depository products and
establishing correspondent banking relationships with other
financial institutions, both locally and overseas, with an aim to
provide reciprocal funding arrangements or standby funding lines.

Liquidity Risk Mitigation

To mitigate its liquidity risk, the Bank maintains an adequate level
of overnight interbank funds. It also aims to maintain an adequate
cushion of high quality liquid assets.

Stress Testing on Liquidity Risk

Stress testing on liquidity positions are performed on a quarterly
basis and presented to ALCO for review. The liquidity stress testing
exercise includes scenarios covering an institution-specific crisis
scenario for the Bank and a general market crisis scenario. ALCO
examines the liquidity stress testing results to decide if the minimum
number of days necessary for the Bank to arrange emergency
funding support is satisfactory to the needs of the Bank and
formulate the necessary strategies to address the cash flow needs
reflected from the scenario analysis. ALCO also determines if the
mix of the Bank's holding in liquefiable assets has to be adjusted
based on the outcome of the stress testing.
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Liquidity Disclosures (Continued)

@

(i)

Table LIQA Liquidity Risk Management (Continued)

Contingency Funding Plan

Upon the awareness of liquidity crisis concerns, emergency ALCO and
Board meetings would be called to decide on the ways that the Bank's
liquidity position can be improved, including, but not limited to the
following possible means: cancellation of undrawn customers' overdrafts
facilities, calling back of customers' overdrafts / loans outstanding,
availability of un-used interbank funds that could be utilized,
negotiating with major depositors for increasing their deposits with the
Bank, pledging of appropriate assets of the Bank for funding facilities,
convincing major shareholders to place deposits with the Bank or
making additional capital injection. Prompt decisions are to be made by
ALCO and the Board. Contingency funding drills are carried out
periodically to test the availability of funds available for the Bank.

Maturity Profile of Balance Sheet

The maturity profile of the items in the balance sheet of the Group as at
31 December 2019 has been disclosed in note 3.3.1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

As the Bank is designated as a Category 2 institution for liquidity
monitoring purposes, Template LIQ1 on liquidity coverage ratio and
Template LIQ2 on net stable funding ratio are not required to be
disclosed.

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures

0]

Table CRA General Information about Credit Risk

The Bank is stringent in accepting credit customers and would only deal
with customers whose background and financial conditions are known
to our management. Tangible securities and/or strong guarantors to
support credit facilities are insisted. This has given rise to a high quality
credit portfolio with decades of zero loan loss.

The credit approval, review and monitoring functions are delegated by
the Board to Credit Committee. Granting of new credits and renewals of
existing credit are guided by Credit Policy as approved by the Board.
The credit initiation and review process involve the Credit Officer who
is responsible for information gathering, analysis and report preparation.
New credits are subject to prior compliance clearance before the loan or
credit limit would be made available to borrowers. Credit risk
management and administration are examined by Internal Auditors once
a year, with results reported to Audit Committee.

Credit Policy is reviewed annually, or more frequently as changes in
regulatory or business environment necessitate a policy change.
Revisions to Policy require concurrence of the Credit Committee and
approval of the Board before taking effect. Policy limits are established
upon referencing the regulatory requirements, market practice and our
own risk tolerance.

Weekly meetings are held among senior management to review the
performance of each existing credit exposure and new credit
applications. Members of Credit Committee meet monthly to examine
the overall portfolio, market trend and compliance-related issues.
Information on connected exposures, as approved by Credit Committee
members who are not connected parties, are provided to Board members
at each Board meeting.
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(%)
(i) HEARCR] - 722019412431 (ii) Template CR1: Credit Quality of Exposures as at 31 December 2019
HEEXEZEREER
@ | ® (©) ) I @) ® @)
Hep : ZSTCRHEAE THERKE
R ARATMEHBERERELK| X4 : HIRB
MU B Z SR GRS BHAEETHIR
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting R A IBR1E
of provisions for credit losses on STC | # R M EHHY
approach exposures FEHIE AR
PR/ AR A GiERS FE
BRERN |JpREn | Alowanes | syl | SinEEgy) | OF Which ECL) Netvalues
BRI | RpoRy | mpairments | ppeempme | gympmepge | Accounting
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in pl‘O\.’lSIOIlS for
credit losses on
exposures defaulted regulatory regulatory
IRB approach
exposures category of category of
specific provision collective exposures
provision
#2019 12H31H ;‘gla; 31 December | yxs000 | HKs'000 | HKs'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 | HKs'000
[ 1 e Loans - 166,407 - - - | 166,407
| 2 |m#sm%  Debtsecurities 4 298,877 - -| -| | 298,877
B A (EsR  Off-balance sheet
| 3 |sMEBESE  exposures - 1,527 . : : 1 sz
| 4 |t Total | 466,811 | | | | 466,811]
@ | O ©) (d) I ©) (0 @
HA o ASTCRE L TH AR
FIfs R EMEHHIREERES -
TR 2 R WS o ;‘é o
Gross carrying amounts Or which ECL accounting " F EEL
of provisions for credit losses on STC WA RROME
approach exposures Eé&ﬂ’_ﬁﬁiﬂjﬁﬁ
FHYME Rk
PSR A T EREe HME
Allowances Or which ECL | Net values
AR | JE N | impairments | SEREEEA | SEAEEMEA | accounting
RIR&iE | (R HIRERMS | K9MERES | provisions for
Defaulted Non- Allocated in Allocated in | credit losses on
exposures | defaulted regulatory regulatory IRB approach
exposures category of category of exposures
specific provision collective
provision
7201946 H30H As at 30 June 2019 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
I Loans - 160,912 - - - 4 160912
| 2 |m#sm%  Debtsecurities 4 299,222 - -| -| | 299,222
B Es  Off-balance sheet
| P |shmpRdE  exposures | s . : : | soss
[ 4 et Total | 466,119 . . . | 466,119]

sk 20194E124 31 H &2019456
H30H, £EZAEH
R B R 72

Note: There were no material differences in the credit exposures of the Group between the
positions as at 31 December 2019 and 30 June 2019.
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(ii) fHEKCR2 : BEEEHXREBBE K (iii) Template CR2: Changes in Defaulted Loans and Debt Securities
&
(@)
BiE
Amount
#2019412H31H As at 31 December 2019 HKS$'000
| (RS AR T SR 556 25 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous
SHER reporting period -
. Loans and debt securities that have defaulted since the last
Frai ZE AR T, 2 A 2 _
| 2 |/H\HW§§£EH,]}EE§TJ\&{E\?7JD§§ reporting period
| 3 |$§!‘;|E]§§3 B EARN |Returned to non-defaulted status | _|
| 4 |niiess | Amounts written off | ]
| 5 |E@%§ﬂ |Other changes | _I
6 NERITHR S HI AR BT B BS54 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the current
fiR reporting period -
@
L SEL]
Amount
1R20194E6 5308 As at 30 June 2019 HKS$'000
i R E—EH S AR R T SR BB 5 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the previous
GEER reporting period -
! Loans and debt securities that have defaulted since the last
13 Al T [ A L -
| 2 |EIEVSI’§§€EE’]EE§M&{E\?MQ% reporting period
| 3 |$§;@§3E§:§;{jﬁjﬁ |Returned to non-defaulted status | _|
| 4 |sirss [ Amounts written off | ]
| 5 LE\:@%@J |Other changes | _I
6 NERITEHR S IR EE B BS54 Defaulted loans and debt securities at end of the current
i reporting period -
FfsE: 72019412 5331 H 2019456 H30H Note: Our Bank does not have any defaulted loans and debt securities as at 31 December
» AT R BT 2 2019 and 30 June 2019.
B BB S
(iv) FECRB: BNEeRIBEHREEHH (iv) Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of Exposures
SN
= EG RS EECEIEAE - Exposures are considered by the Group to be past due when repayments are overdue
WEERIEBEE - B RVE E kRS by 3 months. Impaired exposures are those of which the discounted future cash flows
Tyf5E% e Dl A B AR EREIR 2 using the original effective interest rate are lower than their existing carrying values.
R RS E(C A TR AR Impairment is considered when there is objective evidence of the happening of the
B2 BFRE - S REET R following events, including, but not limited to:
PUT AT EFEH R RRIN 2 SIS AR I
AEEWHE
- EXREEEARMEINE: _ significant financial difficulty of the borrower;
- FIEEARSE (TR EE - default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
&
- HEEREFEZMEREE _ the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating to the borrower's financial
g% el AR RIS TE difficulty, grants to the borrower a concession that the Bank would not
FHESRATRHMIE N A E otherwise consider; or
FR 0 B
- EEEIETTREN: ESETHAM - it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
B EMA - financial reorganization.

106



13 RS BIR RS AR IE = (5 AR (&)

(iv) RCRB : B R R IEE R ER BN (

(\))

&)

Gat AR B EE AR b2 I b AR R
et R R AR HE 2 e F A R[] o

SEEAH e YR E G 4 T — SR EE IR
AREFESEE Z R - Pl B&
KA R/ B R S R IR

JEBEAEAE R 20194212 31 H 201841231
H DAt > 1728 KRR EIH H Z 578
Ty RIS B M Bk Z FffaE3.1.11(a)
BitsE3. 1.11(b) Rt aE3.3.14 -

FA20194E12 H31 H F20184E12 431 H AEE
AT ] R R B R I A R E -
&\ A A R A R P A

FRCRC © BRSSO L 5% 28

SR 2 UAE VIS8 e L s EA R
PERCZ A - A2 o (i E D
BRI XFERFHZZM > SR EEH
HHE R A SRR - i THEEY B
2R H (Al DLAREE R 1 2 B LR
AL EELRAE SR -

2019512 A 31 HY)3E48 K _Eiiss e
P B0y B B i 154,616, 12170 Je kg
11,791,3007C > Max FIEEM 22 K Bl
N EIREEE Y SN SEAE S B R 5732, 500,000
TCR 20,348 ,3557T © N ERIRIRYISEE
b (R EYEYME 279, 5% 0 TR
FIPZERINGEE20. 5% - FrE# TEEBEEEFER
2 LR R EE LR

FEEAMOHEBEEARRN KINZ BFAIE -

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

@iv)

(\)

107

Table CRB: Additional Disclosure Related to Credit Quality of
Exposures (Continued)

There are no differences between the definitions of past due
exposures and defaulted exposures for accounting purposes and those
for regulatory purposes.

Restructured exposures are those exposures that the Group has
granted concession in its repayment, such as, a longer repayment
period and/or lower installment amounts, when compared to the
original exposures.

The breakdown of exposures by geographical areas, industry and
residual maturity as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 are
given in Note 3.1.11 (a), Note 3.1.11(b) and Note 3.3.1 of the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group does not have any impaired exposures, past due
exposures, defaulted exposures nor restructured exposures as at 31
December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

Table CRC: Qualitative Disclosures Related to Credit Risk
Mitigation

The Group accepts first legal property mortgages and listed securities
as collateral for secured loans. Updated valuation of properties under
mortgages are obtained at least annually for credit review purposes or
when changes to the credit facility lines are proposed. Listed
securities pledged to the Group are revalued on a daily basis to ensure
the prudent loan-to-security value ratios have been preserved.

The carrying amounts of loans secured by mortgaged properties and
listed securities amounted to HK$154,616,121 and HK$11,791,300,
while the fair value of these mortgaged properties and shares in listed
companies were HK$732,500,000 and HK$20,348,355 respectively
as at 31 December 2019. Of the total mortgaged properties,
residential properties accounted for 79.5% of the total value of such
properties while commercial properties were 20.5% of total
mortgaged properties. All listed securities pledged to the Group as
loan collaterals were blue-chip listed equities.

The Group does not net its on- and off-balance sheet exposures.
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(vi) PBERRCR3 © BB REAS VBB HEASEEE

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vi) Template CR3: Overview of Recognized Credit Risk Mitigation

(@)

(b1) (b) (d) ®
PsEE{EH
DASERTEH | ISR ERRME | fT4ETAE
EEAFERK| FRERREZ | (FREZER | REZERR | OEREZ
¥ REEEE & X & BB AR
Exposures | Exposures to be Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
#2019FE12H31H As at 31 December 2019 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
[ 1 e |Loans 166,407 - - - -
| 2 |mwmes | Debt securities | 298,877 . . ] ]
ENE | Total | 465,284 . . ] ]
| 4 |mimmmsy |of which defaulted | | | | | |
(a) (b1) (b) (d ®
e e
DR | SRR ME | fTETRSE
EAEERR| FREERZR | FREZER | REBZERR | EREZ
& - PRIEBEE & R & B\ R Y
Exposures | Exposures to be Exposures Exposures Exposures
unsecured: secured secured by secured by ssecured by
carrying recognized recognized recognized
amount collateral guarantees credit
derivative
contracts
120196 H30H As at 30 June 2019 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
I 1 I%%’\ ILoans 160,912 - - - -
| 2 |mmsas | Debt securities | 299,22| . . ¥ ¥
| 3 |esst | Totat | 460,134] . . ] ]
| 4 |mepasms |of which defaulted | i | i ] ]
B % Note:

A20194E12 531 H K 20194E6 H 30 H $R1 T (T
o] DARE P {5 SR B RS i E FEA 2 JEU BRI - 7
20194E12H 31 H & 20194E6 H30HRIT 2 FnEA
SRR LIERE OIS & b B fE A o

Our Bank does not have any exposures secured by recognized CRM as at 31
December 2019 and 30 June 2019. All outstanding loans of the Bank are

fully secured by collaterals other than recognized CRM as at 31 December
2019 and 30 June 2019.
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(vii) fERRCR4 {5 FH RS ARHE Kok Pl BB

PR\ 8 i~ #—BSCat B A

Mitigation - for BSC Approach

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii) Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized Credit Risk

@ | o © | @ @ | o
R CCF B ABAS A R | S CCIF B JRAB (= A e\ B I | R B 2 R\ B R
HEERNZ BRRE HEAENZ BERERRE HEE
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
HEAME | EEAHER | EEAMERE | EEAER |ERIER| RERinEe
B SR B SNEER #H HEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
B20194£12H31H As at 31 December 2019 sheet sheet sheet sheet
TR AR Exposure classes HKS$'000
[ 1 [eremmmse Sovereign exposures 306,689 i 306,689 | 29888 9.75%
| 2 |ammmmmRsE  |PSE exposures | 8 8 g g 8 0.00%
3 % g Bt AR T G R Multilateral development bank 0.00%
b/ exposures - - - - - .00%
| 4 | mmomi | Bank exposures | 610,256 . 610,256 | 122,051 20.00%
| 5 |[memn | Cash items | 3,053 . 3,033] . ] 0.00%
NP - Exposures in respect of
;?iffégg&i;ﬁ failed delivery on
6 i FIHYZS Af transactions entered into on - - - - - 0.00%
g%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁ/ﬂiﬂ’ﬂﬁkﬂy " a basis other than a deliver-
- versus -payment
| 7 |eemmen | Residential mortgage loans | 95,743 319) 95,743 . 95,602 99.85%
| 8 |scitmpmnms | other exposures | 484,750| 1,208| 484,750| | 484,750| 100.00%
HEEERIE AR Significant exposures to
N it eXpos ; ; ; ; ; 0.00%
B i commercial entities
| 10 4Bzt |T0tal | 1,500,491' 1,527| 1,500,491' -| 732,291' 48.80%
@ | o © | @ @ | o
NG CCF R IRABAS P R P e | S48 C CF BRI P sk T | e e B e i P
STREERNZ BRBRRE HEERZERRRE R
Exposures pre-CCF and pre- | Exposures post-CCF and post-| RWA and RWA density
CRM CRM
BEAER | BEAER | BEAER | TEAER AR EeimEs
NG SR WNEEE SR # HEE
On-balance Off-balance On-balance Off-balance RWA RWA density
#A20194E6 H30H As at 30 June 2019 sheet sheet sheet sheet
JR AR IEE R Exposure classes HKS$'000
B Sovereign exposures 335,352] i 335,352] 1 2002 8.92%
| 2 |smeampmasE  |PSE exposures | g g g - | 0.00%
3 s RTT B K Multilateral development bank 0.00%
% exposures - - - - - .00%
| 4 |smempmm | Bank exposures | 717,434| . 717,434| | 143,487 20.00%
| 5 |meme | cash items | 3,595 . 3,59 . 8 0.00%
NP e Exposures in respect of
é’é?fﬁéigg’;i;ﬁ failed delivery on
6 Pt L\T o f transactions entered into on - - - - - 0.00%
(PSRBT B & et red it 0
ife a basis other than a deliver-
= versus -payment
| 7 |emEsen | Residential mortgage loans | 92,691 4.430| 92,691 4,000| 96,131 99.42%
| 8 |sitmmni |other exposures | 490,59 1,555 490,59 | 490,59 100.00%
PG EERIVEAR Significant exposures to
P - CXPOs ; ; ; ; - 0.00%
b A I commercial entities
| 10 |4zt |T0tal | 1,639,670| 5,985| 1,639,670| 4,000| 760,138' 46.25%

109




13 RSB ISR b AR 1B 2 15 R B ()

(vii) ERRCRA © {5 U AR I Ko ] BB (= B
2 S8 —BSCETEVA ()

bt

7220194£12 7 31 H B RS ba /K P 2 TR E=EAN
SR AP e Z RS AR/ N 5 | SRTT bR
ERE T ERRBARIERER B - L
TR A 2 (E EH R RIS B AT e ik
ZSERAES | N FTE R < LMEEY e (E R
ZEGR BT - T 7 B (R RN b R I
PAASHRHEE201945:6 H RIS IRA AT & > £%2
HHA B YIZE 20194012 H 31 H sk A B ff s
e

Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

(vii)

110

Template CR4: Credit Risk Exposures and Effects of Recognized
Credit Risk Mitigation - for BSC Approach (Continued)

Note :

The decrease in the overall level of exposures for 31 December 2019
was mainly resulted from the lower outstandings of bank exposures
and sovereign exposures, caused by the smaller size of the Group's
financial statements. Residential mortgage loans in the above
templates include loans and overdrafts secured by residential property
mortgages, as defined by the completion instruction of the Capital
Adequacy Return. Other on-balance sheet exposures for the current
period also decreased from those at the end of June 2019, mainly due
to the revaluation deficit booked on investment properties as at 31
December 2019.
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Credit Risk for Non-Securitization Exposures (Continued)

C FEANFREREMEH W E O
ifi20194E12 H 31 H Z $fAT /R B 2K
YNNG 5 7 R (T AR ARl N T T e

BREH T -

° Eﬂﬂﬂﬁz ARET SR 20194512H 31
HEE ARCE YL E RS RITA Bl -

1

(viii) FERRCRS : HEEENMNEEGREEE] (viii) Template CRS: Credit Risk Exposures by Asset Classes and by Risk
SYB1E F B AR & —BSCat Bl Weights - for BSC Approach
#20194£12531H As at 31 December 2019 (@ (b) (© (@ © ® (® (h) o)
FRGLAES Risk Weight W e R R
(B¥CCFRRIE
B AR EE
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100% 250% Ofe{z‘ Total creditﬁrizlq(
exposures amount
(post CCF and post
CRM)
JE SRR FIExposure class HKS '000
| 1 | B HEEE G RE |Sovereign exposures 7,812 | 298,877 | | | | | | | 306,689
| 2 I’ 2 B R R I IPSE exposures | I | .| .| | | _| _| ,I
N X2 T Mo I IR I N N N R N ]
| 4 |§Eﬁ]ﬁk[§ﬁ7¥@}§ |Bank exposures | | | 610,256 | -| | -| .| .| 610,256 |
| s |aemm | cash items | 3083 8 8 8 ] 8 8 8 3,03 |
PLESREHS T =0LISN Exposures in respect of failed
6 L R EETTRIR H3E delivery on transactions entered
(NP R: gy a:) v into on a basis other than a . - - N
% delivery-versus-payment basis
| 7 |eeeragssn | Residential mortgage loans | ¥ ¥ x| x| 28| 95461 | ¥ ¥ 95,743 |
| 8 |setmmms |other exposures | ¥ ¥ x| x| | asas0 | ¥ ¥ 484,750 |
9 H PGS E RS E AR Significant exposures to
e commercial entities B - . ° " . - - -
| 10 szt | Total | 1086s| 208877| 61056 | | 282|  ssoau1 | . . 1,500,491 |
F20194E6 530 As at 30 June 2019 @ (b) (©) (d) (© ® (® () @
FERHEE Risk Weight SERARBRRER
(B#CCF B BAE
SR ERERTE
0% 10% 20% 35% 50% 100% 250% Of\eflt'% Total creditEriE?(
exposures amount
(post CCF and post
CRM)
BB R IEIE R Exposure class HKS '000
| 1 | BT ERE Rl |Sovereign exposures 36,130 | 299,222 | | -| I | .I _I 335,352
| 2 |ovemormpas |PSE exposures | i 1 1 ] | | i i 1
| 3 I%§ ?%Efj‘ﬂr;g]%\j:ﬁk IVlul[]la[eral GeVClOmem bank | _| | | _| | | _| _| _I
| 4 |smrrmpssi [Bank exposures | 3 | 717434 . ] g ¥ ¥ 717.434 |
| s |messm | cash items | 3505 ¥ . . ] g ¥ ¥ 3,595 |
DUESRE AT AN Exposures in respect of failed
6 IS TN 53 delivery on transactions entered
{534 B R B R g K into on a basis other than a ° - - -
i delivery-versus-payment basis
| 7 |reerasen [Residential mortgage loans | . ¥ . | 2| essmo | ¥ ¥ 96,691 |
| & |settnmps i |other exposures | x| i g g | 490,598 | g g 490,598 |
9 P E RN E AR Significant exposures to
i commercial entities B ° - B N - -
| 10 ezt | Totar | 30725 209222 | 717,434 | | na|  ssees | . . 1,643,670 |
ffsE: 7A20194E12H 31 H'E 5 B B s K 3 2 /> Note: The decrease in sovereign exposures for 31 December 2019 was mainly resulted

from the decreased balance of HKMA settlement account maintained. The lower
level of bank exposures for 31 December 2019 was due to the smaller size of the
Group's balance sheet maintained. The decrease in other exposures was mostly the
result of the taking up of revaluation deficit for the investment properties held by

the Group as at 31 December 2019.
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book

(i) Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk

Management and Objectives and Policies

Interest rate risk in the banking book ("IRRBB") is defined as the risk of
loss to the Group due to possible changes in the level of interest rates
impacting interest rates sensitive assets and liabilities and off-balance
sheet items in the banking book of the Group.

The Group has established a Board approved policy on the risk
governance management of IRRBB. The subject policy refers to
elements of IRRBB management framework as advocated in the
Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1 "Interest Rate Risk in the Banking
Book" issued by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. The monitoring
of IRRBB of the Group is delegated by the Board to the Risk
Committee, ALCO and senior management of the Bank. With Risk
Committee overseeing the overall risk management framework of the
Group, ALCO concentrates on direct monitoring of IRRBB via its
reviews of periodic reports submitted by management on IRRBB impact
and gives necessary instructions on the Group's level and type of interest
rate sensitive assets and liabilities for the controlling of IRRBB of the
Group. ALCO also conducts regular reviews of interest rate trends, risk
profile and stress testing results.

Risk appetite in IRRBB has been thoroughly considered by the Board
when approving the Group's IRRBB policy. The risk appetite has been
reflected in the risk limits established by the Group and duly
documented in the IRRBB policy. Such risk limits serve as the basis for
on-going monitoring of the impact of possible future interest rate
changes on the economic value of equity ("EVE") and net interest
income ("NII").

With the current structure of the Group's HKD interest rate sensitive
position being more than 95% of the total interest rate sensitive position
in all currencies, the monitoring of IRRBB is effected through the
compilation and review of related risk reports on the HKD interest rate
sensitive positions as at the end of each calendar month. Such reports
are compiled based on the same scenarios for the EVE and NII impact
analysis as the regulatory returns and are submitted to ALCO at its
monthly meeting for review and discussion.

In the measurement of IRRBB for both internal monitoring and
regulatory reporting purposes, the Group relies on the following
assumptions and characteristics of its interest rate position profile:

(a) The Group does not provide any fixed rate retail loans.

(b) The non-maturity deposits of the Group, including current and
savings deposits, are assumed to continue into the foreseeable
future. The earliest repricing date of such deposits is used to
determine the impact of IRRBB on the Group.

(c) The retail time deposits of the Group are normally subject to early
redemption risk by the deposit customers. However, such risk is
mitigated by a material penalty applied on time deposits for pre-
maturity redemptions. The historical pattern of the Group in this
regard reflects a very insignificant early withdrawal rate on retail
time deposits.

(d) The Group assesses the impact on earnings under the earnings
perspective approach, based on the two standard interest rate shock
scenarios while assuming a constant balance sheet.
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (Continued)

U]

(i)

Table IRRBBA Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book - Risk
Management and Objectives and Policies (Continued)

The Group also conducts periodic stress-tests on IRRBB for the
measurement of its vulnerability to loss resulted from its interest rate
positions under stressed market conditions. The results of the stress-tests
performed are reviewed by ALCO, which gives specific instructions on the
composition and level of interest rate positions when it sees fit.

The overall risk management framework on IRRBB is subject to periodic
reviews and audits conducted by the internal compliance unit and the
internal auditors of the Group.

Template IRRBB1 Quantitative Information on Interest Rate Risk in
Banking Book

The table below provides information on the adverse change in the
economic value of equity ("EVE") and also the adverse change in net
interest income ("NII") over the next 12 months under each of the
prescribed interest rate shock scenarios in respect of the Group's interest
rate exposures arising from its banking book position for the current annual
reporting date as at 31 December 2019. Since this is the first time for the
disclosure of this template, comparative figures for previous year are not
available.

B 000) (in HK$'000) (@) (©)
JHH Item Adverse impact Adverse impact
A EVE A NIL
) 20194£12H 31H 2019512H31H
el Period 12/31/2019 12/31/2019
1 ST Parallel up 2,322 6,275
2 SEAFIER Parallel down - i
3 R Steepener -
4 iR Flattener 2,166
5 MR BT Short rate up 2,752
6 FER T Short rate down -
7 e Maximum 2,752 6,275
. 2019%12H31H
s Period 12/31/2019
8 —aRE Tier 1 capital 404,895

fEEMREEFRHEEEMEEFNE
EVEBURTMIRD “SRATHRAIAYAIR "

PIATEEAE » AT -

U SpATE B Fra s e A —E e
Tz B ER

2 AT T AR A — B R
(PRI TR

3 BERY AR T R I R AR BT
4 ek AR BT R T

5%3J§+ﬂ?m S R T

M B IR 9
%ﬂ%

6 I T : RIS R USRI T e

% HIEIER S R ) 25
ST

The prescribed interest rate shock scenarios are provided by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority in their Supervisory Policy Manual IR-1
"Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book" and are described as follows:

Parallel up: A constant parallel shock up across all time buckets

Parallel down: A constant parallel shock down across all time buckets

Steepener: Short rates down and long rates up
Flattener: Short rates up and long rates down

Short rate up: Rates up are greatest at shortest time bucket and diminish
towards current rates in longer time buckets

Short rate down: Rates down are greatest at shortest time bucket and
diminish towards current rates in longer time buckets
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (Continued)

(ii) Template IRRBB1 Quantitative Information on Interest Rate Risk in

Banking Book (Continued)

Based on the results of the above analysis, the parallel up shock scenario
would result in the most significant adverse impact on the Group's net
interest income, i.e. a 28.7% decrease in the Group's NII. On the other
hand, the short rate up scenario would cause the largest adverse impact on
economic value of equity, which would lead to 0.7% decrease in the Tier
1 Capital at the consolidated level.

Disclosure on Remuneration

(i) Table REMA Remuneration Policy

The Bank establishes a Remuneration Policy which governs the set up of
a Remuneration Committee and formulates the principles of remuneration
determination for its staff. The Remuneration Policy of the Bank promotes
an overall scheme of remuneration that matches the Bank's business
objectives, risk tolerance and risk management framework.

The composition and responsibility of the Group's Remuneration
Committee has been set out in note 5 of the Supplementary Financial
Information. During its two meetings held in the year ended 31 December
2019, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the annual
remuneration to be paid to the Bank's senior management (being those
holding position as Assistant General Manager or above) and key
personnel (being heads of key functions as stipulated in Fourteenth
Schedule of the Banking Ordinance) in accordance to the Bank's
Remuneration Policy and Board instructions. It also approved the annual
review of the Bank's Remuneration Policy where no changes were
recommended to be made. The basis of determining the annual
emolument adjustment payable by the Bank to its senior management and
key personnel is by reference to Board approved benchmark based on
public sector indicators in this area. Accordingly, employees who are
responsible for risk control functions are remunerated independently of
the businesses they oversee. No individual director of the Bank will be
involved in decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

The total fees paid to the members of Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to HKS$780,982 (2018:
HK$384,000) which were paid for their overall workloads and
commitment to the Board as a whole.
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Disclosure on Remuneration (Continued)

(i) MEIKREM1 fEBABUEE NS T HIEEN (ii) Template REM1 Remuneraiton Awarded During Financial Year
#R20194E12531H At 31 December 2019 (2) (b)
" e EREHE
I R R ARt = . -
. U . Senior FHERT
Remunration amount and quantitative information
management Key personnel
B TN # Number of employees 4 3
- HEE EF - FH
B Fixed remuneration e St i
RERERCER) . 3,711,137 4,784,199
Total fixed remuneration of which:
cash-based (HK$)
4EFEEN Total remuneraiton 3,711,137 4,784,199
#R20184E12531H At 31 December 2018 (2) (b)
L 1 71 ey e e
i RE e BALER : =
Senior FEET
Remunration amount and quantitative information
management Key personnel
B T_A¥ Number of employees 4 6
- A e F o E
TE#H Fixed remuneration & Sk
B RIEECEN) , 4,613,740 4,308,793
Total fixed remuneration of which:
cash-based (HKS$)
#EFEH Total remuneraiton 4,613,740 4,308,793

BEE:
EHAATHSIEHE N T THESH
S RoRHE Y EEFE - BN L AR
EHENFEE TLIRE - B - I
T H R H A T B8 i v s - 7
20194F12 31 H 1k 2 /% 5 20184£12H31H
IEZEER > EENED 8 TRREH
THER S TR EEE R EES T 20
BN RS FS 2 MR AT o

2018412 31 HIEF RN Bl s B B
Jig [ s > by R IR S A E
ELHEE N 2RIV BB 2 (R OB IS
SEE R Z BRI A AT - SEET20
195127 31 H AR IR - A 2 [EE
H R R IEH A -

FEE AR E AR 20192125 31 H5e4s
FRENESEET > TR 2 B THERRE
= K DA b2 ERRREML Fr 2 AR E T8 E
s o PEIRNELIEE i 2 LR AR
TIEE LRI AE T T E B T2 [EE
Hr B -

(i) BIERREM?2 : H2RIfFE0

7220194125 31 H IRFEE R 20184E12H31H
IEFEER - SEENEET TS - B e
PreGfEaL T H S EHE R EHAT -
Bt > AR SRR RRREM2FF BT 5K
BEABERRA IR AR - AR LR AR > 2
PFET LR -

(iii)

Note:

The Group only provides fixed remuneration to its senior management and
key personnel in the form of salary and allowance in cash. No variable
remuneration, whether in the form of cash, shares and share-linked
instruments and other instruments, has been provided by the Group to its
senior management and key personnel. There were no deferred
remuneration nor retained remuneration, whether vested or unvested,
awarded, in the form of payment or reduction through performance
adjustments, to the Group's senior management and key personnel during
both the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018.

The higher level of fixed remuneration paid to senior management during
the year ended 31 December 2018 was the result of overlapping of
employment of a retiring senior management with the successor and the
increased remuneration on leave paid upon retirement. The Group did not
experience the same situation during the year ended 31 December 2019
and the fixed remuneration for the current year has resumed to its normal
level.

The internal orgnisation restructuring process of the Group continued
during the year ended 31 December 2019, which has in turn resulted in a
higher level of staff turnover and the related number of employees noted in
Template REM1 above. This fact together with the normal pay increment
adjustment accounted for the increase in the total fixed remuneration paid
to key personnel when the two years are compared.

Template REM2 Special Payments

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the
Group did not have any new sign-ons, severance payments or guaranteed
bonuses awarded to its senior management and key personnel. It has
therefore not included disclosure Template REM2 on special payments,
which is considered not to be relevant and would carry nil balances in such
template if published.
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Disclosure on Remuneration (Continued)

(iv) Template REM3 Deferred Remuneration

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018,
the Group did not have any outstanding deferred remuneration not pay
out any deferred remuneration in any forms for its senior management
and key personnel. It has therefore not included disclosure Template
REM3 on deferred remuneration, which is considered not to be
relevant and would carry nil balances in such temple if published.

Disclosure Templates on Counterparty Credit Risk, Securitization
Exposures and Market Risk

The Bank does not engage in any derivative transactions, securities
financing transactions ro securitization transactions as at and during the year
ended 31 December 2019 nor has plan to engage in such transactions in the
coming year, and has therefore not included any disclosure templates on
counterparty credit risk and securitization exposures, which are considered
not to be relevant and would carry nil balances on such templates if
published.

The Bank has been exempted from the calculation of risk weighted assets for
market risk and accordingly has been exempted from disclosing templates on
market risk.

Capital Charge for Credit, Market and Operational Risks

The capital ratio in note 3.5 to the financial statements represents the
consolidated ratio of the position of the Bank for regulatory purposes as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 computed in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

The capital requirements for each class of exposures are summarised as
follows :

(i) Capital charge for credit risk

BEARER

Capital requirement

2019 2018

HK$°000 HKS$’000

Sovereign exposures 2391 -

Bank exposures 9,764 15,389

Residential mortgage loans 7,648 8,741
Other exposures which are not past

due exposures 38,780 38,716
Total capital charge for on-balance

sheet exposures 58,583 62,846

Direct credit substitutes - 320

Trade-related contingencies - 16
Total capital charge for off-balance

sheet exposures - 336

Total capital charge for credit risk 58,583 63,182

The Bank uses the Basic Approach for calculating credit risk. This
disclosure is made by multiplying the Bank's risk-weighted amount
derived from the relevant calculation approach by 8%, not the Bank's
actual “regulatory capital”.
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Capital Charge for Credit, Market and Operational Risks
(Continued)

(ii) Capital charge for operational risk

2019 2018
HK$’000 HKS$’000

Capital charge for operational
P £ P 4,406 3,742

risk

The Bank uses the Basic Indicator Approach for calculating
operational risk.

(iii) Market risk capital charge

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$°000

Market risk capital charge - -

The Bank was granted by the HKMA an exemption from the
calculation of market risk under the exemption criteria under
section 22(1) of the Banking (Capital) Rules on 22 March 2016
and has excluded market risk in the calculation of capital ratio
since then and as at 31 December 2019.

Disclosure on Fair Value Practices on Financial Instruments for CA-
S-10 Guideline issued by the HKMA

The Group holds listed equity investments measured at FVOCI which
are subject to fair value measurement as stipulated in the CA-S-10
Guideline issued by the HKMA. The valuation technique used by the
Group to value the subject listed equity investments measured at FVOCI
has been set out in note 3.4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements while the sensitivity analysis of such investments are detailed
in note 3.2.1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Group uses prices quoted at the stock exchanges for each of the
listed equity investments measured at FVOCI to mark the investments to
their fair values on periodic basis. The fair value measurement and
calculation process is performed by a department independent of the risk
taking unit and is subject to stringent controls supervised by senior
management of the Group. The fair values of the listed equity
investments measured at FVOCI are reviewed regularly by senior
management and the Board.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED
( Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Tai Sang Bank Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 6 to 70,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code™), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and the Audit Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors

either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI SANG BANK LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability )

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

- Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

- Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS
Certified Public Accountants

HONG KONG, 26 March 2020
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